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In 2018, the domestic economy showed a downward trend
in economic growth, and the foreign trade was impaired
to a certain extent due to the escalation of trade conflicts
between China and the United States. During the year, the
fluorosilicone industry experienced certain fluctuations in
the face of increased domestic economic uncertainties, and
the changes in the downstream demands resulted in the
decline of some products’ prices. However, in the turbulent
environment, Dongyue still maintained relatively high
performance, and achieved satisfactory results during the

year by virtue of its various advantages.

Business Review

1.

Significant growth in results

During the year under review, the Group recorded total revenue
of RMB14,218,937,000, representing a year-on-year increase of
40% as compared to RMB10,137,137,000 in 2017; our gross profit
margin was 31.87%, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.64%
as compared to last year; and our profit before tax amounted to
RMB3,234,899,000, representing a year-on-year increase of 51.04%
as compared to last year. Several of the Group’s major operating
segments had achieved significant growth in results. Despite
substantial changes in various industrial factors, by leveraging its
advantages of the complete industrial chain, outstanding research
and development capabilities, quality services, rich market
experience, rigorous safety and environmental management,
the Group overcame uncertainties in the industry and achieved
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excellent results, continuing to outshine its industrial peers in the
fluorosilicone industry.

Enhanced social image and influence of the Group
by a number of honors

During the year, the Group was showered with honors. Our chlor-
alkali ion membrane was selected in the National Museum's
Results Exhibition of 40th Anniversary of China’s Reform and
Opening Up. During the year, the Group also presided over or
participated in the drafting of 2 national industrial standards, 4
local industrial standards and 3 group industrial standards, while
its subsidiaries had won 12 honors such as technical innovation
demonstration enterprise awarded by the fluorosilicone industry
association and the petrochemical federation, etc. Benefitting
from the Group's long-term outstanding performance, Dongyue
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earned widespread recognition from the state and society, and Mr.
Zhang Jianhong, the chairman of the Company, was also honored
to be awarded many honors. On 1 November 2018, Mr. Zhang
Jianhong participated in a symposium on private enterprises
hosted by Xi Jinping, General Secretary of the Communist Party
of China, and received a cordial reception from him. In addition,
Mr. Zhang Jianhong was also invited to join the 40th anniversary
celebration of reform and opening up, and was selected in the
list of 100 outstanding private entrepreneurs during the 40 years
of reform and opening up. The above achievements have greatly
enhanced the Group’s social image and influence and increased
our competitiveness, thus reinforcing our leading position in the
industry.

Maintaining competitiveness with scientific and
technological innovation

The Group has always considered independent innovation as its
important competitiveness, and the management of the Group
has attached great importance to scientific and technological
innovation. The Group’s R&D investment in 2018 increased by
84.47% as compared with that of 2017. During the year, the Group
completed 39 s'uccessful projects of technological innovation,
automation enhancement and other topics, and 10 projects of
new product development and quality improvement. Among
them, new products such as the fluorine-containing polymers
DF-2049 and DF-161 had been used in the high-end application
fields including environmental protection and semiconductors;
we achieved the replacement rate of 70% for PFOA; PFA and
the medium-and-high fluororubber realized mass scale sales;
hydrofluoroethers and fluorosilicone rubber had been popularized
and applied; and the newly developed series of textile auxiliaries
such as amino silicone oil and epoxy-terminated silicone oil had
become industrialized; and the fluorosilicone surfactant and the
release silicone rubber for lithium battery were successfully tested
and secured trial orders. Moreover, more R&D efforts had been
put into the chlor-alkali ion membrane which was independently
researched and developed by the Group. The Group lowered
its manufacturing costs drastically. It has been used by many
customers in the market and won recognition in the market.
During the period, the Group was successfully awarded 31 patents
out of 40 patent applications, bringing the total number of the
Group's awarded patents to 361.
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At the same time, the Group has also strengthened the
construction of the external cooperative R&D platform. During the
year, the Group’s joint research and development projects with a
number of universities and research institutes have achieved initial
results. The projects such as perfluoropolyether lubricants, new
type of 107-glue catalysts and high-performance flame retardant
silicone rubber have achieved progressive breakthroughs. In
addition, the Group’s R&D center projects in large-scale cities have
also started construction.

Ensuring safe and environmentally-friendly
production

In recent years, China has attached great importance to safe and
environmentally-friendly production. The Group's high and strict
standards of safety and environmental protection have enabled
itself to weather all the changes in the industry in recent years
and remain unbeaten. During the year, the Group continued to
establish a standardized system of safe and environmentally-
friendly production management. The DuPont safety management
concept introduced has initially achieved results in the Group,
effectively reducing the safety risks of its subsidiaries. The
Group has built a water purification plant in the park of the
main production sites, which has enabled the recycling and
comprehensive utilization of water in the park and reduced the
amount of water discharged.

Improving overall management level

When industries are sensitive to market fluctuations, in order to
maintain stable operation , one enterprise needs to take effective
measures to strengthen it's own management and improve itself.
The Group always regards improving its own management level as
one of the important development strategies. During the year, the
Group launched its SAP project to integrate internal and external
systems and partially form a unified management and operation
platform. The Group has taken a big step forward in carrying out
the “Benchmarking Formosa Plastics” IT-based management. As for
the suppliers, the Group grasped market changes, continuously
optimized the supplier management, improved procurement
quality and strictly controlled prices by comparing with peers’
prices.
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Further enhancing advantages of the industrial
chain and the park economy

The advantages of the industrial chain and the park economy
have been the development advantages of Dongyue for a long
time. Therefore, the management of the Group attaches great
importance to extending the industrial chain and developing
the park economy. During the year, Dongyue Chemical Park,
the Group’s most important production base, being the first
specialized chemical park in Shandong Province, was established
as approved by the Shandong Provincial Government on June 26
2018. Such approval would help the Group to respond to national
policies and promote project implementation, so as to obtain
more favorable development benefits arising from the future
changes in the economic situation.

Strengthening capital market operation

During the year, the Group made further progress in capital
operation. Shandong Dongyue Organosilicone Materials Co., Ltd.
(IUEREEAEEM R AR A E) ("'Dongyue Organosilicone”,
a subsidiary of the Group), filed a listing application with the China
Securities Regulatory Commission in November 2018, and related
matters are currently in progress. The successful listing of Dongyue
Organosilicone would expand its financing channels, enhance
its development potential and strengthen its own business as
soon as possible, with an aim of enhancing its competitiveness
and industrial position, increasing investments in technology and
environmental protection, improving profitability and ultimately
bringing returns to the Company’s shareholders.

Further improving employee benefits

The management of the Group has been maintaining long-term
focus on the benefits of employees. During the year, there were
a number of measures introduced to improve employee benefits.
In December 2018, in order to improve employee benefits, the
Group adopted an employee option scheme, pursuant to which,
options would be granted to employees within the next five years
and would be vested within ten years. In addition, during the
year, the Group further improved employee benefits by tailoring
clothing for employees and modifying the vacation system.
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Prospect

Although the Group achieved relatively good results in 2018, it should
not underestimate the impacts of fluctuations of the economic
environment and the industry. Therefore, the Group will make the
following deployments in 2019:

1. Keep a close eye on the market development

After sustaining sudden changes in the industry in 2018, the
Group is determined to develop itself in light of the market
development in 2019. The Group will increase its market research
efforts and grasp any changes in the market to actively prepare
for coping strategies. On the one hand, the Group is committed to
secure market share with guaranteed price, quality and quantity;
on the other hand, the Group will promote new products to new
application market, strive to enter high-end market and maximize
market for its products.

2. Adhere to scientific and technological innovation

In response to the market demand in the new situation, all the
companies under the Group will insist on innovation in 2019.
Specifically, in line with the economic development, we should
continuously increase the proportion of new products’ revenue
and the application rate of new technologies, actively apply new
technologies, new equipment and new processes to improve
overall efficiency, and actively explore enhancements in terms
of new product innovation and application, modified products,
catalyst modification and upgrading, environmental protection
technologies, energy-saving technologies and recycling, promoting
the Group's higher-quality development. In order to achieve
this goal, the Group will set the scientific research investment
as a mandatory assessment indicator for each company so as to
increase investment in research and development, accelerate the
construction of research and development platforms, improve the
assessment mechanism and implement a long-term innovation
incentive scheme.
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p.
= FEHREE

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

08

E-SRSTERAREEKT

20195 « FEBBREMT R BIRERE -
BRFE - EEEE— S MAKEROH
A B KEEEREEEY - 2
FE - AREBEEREEE B 1
BNTREANRERE X - BRARE
BEBAZ -

E—SRAEEAT

2019%F - ARESIKERENERE - £—F
TRAE - BRBEEAL - HETE - A
SEBBETHERERE  RRRBEEE B
ERBRA  AETE - ARESBNES
EmEE  REYREER: BRT@E - &
HRE - ERITBENH  AERRRE
178 METE  ARERE-FPEEEE
£~ ERIERR » BERAPERREEE ' N
SMRIGBAEE - BRI EEREERLLBET
BYNBEPHNER - HEEAIMESTED
¥ BOBETR - ACUEREE -

wHE - EREMEFELREE

BRBEREANDEERREN—ERHE -
20194  AEBBEEILREREM DT LT
EREBEHETNT 2 NESREE
MEIAIPO - BREAMSEHRE - PNE
BGE - B AEBEBMBRAREE
BB IEAERGE  AREFHEER
R AEEBEINAEITENSAEE R
& HEHERNREBIEHIT —EEENK
T HIEFEMREBZ S ROFEL ©

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR

Further improve the level of safe and environmentally-
friendly production

In 2019, the Group will continue to carry out safe and
environmentally-friendly production. In terms of environmental
protection, the Group will further increase the utilization of water
recycling and strictly dispose of wastes such as wastewater,
waste residue and exhaust gases. In respect of safety, the Group
will continue to strictly implement the “Benchmarking DuPont”
management and gradually form its own Dongyue safety culture
to achieve long-term stability in production and operation.

Further improve the management level

In 2019, the Group will rely on quality management to further
explore and maximize profits. For the supply, the Group will strictly
control the management of suppliers, improve procurement
quality and reduce procurement costs; for the production, it
will strive to improve product quality and reduce resources and
energy consumption; for the expenses, it will carefully budget,
control unnecessary expenditures and carry out actions against
wasting; and for the efficiency, the Group will further improve
the intelligent and informatization construction to realize the
full coverage of the SAP system, and connect the internal and
external services via network to eliminate the ineffective labor
and resources in the production and operation process as much
as possible, and it will also carefully formulate plans and refine
the improvement measures after benchmarking the outstanding
advanced enterprises at home and abroad.

Do well in capital operation

Capital operation is another driving force for the industrial
development. In 2019, the Group will continue to implement the
spin-off listing of Dongyue Organosilicone step by step as planned
and fully promote the domestic IPO of Dongyue Organosilicone,
in the hope of achieving another breakthrough in the capital
market to boost the real economy. In addition, the Group will also
strengthen corporate asset management, focus on asset yields and
effectively control asset risks. The Group will focus on investing in
the fluorosilicone silicon industry and hydrogen energy projects.
The investments in the real estate projects will be constrained at
a moderate level, and the investments in non-core businesses will
be gradually reduced and withdrawn.
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6. Strengthen human resources management and
increase the sense of belonging

In 2019, the Group will practice the concept of “Where there is the
talent, where there is the market, there is Dongyue”, and establish
the Dongyue scientific research system, project management
system and performance appraisal system through benchmarking
the R&D institutions of the international first-class enterprises,
in order to build a strong R&D platform. In terms of employee
benefits, the Group will implement the employee option scheme

based on actual conditions and create a good start for the g
employee option scheme; furthermore, the construction of the \ ;.‘L_
catering center will be completed in the Group's park to improve é
the quality and standards of staff catering. : J

In 2018, we created a glorious chapter in the history of the Group and
all Dongyue employees are proud of the achievements. However, we
should not sit back and relax. 2019 will be a year full of challenges.
We must improve ourselves and give full play to our advantages to
maintain the leading position in the industry, and further pursue the
world-class reputation and on-going operation and strive to achieve
excellent results to create stable and objective returns for our investors.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2018 09
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results Highlights

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB14,218,937,000, representing an increase of 40.27%
over RMB10,137,137,000 in the previous year. The gross profit margin
increase to 31.87% (2017: 30.23%) and the operating results margin
was 23.50% (2017: 22.21%). During the year under review, the Group
recorded profit before tax of approximately RMB3,234,899,000 (2017:
profit before tax of RMB2,141,773,000), and net profit of approximately
RMB2,434,699,000 (2017: RMB1,681,799,000), while consolidated
profit attributable to the Company’s owners was approximately
RMB2,129,098,000 (2017: RMB1,601,397,000). Basic earnings per share
was RMB1.00 (2017: basic earning of RMB0.76).

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.35
(2017: HKS0.30) per share to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 4 June 2019.
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Segment Revenue and Operating Results

Set out below is the comparison, by reportable and operating
segments, of the Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31
December 2018 and the year ended 31 December 2017:

BZ2018F12831ALLEE HE2017F 128318 1LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 For the year ended 31 December 2017
Re rE
E: £ A= Yrzs ¥ it
Operating Operating
Reportable and Results Results
EHRLELH Operating Segments Revenue Results Margin Revenue Results Margin
AR®TT AR%®TrR ARBTT ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
"R FME Polymers 3,879,793 915,014 23.58% 2,927,843 605,053 20.67%
A Organic Silicone 3,380,373 984,040 29.11% 2,428,256 433836 17.87%
el Refrigerants 3,260,154 805,467 24.71% 2,502,275 588,442 23.52%
—&F5 BEZ  Dichloromethane, Polyvinyl
B(PvC)) /&R Chloride (PVC’) and
Liquid Alkali 1,723,746 466,059 27.04% 1,604,099 354,554 22.10%
EeES Property development 239,639 65,524 27.34% 285,510 32,648 11.43%
Hith Others 1,735,232 105,745 6.09% 389,154 237,215 60.96%
) Consolidated 14,218,937 3,341,849 23.50% 10,137,137 2,251,748 22.21%
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Analysis of Revenue and Operating Results

During the year under review, the domestic fluorosilicone industry
market in China experienced certain ups and downs as impacted by the
fluctuations in the domestic economy due to international factors. There
was a booming market for the industry in the first half of 2018, while
certain products saw a price decline to a certain degree in the second
half of 2018 due to unstable market demand caused by international
events. Nevertheless in general, thanks to the favorable developments
of this sector in recent years, most products could still maintain decent
profitability. Leveraging on its strengths such as presence across the
whole industry chain, well-developed park economy, strict mechanism
for safe and environmentally-friendly production, outstanding market
reputation and standing, good product quality and excellent service,
the Group achieved a brilliant performance since the inception of the

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2018 11
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Company. With regard to the operating segments, the performance
of all the principal segments of the Company recorded different
level of growth. In particular, the organic silicone segment and the
fluoropolymer segment experienced rapid growth, and hence became
the two most important segments of the Group in terms of segment
results.

Fluoropolymer

During the year under review, the fluorine-containing polymers
segment’s revenue was RMB3,879,793,000, representing a year-on-year
increase of 32.51% (2017: RMB2,927,843,000), accounting for 27.29%
(2017: 28.88%) of the Group’s total revenue. The results of the segment
recorded a profit of RMB915,014,000, representing an increase of 51.23%
as compared with RMB605,053,000 in the same period of the previous
year.

Same as in 2017, the fluorine-containing polymers sector continued
to see a favorable market condition. In the first half of 2018, product
price rose to a record high in years, which also outpaced the rise in
the price of raw materials. Despite a price fall in the second half of
2018, the products of this segment were still quite profitable. The most
important raw material of the fluoropolymer products is R22. R22 has
been enjoying a good market condition in recent years and therefore
a relatively high and stable price, which in turn led to a relatively high
price of fluoropolymer products, and together with the increasing
downstream demand, it further boosted the market of fluoropolymer
products.

The Group relies on the internal supply of R22 for the production of
TFE (a fluorocarbon), which is used by the Group for the production
of polymers products such as PTFE (a synthetic fluoropolymer with
high level of resistance to temperature changes, electrical insulation,
and aging and chemical resistant that is used as a coating material
and can also be further processed into high-end fine chemicals which
can be widely applied in the chemicals, construction, electrical and
electronics and automotive industries) and HFP (an important organic
fluorochemical monomer, which can be used to produce various
fine chemicals). Furthermore, the refrigerants segment of the Group
supplied R22 and R142b as the raw materials for the production of
a variety of downstream fluoropolymer fine chemicals including FEP
(modified materials of PTFE, produced with HFP added in TFE, mainly
used in the lining for wire insulation layer, thin-walled tube, heat
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shrinkable tubes, pumps, valves and pipes), FKM (Fluorine Rubber, a
specialized fluorinated material, which is mainly used in the fields of
aerospace, automotives, machinery and petro-chemistry because of
its superior mechanical property, and excellent oil, chemical and heat
resistance), PVDF (fluorocarbon made with R142b to produce VDF,
mainly used as a fluorine coating resin, fluorinated powder coating
resin and lithium battery electrode binding material) and VDF, in which
Huaxia Shenzhou has been engaging. Other fluorinated fine chemicals,
including PPVE, PSVE, HFPO, formed another major production category
of Huaxia Shenzhou.

Refrigerants

During the year under review, the refrigerant segment’s revenue was
RMB3,260,154,000, representing an increase of 30.29% as compared
with RMB2,502,275,000 in the previous year, accounting for 22.93% of
the Group’s total revenue (2017: 24.68%); the results of the segment
recorded a profit of RMB805,467,000, representing a year-on-year
increase of 36.88% (2017: profit of RMB588,442,000).

Similar to the market situation in 2017, prices of this segment’s
products could maintain at a relatively high level in the context of the
relevant environmental policies, while the prices of fluorite powder
and Hydrofluoric Acid, being the most important raw materials, also
fluctuated within a range at a relatively high level in 2018. Although
there were certain fluctuations on the downstream household
appliance market such as air-conditioners and refrigerators in the
second half of 2018 due to international situations, the Group could
still maintain a stable price and sales volume and hence a satisfactory
revenue and profit against such fluctuations, by virtue of its excellent
product quality, brand, well-established reputation and influence, and
the vigorous operation strategy in market development. The revenue
of R22, being the core refrigerant product of this segment, increased
by 31.81% in 2018, which contributed the most to the revenue
increase of this segment. With regard to other refrigerant products, the
revenue experienced either rise or fall as impacted by the respective
downstream markets.

R22 is the Group's backbone refrigerants product. The Group has
the largest production capacity of R22 in the world. Moreover, R22
is the most widely used refrigerant in the PRC and is generally used
in household appliances. Apart from that, it has been one of the key

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2018 13
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raw materials for the production of the fluoropolymers (i.e. PTFE, HFP
and other downstream fluorinated chemicals) and R125. R125 and R32
are the key refrigerant mixture for other types of green refrigerants
(such as R410a) to replace R22. Currently, R410a has been the principal
replacing refrigerant which has been widely applied in inverter air
conditioners and other green home appliances. R134a is broadly
used in the refrigeration and air-conditioning systems in automobile
air conditioners, while R152a is another key refrigerant product of
the Group which can also be used as blowing agents, aerosols and
cleaning agents. Apart from the fact that R142b can be used as
refrigerant, temperature controller medium, and intermediates of
aviation propellant, it can also be one of the main raw materials for the
production of VDF.

Pursuant to the Montreal Protocol, R22 would be progressively phased
out as a refrigerant by the end of 2030 and would be replaced by other
green refrigerants. The Chinese government has stopped granting
approval to the building up of new capacity for R22. Starting from 2013,
the Chinese government has been enforcing a quota system for the
sales of R22 as a refrigerant for all of the domestic R22 producers. On
the other hand, R22 can be used as raw material for the production
of the Fluoropolymer. Therefore, although the Group has a huge
production capacity of R22, the saved production capacity of R22 as
a refrigerant was transformed and utilized by the Group to produce
Fluoropolymer in order to cope with the increasing market demand for
Fluoropolymer.

Organic Silicone

During the year under review, the organic silicone segment’s revenue
grew by 39.21% to RMB3,380,373,000 from RMB2,428,256,000 in the
previous year, accounting for 23.77% (2017: 23.95%) of the Group's total
revenue. The result of the segment recorded a profit of RMB984,040,000,
representing an increase of 126.82% from a profit of RMB433,836,000 in
the previous year.

There were considerable fluctuations on the organic silicone market
in 2018. The good momentum on the organic silicone market in 2017
lasted into the first half of 2018, which resulted in a continued rise in
product prices. However, in the second half of 2018, the downstream
market demand for organic silicone products declined as impacted
by international situations, which resulted in a considerable fall in the
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product price. Nevertheless, by virtue of its presence across the whole
industry chain, excellent marketing strategies, and well-established
market reputation and influence, the Group could still maintain a rather
profitable position regardless of the notable fall in the product price
in this segment. As a result, the segment results of the Group could
still record a relatively significant increase in 2018. This segment has
been experiencing rapid growth in recent years and changed from
a slightly loss-making segment into a highly profitable one and from
a principal business with lowest results contribution into one with
highest results contribution, which was attributable to not only the
market environment, but also the unremitting efforts of the Group over
a long time. As at the date hereof, Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon
Materials Co., Ltd. (IU R EH #EEM BB R A A]), the operating
entity of this segment, has submitted a listing application to the China
Securities Regulatory Commission during the year. The proposed listing,
if materializes, is expected to broaden the financing channels of the
Group and enhance its growth potential, accelerate the development of
this segment’s business and enhance its competitiveness and industry
status, increase the investment in technology and environmental
protection, improve profitability and create value for the Company’s
shareholders.

This segment mainly includes the production and sales of DMC (upstream
organic silicone intermediates that are used as raw materials to produce
deep processed mid-stream and downstream silicone products, such
as silicone oils, silicone rubber and silicone resins), 107 Silicone Rubber,
Raw Vulcanizate and Gross Rubber (collectively referred to as “Silicone
Rubbers”, deep processed organic silicone rubber products, where Raw
Vulcanizate is a key material for producing Gross Rubber), and other by-
products and other high-end downstream products, such as Gaseous
Silica and Silicone Qils. Named as “Industrial MSG", organic silicone is
widely applied in military, aviation, automotive, electronic, construction
and other industries, mainly in the form of additives, treatment
chemicals stabilizers, lubricants and sealants and is a key ingredient in
industrial processes. The Group initially produces silicone monomers
with silicone powder and internally generated chloromethane and
further processes them to become silicone intermediates (mainly DMC),
with certain portion of which the Group produces for Silicone Rubbers
and other organic silicone products. The Group can also produce and
generate other by-products and high-end downstream products, such
as Gaseous Silica and Silicone Oils through its production processes.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2018 15
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Dichloromethane, PVC and Liquid Alkali

During the year under review, the segment’s revenue increased by
7.46% to RMB1,723,746,000 from RMB1,604,099,000 in the previous year,
accounting for 12.12% (2017: 15.82%) of the Group's total revenue.
The results of the segment recorded a profit of RMB466,059,000,
representing a year-on-year increase of 31.45% (2017: profit of

RMB354,554,000).

As bulk chemical products, the prices of products of this segment
are susceptible to economic factors. During the year, due to certain
fluctuations in domestic economy, the results of this segment recorded
an increase which is however lower as compared with that of other
segments. During the year, a year-on-year increase of 12.35% was
recorded in the revenue of PVC; a year-on-year increase of 31.13% was
recorded in the revenue of dichloromethane; while a year-on-year

decrease of 3.00% was recorded in the revenue of liquid alkali.

This segment includes the production and sales revenue of two major
auxiliary products (dichloromethane and liquid alkali) of Refrigerants
Segment of the Group and PVC products. Liquid alkali is a basic
chemical product from the production of methane chloride (essential
chemical for the production of refrigerants and organic silicone
products), and used in the textile, power and materials industries.
Methane chloride includes dichloromethane, which is mainly used
to produce antibiotics and as a foaming mode for polyurethane. The
Group engaged in the production of PVC (a widely used thermoplastic
polymer applied in the construction industry to replace traditional
building materials). The production of refrigerants products generates
a chemical, hydrogen chloride, which is one of the basic raw materials
for PVC production. Therefore, the Group’s PVC production can ensure
production synergies and increasing economic value generated from a
self-sufficient business chain.

Property Development

As at the date hereof, this segment included four property projects,
which are located in Huantai County, Zibo City, Shandong Province,
Zhangdian District, Zibo City, Shandong Province, Yucheng City,
Shandong Province, and Zhangjiajie City, Hunan Province, respectively.
Some of the projects are under construction, while some have
commenced sales. As most of the projects have not commenced sales
and as a result have not generated revenue, this segment contributed
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a revenue of RMB239,639,000 only to the Group in 2018, representing a
decrease of 16.07% from RMB285,510,000 in 2017. This segment result
recorded a profit of RMB65,524,000.

Others

This segment included the revenue from the production and sale of the
Group's other by-products of the various operating segments, such as
Ammonium Bifluoride, Hydrofluoric Acid, Bromine, and so on.

During the year under review, the segment recorded revenue of
RMB1,735,232,000, representing an increase of 345.90% as compared
with RMB389,154,000 in the previous year. The results of the segment
recorded a profit of RMB105,745,000 (2017: RMB237,215,000),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 55.42%, which was largely
attributable to the volatile market conditions in this year.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

During the year under review, the distribution and selling expenses
increased by 14.26% to RMB358,726,000 from RMB313,959,000 of the
previous year, which is attributable to an increase in transportations
cost from an increase in sales and transportation unit price during the
year.

Administrative Expenses

During the year under review, the administrative expenses increased
by 19.26% to RMB782,735,000 from RMB656,333,000 of the previous
year. The reasons for the increase include: (i) an increase in employees’
salaries and (ii) an increase in professional fee incurred during the year.

Finance Costs

During the year under review, the finance costs decreased by 13.96%
to RMB97,135,000 from RMB112,890,000 of the previous year. This was
mainly attributable to decrease in average monthly loan balances and
the interest rates of the Group during the year under review compared
to previous year.
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Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's aggregate
capital expenditure was approximately RMB888,561,000 (2017:
RMB834,226,000). The Group's capital expenditure is mainly for the
construction of factories, equipment production line for the new
operation projects of the Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's financial position is sound with healthy working capital
management and strong operational cash flow. As at 31 December
2018, the Group's total equity amounted to RMB9,392,199,000,
representing an increase of 28.44% as compared with that as at

1 December 2017. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank
balances and cash totaled RMB3,331,147,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB1,471,116,000). The increase in the Group's bank balances and cash
is mainly attributable to the increase in sales during the year. During
the year under review, the Group generated a total of RMB3,873,382,000
(for the year ended 31 December 2017: RMB1,122,187,000) cash inflow
from its operating activities. The current ratio® of the Group as at 31
December 2018 was 1.78 (31 December 2017: 1.61).

Taking the above figures into account, together with the available bank
balances and cash, the unutilized banking credit facilities and support
from its banks as well as its sufficient operational cash flows, the
management is confident that the Group will have adequate resources
to settle any debts and to finance its daily operational and capital
expenditures.
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Major Disposal

Major Transaction in relation to deemed disposal of interest in
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicone Materials Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue
Organosilicone”)

On 12 October 2018, the Company announced that Dongyue
Organosilicone (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) will
issue certain number of new A shares on ChiNext of the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange by way of initial public offering to the public in the
PRC (the "Proposed Spin-off’), or other methods as approved by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC"). It is proposed
that Dongyue Organosilicone will issue not more than 300,000,000
new A shares (the "Offer Shares”), representing 25% of the total
number of issued shares of Dongyue Organosilicone as enlarged by
the Proposed Spin-off. The actual number of Offer Shares to be issued
by Dongyue Organosilicone will be subject to the market conditions
and the relevant rules and regulations of the CSRC as amended from
time to time. It is expected that immediately upon completion of
the Proposed Spin-off, the Company will indirectly control not less
than approximately 57.75% interest in Dongyue Organosilicone, and
therefore Dongyue Organosilicone will remain as a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

The Proposed Spin-off, if materializes, constitutes a deemed disposal
of the Company’s equity interest in Dongyue Organosilicone under
Rule 14.29 of the Listing Rules and is subject to shareholders’
approval requirements. Details of this major disposal are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 12 October 2018.

The Proposed Spin-off was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting on 31 October 2018.
Capital Structure

During the year under review, the Company did not repurchase or
cancel any of the Company’s listed securities. The number of issued
shares of the Company was 2,111,689,455 as at 31 December 2018.
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As at 31 December 2018, the borrowings of the Group totaled
RMB2,082,450,000 (31 December 2017: RMB1,820,821,000). The gearing
December 2017: 456%). The
negative gearing ratio as at 31 December 2018 represents the Group

ratio? of the Group was -15.33% (31

is “net cash” positive (i.e. has more cash & equivalents than its debt)
which is usually a good sign.

The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As at 31
December 2018, the Group’s borrowings comprised non-current portion
(over 1 year) and current portion (within 1 year). The non-current
portion of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB1,209,300,000
which are repayable in full after one year but not exceeding five
years. The current portion of borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB873,150,000. The Group's borrowings were made at fixed interest
rates and floating rates. The weighted average effective interest rates
on floating rate borrowings and fixed rate borrowings for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were 5.36% (2017: 5.36%) and 5.01% (2017:
5.01%) per annum, respectively. As at 31 December 2018, 26.72% (31
December 2017: 19.61%) of the Group's borrowings bear fixed interest

rates.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group's borrowings were
denominated in RMB only.

Notes:
(1) Current Ratio = Current Assets = Current Liabilities
(2)  Gearing Ratio = Net Debt + Total Capital
Net Debt = Total Borrowing — Bank Balances and Cash

Total Capital = Net Debt + Total Equity

Group Structure

During the year under review, there has been no material change in the
structure of the Group.
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Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had certain property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments with an aggregate carrying value
of approximately RMB10,747,000 (31 December 2017: RMB167,586,000),
and bank deposits of RMB82,700000 31 December 2017:
RMB32,860,000), which were pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings
and the bills payable of the Group.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

The Group’s functional currency is RMB with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. However, foreign currencies (mainly United States
dollars) were received/paid when the Group earned revenue from
overseas customers and when settling purchases of machinery and
equipment from the overseas suppliers.

In order to reduce the risk of holding foreign currencies, the Group
normally converts the foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while
taking into account its foreign currencies payment schedule in the near
future.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The Group had 5,876 employees in total as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: 5,862). The Group implemented its remuneration policy
and bonus based on the performance of the Group and its employees.
The Group provided benefits such as social insurance, employee option
scheme and pensions to ensure remuneration competitiveness.
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Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible for
the management and operation of the Company’s businesses and has
the general authority in this regard. Certain information of the members
of the Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong, aged 59, was appointed as the chairman, chief
executive officer and executive director of the Company in July 2006.
He has been with the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) and its predecessors since October 1986 and has over 32
years of experience in the chemical industry. He is also the chairman
of Dongyue Chemicals and Dongyue Polymers etc., and a director
of Dongyue F&S and Dongying Dongyue Salt, all of which are the
Company's subsidiaries. Mr. Zhang is a senior officer of political affairs.
He had served the People’s Liberation Army Navy from 1978 to 1982.
Mr. Zhang is the vice chairman of the 11th All-China Federation of
Industry and Commerce (% +—/E%2 B LgH), currently serves as
vice chairman of China Civil Chamber of Commerce (FEBIREE®),
the president of the Hong Kong China Chamber of Commerce, the
standing chairman of China Association of Organic Fluorine and Silicone
Material Industry and a standing committee member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Shandong Province (LLE&
BBH). He has obtained the honorary titles of National Outstanding
Builder of Socialism in the Non-Public Economy (Fourth Session), “100
outstanding private entrepreneurs during the 40 years of reform and
opening up”, Powerful Figure of China Petroleum and Chemical Industry
(First Session), Top 10 Outstanding Figures of Chinese Brands in the
International Market, National Outstanding Demobilized Soldier, and
Most Outstanding CEO of the Year chosen by a Hong Kong magazine
“Capital CEQ" ("BARA&").

Mr. FU Kwan, aged 61, was appointed as the executive director of
the Company in July 2006. Mr. Fu is currently the chairman of the
board of directors and the president of Macro-Link Group. Mr. Fu
served as a police commissioner of Liling City, deputy secretary of the
Party Committee of the Commune, secretary of the township party
committee, deputy director of the Liling City Economic Commission,
director of the Municipal Foreign Trade Bureau and the Party secretary,
deputy general manager of Hunan Arts and Crafts Import and Export
Group (#E & T & M H A& @), and associate leader of social
working team of province station at Liuyang City. Mr. Fu served as the
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member of executive committee, standard committee of All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce, the director of participation and
deliberation of politics committee of All-China Federation of Industry
and Commerce, the deputy chairman of the tenth All-China Federation
of Industry and Commerce, and the deputy chairman of the eleventh
of China Chamber of Commerce. He also served as the eleventh, the
twelfth and the thirteenth CPPCC member, the member of the social
and legal committee of CPPCC, and the chairman of Hong Kong China
Chamber of Commerce. He was appointed as deputy chairman of the
board of Central South University and Beijing Foreign Studies University.
He was selected for several times as “Outstanding builders of socialism
with Chinese characteristics”, “Top ten Entrepreneur in China”, “China
Economic Person of the Year”, “100 outstanding private entrepreneurs
at the 40th anniversary of China’s reform and opening-up”, “Persons of
China Private Sector for the 40 Years" and other honors. In addition,
Mr. Fu is the director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co.,
Ltd. G EER bRz 3 R AR AR 2 R]), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu is also the chairman and executive
director of Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (¥7EZEE:E KRB R AT,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr Fu
owns a direct 4.25% and an indirect 90% interest in Macrolink Holding,
which wholly owns Macrolink International. Macrolink International is a
substantial shareholder of Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited.

Mr. LIU Chuangqi, aged 69, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006. He has been with the Group and
its predecessors since October 1986. Mr. Liu has over 30 years of
experience in the chemical industry and was a director of Dongyue
Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers, Dongyue F&S, Dongyue Organic
Silicone, Dongying Dongyue Salt, Huaxia Shenzhou, Dongyue Precision
Chemicals and Zibo Dongyue Lvyuan, all of which are the Company'’s
subsidiaries. He is also formerly the general manager of Dongyue
Chemicals and the president of the Group. He is a senior officer of
political affairs, and was awarded “Medal for Enhancing the Labour
Force of Zibo City" in 2002 by the Zibo City Labour Union.

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng, aged 44, was appointed as the executive director,
vice president and chief financial officer of the Company in May 2017.
Mr. Zhang was the financial controller of the Group from 2006 to
2007. He has served as the financial controller and general manager of
MacroLink Mineral Co., Ltd. (¥TEETEZ B R A ) from February 2008
to February 2016. MacrolLink Mineral Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of Macro-
Link Holding Limited (72812 3% A FR 2 B1), which is also the holding
company of Macro-Link Industrial Investment Limited, the substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated in the Hunan
University in 2003. He is also a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a registered tax agent in the PRC. Mr.
Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in accounting and finance.
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Mr. ZHANG Bishu, aged 49, was appointed as the executive director of
the Company in May 2017. Mr. Zhang is a master postgraduate. He is also
a certified accountant and registered tax agent in the PRC. In his earlier
years, Mr. Zhang worked for state-owned enterprises and government
authorities. He joined the Macro-Link Group in October 2004. He has
since served as the deputy financial officer of the Macro-Link Group, the
chairman of Macro-Link Weihung Food Company Ltd. GHTEEEB R
mABRZAF]), the director and the general manager of Jiayuan Cobalt
Holdings (iR &4 24 8 B BR 72 B]) and the financial officer and the chief
officer of the investment department of the MacroLink Group. Mr. Zhang
is currently the senior vice president, chief accountant and the president
of the chemical and tyre business department of the Macro-Link Group.
In addition, Mr. Zhang currently also acts as an executive director of
Liaoning Chengda Co,, Ltd. GEZER R B PR A R]) (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Sichuan Hongda Co., Ltd. (F9)I| 7=
f& 13 B PR A R)) (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange),
Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), Sailun Group Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Asia-Pacific Property & Casualty
Insurance Co., Ltd. and Daxinganling Rural Commercial Bank.

Mr. ZHANG lJian, aged 46, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006 and has been with the Group since
February 2006. Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in the
investment banking and corporate finance. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor
degree in Economics and Law from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics and a Master degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang is currently the senior vice
president of the Marco-Link Group and the president of its ceramic and
equipment business department, as well as an executive director of
New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (a company listed on the HKSE)
and Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (a company listed on the HKSE),
the vice-chairman of Keda Clean Energy Co. Ltd. (@ company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange), and an executive director of Macrolink
Culturaltainment Development Co., Ltd. FTEE AL R R D E
[R 2 7)) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen VMH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA
(HK), FHKIoD, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Ting is a certified public
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accountant and has been the managing partner of Messrs Ting Ho
Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising) since 1987. Mr.
Ting is currently a non-executive director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings
International Limited and an independent non-executive director of six
companies listed on the HKSE, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies
Company Limited, Tongda Group Holdings Limited, New Silkroad
Culturaltainment Limited, Computer and Technologies Holdings Limited,
Texhong Textile Group Limited and China SCE Group Holdings Limited.

Mr. YUE Rundong, aged 78, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007 and has
been with the Group since then. Mr. Yue has more than 40 years of
experience in the chemical industry. He was the technician, project
leader and deputy director of research department of Shen Yang
Chemical Research Institute, the dean of Chen Guang Chemical
Research Institute and the dean of Chengdu Silicone Research Centre.
Mr. Yue has taken the post of the dean of Bluestar Institute of Chemical
Technology, the standing chairman and professorate senior engineer of
China Association of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material Industry. Mr.
Yue is currently the honorary standing chairman of China Association
of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material Industry. Mr. Yue also receives
special allowance from the State Council.

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in August 2014. Mr. Yang has over
30 years of experience in fluoropolymer and organic silicone industries.
Mr. Yang served at China Bluestar Chengrand Research Institute of
Chemical Industry as chief engineer and director of National Organic
Silicone Engineering and Technological Research Centre and National
Synthetic Resin Quality Supervision and Inspection Centre, and the
chief secretary of the Organic Silicone Professional Committee of China
Association of Fluorine and Silicone Industry and so forth. Mr. Yang
is currently director of the Expert Committee of China Association
of Fluorine and Silicone Industry. In addition, Mr Yang is currently an
independent director of Hubei Xingfa Chemicals Group Co., Ltd (j#
b TEBERRMKB AR AR, a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, an independent director of Ningbo Runbe High-Tech
Materials Co., Ltd (R ERSFMREHER D AR A F]), a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. , and an independent director
of New Asia Man Silicon Chemistry Co., Ltd. (HTas& i L BB B R A
A).
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Senior management

Mr. WANG Weidong, aged 55, has worked for the Group since
September 1996 and is responsible for technology R&D and corporate
management matters. During the period, he chaired the overall
preparation works for incorporation of fluorosilicone companies as well
as organic silicone companies. He then acted as the general manager of
fluorosilicone companies, silicone companies and chemical companies
of Dongyue. He has over 30 years’ experience for manufacture and
management in the chemical industry. He is currently the president of
the Group and the director of the subsidiaries of Dongyue Group. Mr.
Wang also received various awards such as the nationwide outstanding
chemical engineerer (2Bt TEFEHZTIEHE) from Petroleum and
Chemical Industry Federation (/8 A1t T T 21 &), Outstanding
Contribution Entrepreneurs (£ tH & Bt & 2 K ) and Shandong
Outstanding Entrepreneurs (LI B & & F % %K), Mr. Wang holds a
master degree in business administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University.

Mr. LI Yuwen, aged 51, obtained a bachelor's degree in English from
Beijing Foreign Studies University and the title of senior political
scientist of professor level. He has worked for the Group since March
2002 until now, currently serves as the deputy president of the Group.
He excels in management and innovation, and has visited more than
80 companies including Formosa Plastics, Baosteel, Sinopec, German
Airbus and Audi under the support of the Group’s management, which
pushes a big step forward in learning from the “Benchmarking Formosa
Plastics Revolution”. He is the author of Management Revolution ({& 32

HIEAB)), etc.

Company secretary

Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai, aged 37, is a full time company secretary of
the Company. She joined the Group on 20 March 2015. Ms. Chung is
primarily responsible for company secretarial matters of the Company.
Ms. Chung has 16 years of work experience in accounting, corporate
finance and strategic investment. Prior to joining the Company, Ms.
Chung had worked in the audit and financial advisory divisions of a
leading international accounting firm; merger and acquisition team
of a Hong Kong listed blue-chip company; finance and accounting;
and strategic investment divisions of two listed companies in Hong
Kong respectively. Ms. Chung holds a bachelor degree of business
administration, majoring in professional accountancy from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a bachelor degree of laws from the
University of London. Ms. Chung is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 117.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2018 (six months ended 30 June
2017: Nil).

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKS$0.35 per share (the "Final Dividend") (approximately equivalent to
RMBO0.30 per share) (2017: HK$0.30 per share, approximately equivalent
to RMBO0.24 per share), in respect of the year 2018, to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company (the
“Register”) on 4 June 2019. The Final Dividend is subject to the approval
of the members of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the "AGM") to be held on 30 May 2019.

Closure of the Register

The Register will be closed to ascertain the qualification for attending
and voting at the AGM and for the entitlement to the Final Dividend.

The Register will be closed from 24 May 2019 to 30 May 2019, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all
share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
23 May 2019.
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The Register will be closed from 5 June 2019 to 10 June 2019, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the Final Dividend,
all share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
4 June 2019.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of change in equity on page 120.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as computed in accordance with the
Companies Law (2003 Revision) of the Cayman Islands amounted to
RMBT1,191,596,000, of which HK$739,091,309 (approximately equivalent
to RMB628,227,000) has been proposed as Final Dividend.

Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Employee Option Scheme

On 27 December 2018, the Company adopted an employee option
scheme (the “Employee Option Scheme”) which shall be valid and
effective for a term of five (5) years. The purposes of the Employee
Option Scheme are (i) to recognize the contributions by certain
employees or consultants of the Group and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme, Shandong Dongyue Future
Enterprise Management Consulting Services Co., Ltd.,, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the trustee will purchase existing Shares
from the market out of cash contributed by the Group of not more than
HK$800,000,000 in total at all material times and hold such Shares on
trust for the relevant employees or consultants of the Group selected
by the Board (the “Selected Employees”). The Board may, from time to
time, at its absolute discretion grant to any Selected Employee the right
to purchase the relevant Shares (the “Option”). The Selected Employee
may, when exercising the Option, elect the number of Shares which he
wishes to (i) be transferred and/or (ii) sell and receive the difference, if
any, between the sale price of the Shares and the exercise price of the
Option.

No Options have been granted under the Employee Option Scheme up
to the date of this report.

The Employee Option Scheme is not a share option scheme and is not
subject to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Employee Option Scheme are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 27 December 2018.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2018 29
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Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Zhang Zhefeng

Mr. Liu Chuangi

Mr. Zhang Bishu

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yue Rundong
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, at
each of the annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. Mr. Zhang Bishu, Mr. Zhang
Zhefeng and Mr. Yue Rundong will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has entered or has proposed to enter into any service contracts with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its fellow
subsidiaries, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Director’s rights to acquire shares

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Employee Option
Scheme” in this report, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective
spouse or minor children to acquire benefit by means of the acquisition
of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 22 to 26.

Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration of each Director is determined with reference to the
duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of
the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements.

Corporate governance practice

Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set
out on pages 47 to 66.

Environmental, Social and Governance practice

Details of the environmental, social and governance practice of the
Company are set out on pages 67 to 106.
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EEHA

Name of Director

EEME

Nature of interest

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short

positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) to be notified to the Company and the HKSE were as follows:

HERITRABSL
% of issued
share capital

B 10 S B B 1 BB
Number of Shares
or underlying Shares

KBRS
Mr. Zhang Jianhong

BELXLE

Mr. Fu Kwan

2EHEE
Mr. Liu Chuangi

RERE
Mr. Zhang Jian

SRS A
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng

& s
Corporate interest!”
EamtkEn

Beneficial interest

PEER
Corporate interest®?

IR
Corporate interest®
BEnlEnm

Beneficial interest

P AT RN
B

Beneficial interest

ExnEn
Beneficial interest
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178,277,273 (L) 844 (L)
7,147,636 (L) 0.34 (L)
616,646,818 (L) 29.20 (L)
75,634,000 (L) 3.58 (L)
7,053,454 (L) 033 (L)
397,091 (L) 0.02 (L)
650,000 (L) 0.03 (L)
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Notes:

(1) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
178,277,273 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

(2)  These Shares are directly held by Macro-Link International Investment Co.
Ltd. ("Macrolink International”) which in turn is wholly-owned by Macro-
Link Industrial Investment Limited (“Macrolink Industrial”). Macrolink
Holding, a company owned by Cheung Shek Investment Limited (“Cheung
Shek”) as to 90% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to 4.25%, respectively, wholly
owned Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu Kwan and Mrs. Xiao
Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 53.35% and 33.33%, respectively.

(3)  These Shares are directly held by Dongyue Wealth Limited which is
wholly owned by Mr. Liu Chuangi. Mr. Liu is deemed to be interested in
the 75,634,000 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Wealth Limited under the SFO.

(4) L: Long Position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the then
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the HKSE.
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HEBITHRAB)R AR B AR 15 3518 B8 A%
DR EBCHENIBIRES KA EEHIZE336
BATFEFENELMASRIEES KPS

B EEXVEBE 2R %3
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BRRER A

Name of Shareholder

YaNsvi

R ARAN R AR

EENtE

Nature of interest

(b) Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s

interests and short positions in the Shares,

underlying Shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors and

the chief executive of the Company, the following persons (not

being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an

interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares

of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part

XV of the SFO:

R HAERR DB E
Number of shares
or underlying Shares

HERITREB DL
% of issued
share capital

T EE B B B
Macrolink International

HEBE R

Macrolink Industrial

T R
Macrolink Holding

&A
Cheung Shek

BHXEZ+t
Mrs. Xiao Wenhui

Dongyue Team Limited

ERBEE
Mr. Cui Tongzheng

Dongyue Initiator Limited

N/ g

Bt

Beneficial interest”

el
Corporate interest!”

hEER
Corporate interest”

Al
Corporate interest”

O
Corporate interest!”

B

Beneficial interest?

¥R
Corporate interest

EmiEem
Beneficial interest

B0

Beneficial interest®
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616,646,818 (L)

616,646,818 (L)

616,646,818 (L)

616,646,818 (L)

616,646,818 (L)

178,277,273 (L)

156,852,363 (L)

5,162,180 (L)

156,852,363 (L)

29.20 (L)

29.20 (L)

29.20 (L)

29.20 (L)

29.20 (L)

844 (L)

743 (L)

0.24 (L)

743 (L)
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These Shares are directly held by Macrolink International which in turn
is wholly-owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a company
owned by Cheung Shek as to 90% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to 4.25%,
respectively, wholly owned Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu Kwan
and Mrs. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 53.35% and
33.33%, respectively.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
178,277,273 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Cui Tongzheng holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Initiator Limited, Mr. Cui is deemed to be interested in the
156,852,363 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Initiator Limited.

L: Long Position
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ERFNES

RATMBARERE

Name of the
Company'’s subsidiary

ZHEARANERRREE

Name of substantial shareholder
of such subsidiary

REEME

Nature of interest

(c) Interests in other members of the Group as at 31
December 2018

EEBERE AR
BRITRE
EMELRF DL
% of issued share
capital/registered
capital of

such subsidiary

IWRREREMHFRAR]
(TRERE])

Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue F&S")

AREREZERICTARAT]

Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine

Chemicals Co., Ltd.

TREEREERRAA
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd.

W RERE SO @M BR A
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine
Chemicals Co,, Ltd.

IWERRERKDENHER QA

Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen
Energy Materials Co., Ltd.

IWRREBMHABXERAR]
Shandong Dongyue Union Property
Co,, Ltd.

WERREA#EMHRN AR AT
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon
Material Co., Ltd
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HIBBENBEAR AR

Zibo Juyue Commercial Limited

TREE IEREBR AR
Chifeng Peak Copper Co., Ltd.

Trig R E{E SR BRAF
Chifeng Zhongxing Information
Technology Co., Ltd.

HREHRED SO C THRAE
Shandong Laiwu Wenhe Chemical
Co,, Ltd.

EMREABBRESREE
(B&E)

Huoer Guosi Xuri Equity Investment
Partnership (Note 1)

SRR AR A R (ME2)
Marco-link Holdings Limited (Note 2)

B REREETREBRAG
Zibo Jingrun Construction
Engineering Company Limited

RARERR QR (MEE3)
Cheung Shek Investment Holdings
Limited (Note 3)

MERFEEXEEAELE
(BREX) (M:E4)

Zibo Xiaoxi Enterprise Management
Limited Partnership (Note 4)

NC]

Corporate

NG|
Corporate

NG
Corporate

~a]

Corporate
BERAER

Limited partnership

NG
Corporate

NG
Corporate

NG
Corporate

NG|

Corporate

16.78

16.78

49
49

20
20

49

49

30

30

30

30

36
36
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Note:

(1) Huoer Guosi Xuri Equity Investment Partnership (“Huoer Guosi”) is a PRC
limited partnership principally engaged in equity investment, which
general partner is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, and
which limited partners include two executive Directors who together
hold more than 30% interest in Huoer Guosi as limited partners.
Therefore, Huoer Guosi is a connected person of the Company.

(2)  Macro-link Holding Limited ("Macro-link”) is the indirect holding company
of Macrolink International Investment Co., Ltd., a substantial Shareholder
holding approximately 29.20% of the issued share capital of the Company
and accordingly, Macro-link is a connected person of the Company.

(3) Cheung Shek Investment Holdings Limited (“Cheung Shek Investment”) is
a company established in the PRC with limited liability which is principally
engaged in investment and management of investment. Cheung Shek
Investment is directly controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan (an executive Director of
the Company). Therefore, Cheung Shek Investment is a connected person
of the Company.

(4) Zibo Xiaoxi Enterprise Management Limited Partnership (“Zibo Xiaoxi") is
a partnership established in the PRC and legally in existence. Zibo Xiaoxi
is principally engaged in corporate management, corporate management
consultancy, business consultancy and corporate services. Mr. Zhang
Jianhong and Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (both are executive Directors of the
Company) together own more than 30% of Zibo Xiaoxi. Therefore, Zibo
Xiaoxi is a connected person of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2018, no other
person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company)
had any interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group.

Saved as disclose in this report, there was no other contract of
significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year and up
to the date of this report.
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Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Directors of the
Company was interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier 9.56%
— five largest suppliers combined 23.86%
Sales
- the largest customer 1.64%
— five largest customers combined 6.99%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.
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Connected transactions

During the year, the Group had entered into connected transactions
that are subject to be reported under Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE (the “Listing Rules”) as
below:

(1) On 18 January 2018, Cheung Shek Investment Limited (“Cheung
Shek Investment”), Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Material
Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue Organic Silicone”) (@ wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company), Shandong Dongyue Future Corporate
Management Consultancy Services Co., Ltd. (‘Dongyue Corporate
Management”) and Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co., Ltd.
("Dongyue Chemicals”) entered into Capital Injection Agreement
A pursuant to which, Cheung Shek Investment agreed to
make capital contribution of approximately RMB180,519,481 to
Dongyue Organic Silicone. On the same day Zibo Xiaoxi Enterprise
Management Limited Partnership(“Zibo Xiaoxi”), Dongyue
Organic Silicone, Dongyue Corporate Management and Dongyue
Chemicals entered into Capital Injection Agreement B pursuant
to which, Zibo Xiaoxi agreed to make capital contribution of
approximately RMB234,675,325 to Dongyue Organic Silicone.
Capital Injection Agreement A and Capital Injection Agreement B
are not inter-conditional with each other.

Recently, the market conditions of organic silicone improved.
Meanwhile, the Group's organic silicone production technology
was also improved, resulting in remarkable growth of the results
of the Group's organic silicone segment which has recorded profit
since 2016, making contribution to the growth of the Group's
overall results. The Group needs to develop in aspects including
research and development, scale expansion, expansion of the
industrial chain and integration of capital and resources in relation
to its organic silicon business to cope with the existing industry
trends. Therefore, to grasp the current cycle of industry prosperity,
it calls for the need to introduce new investors to realize the
development goal of the Group. Cheung Shek Investment is
experienced in investment, the introduction of Cheung Shek
Investment will be helpful to the capital operation and resource
integration of the Dongyue Organic Silicone in the future.
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By introducing Zibo Xiaoxi as investor will facilitate the Group
to retain, attract or otherwise maintain on-going relationships
with the Directors and senior management of the Group who are
significant to the performance of the Group.

Cheung Shek Investment is directly controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan
(an executive Director of the Company). Hence, Cheung Shek
Investment is an associate of Mr. Fu Kwan. Therefore, Cheung Shek
Investment is a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
the capital contribution made by Cheung Shek Investment to
Dongyue Organic Silicone under Capital Injection Agreement A
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Jianhong and Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (both are executive
Directors of the Company) together own more than 30% of
Zibo Xiaoxi. Therefore, Zibo Xiaoxi is a connected person of
the Company. Accordingly, the capital contribution made by
Zibo Xiaoxi to Dongyue Organic Silicone under Capital Injection
Agreement B constitutes a connected transaction of the Company.

Following the completion of the transactions contemplated under
the Capital Injection Agreements, the equity interest of the Group
in Dongyue Organic Silicone will be reduced from 100% to 77%.
Further details of this transaction are set out in the Company'’s
announcement dated 18 January 2018.
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On 18 May 2018, Shandong Dongyue Chemical Co., Ltd (‘Dongyue
Chemical”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
and (Macro-link Asset Investment Co., Ltd., the Vendor and a
connected person of the Company) entered into the Share
Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which Dongyue Chemical has
agreed to purchase, and the Vendor has agreed to sell, 40%
equity interest in the Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd for a cash
consideration of RMB86,463,600 (the “Acquisition”).

Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd,, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company and is currently undergoing stable development,
has now established itself as a reliable supplier of industrial salt
to the Group, providing raw materials which are reasonably
priced and able to meet the Group's sizable demand in quantity,
stringent quality requirements and product variety.

In order to enhance internal management and strengthen supply
chain synergy, the Directors decide to conduct the Acquisition
and consider that the Acquisition is beneficial to the Group as it is
a major step for the Group to develop and extend to the supply of
upstream raw materials and thereby facilitates the improvement
of the overall planning of the Group with regard to the industry
chain as a whole and may mitigate the effect of fluctuation in the
raw material market on the production costs of the Group and
minimize market risks.

The Vendor is an associate of Macro-Link, which is an indirect
substantial shareholder of the Company, and hence the Vendor
is a connected person of the Company. Further details of this
transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 18
May 2018.
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AEBEREZE2018F12A31HIEFEEITRAER  Details of the continuing connected transactions conducted by the
FHRAIE14ABKE THHERES S5ES Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 not falling under Rule

T 14A 33 of the Listing Rules are set out below:
2018FMIFERERS FELR BREE
Continuing connected transactions for the year 2018 Annual Cap Actual
(AE®BB&ET) (AREBET)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
BT 2 bR T 22 B 1928 Framework agreement for the purchase of 62.5 23
(R EREEERR]) industrial salt from Dongying Dongyue
(FaE1) Salt (the “DDS Agreement”) (Note 1)
MILEFEEARENMEIAR AT Raw material master supply agreement for 380 311
HERMEBNEMEMLETH%  the supply of raw materials to Shandong
(PfF5E2) Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd
(Note 2)
BRI R R EA A R Renewal of raw material master supply 385 6
BRARHERMER agreement for the supply of raw materials
R FE = 155 (B 3E3) to Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon

Materials Co., Ltd (Note 3)

HERBIE IR EB M AR A FIRM Financial services master agreement for 380 370
RSB EEZRENSERTF  provision of deposit services and loan
ESEAERY G == services by Marco-link Holding Group
(P 5E4) Finance Company Limited (the “FS

Agreement”) (Note 4)

HEBIL IR E B AR AR Supplemental financial services master 500 479
REFZRBRERRBED agreement for provision of deposit
© B ARTES = 1 s BV 7R 1 services and loan services by macro-link

(w7 L rRS W) (Mf5E5)  Holding Group Finance Company Limited
(“Supplemental FS Agreement”) (Note 5)

BB EARRTAEME AR AT Raw Materials S&P Framework Agreement 37 29
(f%Eﬁ ENEINERMEIEE  with Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen (HEFELR)
284555 (M E6) Energy Materials Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue (Sale annual cap) 75
Hydrogen”) (Note 6) 110
(BEFELR)

(Purchase annual cap)
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The purpose of the DDS Agreement is for the purpose of the Group’s
production of liquid alkali and chlorine (an essential intermediate raw material
for the Group's refrigerants, fluoropolymers and organic silicone production).
Dongying Dongyue Salt is a connected person by virtue of it being an
associate of one of the Company's executive Directors, Mr. Fu Kwan and an
associate of the Company’s substantial shareholder, Macrolink International.
Macrolink Asset Investment is held as to 80% by Macrolink Holding and 20%
by Cheung Shek.

On 31 December 2016, Dongyue F&S entered into the Renewed DDS
Agreement with Dongying Dongyue Salt for three years to 31 December
2019. Details of the Renewed DDS Agreement are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 31 December 2016.

The purchase price for the industrial salt payable by the Group shall be paid
by means of bank remittance, bill of exchange or other agreed payment
method(s) with one month credit term and on normal commercial terms
which will be determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties
with reference to the then prevailing market price of industrial salt that is no
less favourable than that offered to independent third parties. There is no
provision in the Renewed DDS Agreement requiring the Group to exclusively
source industrial salt from Dongying Dongyue Salt.

On 14 February 2018 ,the Company to Shandong Dongyue Organosilicone
Materials Co., Ltd ("Dongyue Organosilicone”), a connected subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Raw Materials Master Supply Agreement, pursuant
to which the Company has agreed to supply raw materials to Dongyue
Organosilicone for its production and operations up to 31 December 2018.
Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
14 February 2018 and 27 February 2018.

Pursuant to the raw materials master supply agreement, the Company has
agreed to supply raw materials (including chloromethane, steam, waste gas
(hydrogen), liquid alkali and refrigerant) to Dongyue Organosilicone for its
production and operation purposes.

The Group is principally engaged in six business segments, one of which is
the manufacturing and sale of organic silicone products which is operated
exclusively by Dongyue Organosilicone. The supply of raw materials by
the Remaining Group (i.e. the Group excluding Dongyue Organosilicone)
to Dongyue Organosilicone has historically been driven by commercial
benefits derived from the synergy between Dongyue Organosilicone and
the other business segments of the Group since the incorporation of
Dongyue Organosilicone as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
is expected to continue after Dongyue Organosilicone has become a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company following completion of the capital
injection into Dongyue Organosilicone on 25 January 2018 (details of which
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 18 January 2018).

Dongyue Organosilicone is held as to 77% by Shandong Dongyue Future
Corporate Management Consultancy Services Co,, Ltd. (Il EREREDEE
BEARBBPRAF]) (@ wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), 13% by
Zibo Xiaoxi Enterprise Management Partnership CS1EBEHA P EETEAED
%) (“Zibo Xiaoxi’) and 10% by Cheung Shek Investment Limited (RARE R
FRZAA]) (“Cheung Shek Investment”). Zibo Xiaoxi is a PRC limited partnership
in which Mr. Zhang Jianhong and Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (both are executive
Directors) together own more than 30% interest. Cheung Shek Investment
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Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

is directly controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan (an executive Director). Therefore,
each of Zibo Xiaoxi and Cheung Shek Investment is a connected person of
the Company at the issuer level. Accordingly, Dongyue Organosilicone is a
connected subsidiary of the Company.

Since the agreement expired on 31 December 2018, the Company had, on
20 December 2018 , entered into the renewal raw materials master supply
agreement with Dongyue Organosilicone (see Note (3) below).

Reference to note (1) above, the raw materials master supply agreement
expired on 31 December 2018, the Company had, on 20 December 2018,
entered into the renewal raw materials master supply agreement with
Dongyue Organosilicone, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to
supply raw materials to Dongyue Organosilicone for its production and
operations up to 31 December 2019. Details of the transaction are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 20 December 2018.

On 18 December 2017, the Company and Marco-link Holding Finance
Company Limited (the "Marco-link Finance”) entered into the Financial
Services Master Agreement, pursuant to which Marco-link Finance has agreed
to provide the Group with deposit services and loan services on normal
commercial terms in its ordinary and usual course of business for a term of
one year from 18 December 2017 to 17 December 2018. Details of the FS
Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 18 December
2017.

The FS Agreement will provide the Group with a new means to utilize its
surplus cash at a low capital risk and obtain financings at a lower financing
cost, and thereby improve the overall efficiency of the use of its funds. The
FS Agreement does not preclude the Group from obtaining deposit services,
loan services or other financial services from other financial institutions.
Marco-link Finance is a connected person of the Company, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Marco-link Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds
approximately 29.20% of the issued share capital of the Company. In addition,
Marco-link Holdings Limited is indirectly controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan (an
executive Director).

The Board later expected that the original annual cap was not be sufficient,
therefore, on 26 July 2018, the Company and Macro-link Finance entered into
the Supplemental Financial Services Master Agreement (“Supplemental FS
Agreement”) (Further details of the supplemental FS Agreement are set out in
note (4) below to revise the annual cap).

Reference to note (4) above, on 26 July 2018, the Company and Macro-link
Finance entered into the Supplemental FS Agreement, pursuant to which the
parties have agreed to, revise the original annual cap to the revised annual
cap in an amount of RMB500 million. The parties have also agreed to revise
the duration of the agreement to the period commencing 26 July 2018 and
ending 25 July 2019 to which the revised annual cap will apply.
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Note 6: On 1 March 2018, the Company and Dongyue Hydrogen entered into the
Raw Materials S&P Framework Agreement. Pursuant to the Agreement, the
Company has agreed to (i) supply raw materials to Dongyue Hydrogen for
its production and operation purposes (the “DY Raw Materials”), and (ii)
purchase raw materials and products from Dongyue Hydrogen for the Group's
production and on-selling to independent customers (the "Hydrogen Raw
Materials and Products”). Further details of the transaction are set out in the
announcement dated 1 March 2018.

In relation to the procurement of Hydrogen Raw Materials and Products,
the Company has, since the sale of its machinery, equipment and related
patents for the production of Hydrogen Raw Materials and Products, required
a new and reliable source of supply for such raw materials and products
for its production process and for on-selling to its customers. Dongyue
Hydrogen possesses the machinery, equipment and patents for such in-house
production and hence, by entering into the Raw Materials S&P Framework
Agreement with Dongyue Hydrogen, the Company will be able to secure
a stable source of supply for such products at a discount to the fair market
price for the supply of such products for on-sale to customers and for such
raw materials at Cost-plus Approach, for production. With respect to DY Raw
Materials, the entering into the Raw Materials S&P Framework Agreement
will provide Dongyue Hydrogen with the necessary DY Raw Materials it
requires for continued development and production of hydrogen energy and
hydrogen membrane materials and fuel cell and chloralkali products.

Dongyue Hydrogen is held as to 40% by Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New
Materials Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, 30% by
Huoer Guosi Xuri Equity Investment Partnership, (a connected person of the
Company) and 30% by Macro-link Holdings Limited (a connected person of
the Company), therefore, Dongyue Hydrogen is a connected subsidiary of the
Company,

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the INEDs. The INEDs confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from independent third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board engaged the auditors of the Company and the auditor has

confirmed the requirements set out in rule 14A.56 in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions.
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Related party transactions

The details of the related party transaction during the year are set out
in the note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. The related
party transactions are also the connected transactions (including the
continuing connected transactions) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, which have been complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float of the issued shares of
the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited will retire as auditors of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their offices, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 27 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dongyue Group Limited (the
“Company”) recognizes their mission of creating values and maximizing
returns to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), while
at the same time fulfilling their corporate responsibilities. To this end,
we strive to promote and uphold the highest standard of corporate
governance.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company with the adoption and improvement of the various
procedures and documentation which are detailed in this report. To
the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has
adopted and complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the
“Code") during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date
of this report, except for deviation regarding the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer, the details of which have been disclosed in the
relevant paragraphs below in this report.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), and oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic direction and performance. The Board delegates
the authority and responsibility to the Group’s management for the
management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board's Committees. The composition of
the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a good balance of
expertise, skills and experience which can meet the requirements of the
business of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
report, there was no change in the structure of the Board, which
currently comprises nine Directors and its composition is set out as
follows:
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Executive Directors (“EDs”):

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Fu Kwan
Mr. Liu Chuangi

Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Zhang Bishu
Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
Mr. Yue Rundong

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors’
and Senior Management's Profile” section on pages 22 to 26 of this

annual report.

The Company has three INEDs representing one-third of the Board.
At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant to
Rule 3.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE
(the “Listing Rules”). The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his independence and considers that all the INEDs are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules.
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During the year under review, the Board was met regularly to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group, and to review and approve the Group's annual and
interim results, as well as corporate governance, business operations,
financial, capital, remuneration, acquisition and spin-off. During
the year under review, nine Board meetings and an annual general
meeting ("AGM") were held. Apart from the AGM, one extraordinary
general meeting was held by the Company for approving the spin-
off of Dangyue Organosilicone. The attendance of each Director at the
Board meetings, the AGM and the EGM is set out as follows. In addition,
certain matters relating to entering of the continuing connected
transactions and equity transaction agreement, approval of the spin-
off proposal of Dongyue Organosilicone were dealt with by written
resolutions of the directors.

During the year, the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings
is set out as follows:

HE BT B R HERE
EEEERBARE BAEXRE BRlXE
Number of
Board meetings Attendance Attendance
attended/held of the AGM of the EGM
BITES EDs:
RIERTE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 6/9 v/ X
BELLE Mr. Fu Kwan 3/9* X X
AEFRE Mr. Liu Chuangi 5/9* X X
R IE S E Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 9/9 v v/
RN ESLAE Mr. Zhang Bishu 8/9 X X
SRS A Mr. Zhang Jian 7/9 v X
BYFHTES: INEDs:
TREBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 9/9 v/ v/
HBEEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 9/9 v X
EEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 8/9 X X

* BRAERFEEZERKNBREREHHRKELEE

ELRH -

*

Mr. Fu and Mr. Liu appointed representatives to attend the Board meetings on
their behalf during their absence.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has dealt
with matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual
and interim results, risk management, dividend policies, corporate
governance, capital, financial, investment and remuneration. The Board
has delegated the day-to-day operations of the Group to the senior
management under the supervision of the Board. In addition, the
Chairman held the discussion with all the INEDs without the presence
of other EDs to exchange views on matters concerning the business
development and internal control of the Group.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held regularly and as required
by business needs. At least 14 days' notice of regular Board meetings
(or reasonable notice for all other meetings) is normally given
to all Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the
Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and
the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at
least 3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

In facilitating the Directors to discharge their responsibilities as
stipulated under the Listing Rules, the Directors have been provided
with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail and with appropriate insurance cover to protect them
from potential risks arising from legal actions against them while they
discharge their duties.

Directors’ continuous professional development

The Directors are briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Directors
are provided with written materials to develop and refresh their
professional skills. On 24 May 2018, the Company organized for the
Directors an in-house workshop (the “Workshop”) on the Listing Rules.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training on continuous professional development
during the year under review:

EBEZHEEEREN
EE - RAR
ERNERER
Received training on
Corporate Governance/
Updates on laws,

rules and regulations

BiTES EDs:

SRIERSTE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan v/
EFEE Mr. Liu Chuangi v/
R E 4 Mr. Zhang Zhefeng /
RMNBLEE Mr. Zhang Bishu v/
RIS AE Mr. Zhang Jian v/
BYKBITES: INEDs:

TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
B A Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
ERmRAEE Mr. Yue Rundong v/

ESELRERTHNER

EERBERSRELEEANERERILTY
BRENEE - Rt - CXRERZEGRA(HS
BRE)EHARFANCEERBRRELERIALK
NEREESTTRIMAREANNEBRE -

FEHBENARECEERLZE G | —&F 4
BEEA ©

Directors’ responsibilities in corporate governance

The Directors recognize the importance and their responsibilities for
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. In this accord,
the corporate governance committee is responsible for, among
others, reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and the Company's compliance with the Code and the
relevant disclosure in this report.

More details are set out under the relevant paragraphs of the section
headed “Corporate Governance Committee” of this report.
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Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed
they have complied with the required standard set out in the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company.

Roles of chairman and chief executive officer

Code A2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Jianhong is both the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the
same position provides the Group with stronger and more consistent
leadership and allows for more effective planning. Further, the Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power, which
has been closely monitored by the Board, which comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals. The Board has full confidence in Mr. Zhang
and believes that the current arrangement is beneficial to the business
prospect of the Group.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which
would make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
including the appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the
Company. The Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to
have expertise in relevant area to make contribution to the Company
and to have sufficient time to participate in the decision making
process of the Company.
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Except Mr. Zhang Zhefeng and Mr. Zhang Bishu, other EDs of the
Company did not enter into service contracts with the Company. Mr.
Zhang Zhefeng and Mr. Zhang Bishu entered into the service contracts
for a term of two years commencing from 2 May 2017. In addition, the
INEDs signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
approximately two years commencing from 1 January 2018.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”), one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles. Accordingly, all Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM under the
Articles.

Board committees

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an Audit
Committee, a Nomination Committee, a Corporate Governance
Committee and a Risk Management Committee, each of which has its
specific written terms of reference, which have been available on the
Company’s and the HKSE's websites, and is chaired by INEDs (except
the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee).
To further enhance independence, all the committees (except the
Corporate Governance Committee) include a majority of INEDs.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the Company's two INEDs
and one ED, namely, Mr. Yang Xiaoyong (being the Chairman of the
Committee), Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Zhang Jianhong.
The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee cover,
among other things, the review of the Group's policy and structure
for the remuneration for all the Directors and senior management of
the Group, the approval of the remuneration for all the EDs and senior
management of the Group, including the granting of options over
Shares to the Group’s employees and the EDs under the Company's
Employee Option Scheme (if any), and the recommendation to the
Board for the remuneration for the INEDs.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, two meetings of the

NREH: @ SRERNEEBERESAT Remuneration Committee were held. The attendance of each member
is set out as follows:

2REE BITER
Number of
meetings
attended/held

ZEEKE : Committee member:
BB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 2/2
TREBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/2
RIERTE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 2/2

SHLETEE2018F 12831 A P BEEN#H
TEERASESEEEABNET M RIESER
R E - KEMEBEKENEEARRME TR
EEQREEABVIIFNTESTTIMNESR - It
SN REGREBENRITEMNTEEREASER
EEBABNTWNRAEEHFMIERET -

SEEEBEAEREE018F12A31BIEEENE
BHEEEH T T

During the meeting, the remuneration of the EDs and the Group's
senior management for the financial year ended 31 December 2018
and the Employee Option Scheme were approved. The members also
approved the recommendation to the Board about the remuneration
for the INEDs by the written resolution of the member. In addition, the
members discussed and reviewed the remuneration for the Directors
and the Group’s senior management and the Group’s remuneration
related matters.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

FMEECET) AE

Number of

Remuneration bands (HKD) persons

5,000,001,%8 7T 25,500,000 7T 5,000,001 to 5,500,000 1
10,500,001 JLZ 11,000,000 7T 10,500,001 to 11,000,000 1
15,500,001 7 7T 2 16,000,000/ 7T 15,500,001 to 16,000,000 1

RiE ET AR BT 81678
Al &= EBiE B /i
11 K12

THRENEEESFHI®
—FHBEN B ERKH
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
financial statements.
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee comprises the Company’s three INEDs, namely,
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (being the Chairman of the Committee
with appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise), Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Yue
Rundong.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
annual reports and accounts, half-yearly reports and accounts and
to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board, to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors. The Audit Committee
is also responsible for reviewing the financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group and to give suggestions in these
regards.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year ended 31
December 2018 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

HE BT
ZEEERRE
Number of
Committee
meeting
attended/held

LZEGKE - Committee member:
TREBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 5/5
HEBEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 4/5
BEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 5/5

ARRINEZEMEASERREREASTEG H

A AT A Ay
FEEE

The external auditors of the Company and the related management of
the Group also attended these meetings.
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During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2018, the Audit Committee has performed the works which are set out
as follows:

perform pre-audit meeting in respect of the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018;

discuss and review auditing, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of the annual/
interim reports, accounts and the related results announcements,
before recommending them to the Board for approval;

approve the remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditors and its relevant terms of
engagement in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2017; and

review the external audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance in relation to the financial reporting.

approve the independent financial advisor letter in relation to the
proposed spin-off of Dongyue Organosilicone.

On 30 November 2018, the Audit Committee conducted pre-audit
meeting with the external auditors in respect of the audit of the
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2018. The Audit Committee also had a meeting with
management on 21 March 2019 to review the accounting standards
and practices adopted by the Group and to discuss matters regarding
internal control and financial reporting including the review of the
Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018 before
proposing to the Board for approval.
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Nomination committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference on 18 March 2012 to be responsible for the appointment
of new Director(s) of the Company and other related matters. Mr.
Zhang Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
were appointed as the members of the Nomination Committee.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity) of the Board, to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become members of the Board, to assess the independence
of the INEDs, to review the policy (the “Policy”) concerning the diversity
of the Board and the measurable objectives that the Board has adopted
for implementing the Policy and to make the relevant disclosure on
the progress of achieving those objectives in the corporate governance

report of the Company.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended

—REgH®%  SKEMERBERNOT 31 December 2018 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

gREERR
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEEKE : Committee member:
RIERTE Mr. Zhang Jianhong /
TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
BRB LA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong /
et LEeKBilm T ESeNEKIERE During the meeting, the members discussed matters relating to the

H I mESSELEBEZEAEZE 5t
%%A;ﬂzé Zlt RERAFRKELEEES
Efﬁ%@? i 2% X R FE SR A ) AT ORI 8 B AR R

- [FIFFIR AT T B S MITE EMEALE -

composition of the Board and make recommendation thereon to the
Board for consideration, the diversity of the Board, the re-election of the
directors at AGM, the recommendation of the measurable objectives
that the Board should adopt for implementing the Policy as well as
reviewed the independence of the INEDs.
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In addition, a summary of the Policy for the diversity of the Board is set

out as follows:

A.

Policy Statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. A truly diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be taken into account in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of
the Board.

Measurable Objectives

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
and recommend to the Board for adoption.

The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity
of Directors, in terms of skills, experiences, knowledge, expertise,
culture, independence, age and gender.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the Corporate
Governance Report, on the Board’s composition under diversified
perspectives, and monitor the implementation of the Policy.

A summary of the Policy, together with the measurable objectives
set for implementing the Policy and the progress made towards
achieving those objectives will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Review of the Policy
The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate,
and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.
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The Board has adopted the following measurable objectives during the
year ended 31 December 2018:

Inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
academic, research or working experience (outside of PRC);

ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors; and

inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries.

During the year, the Board achieved the above measurable objectives
by which the Board had included both male and female candidates
with overseas academic, research or working experience in other
industries in the selection of Directors.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a Corporate Governance Committee
with terms of reference on 21 March 2013. Mr. Zhang Jianhong was
appointed as the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
and Mr. Liu Chuangi and Mr. Zhang Bishu were appointed as the
members of the Corporate Governance Committee. The primary
duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are to develop and
review policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors, to review
and monitor policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and to review the compliance with the Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Reports. The Corporate
Governance Committee held one meeting during the year under
review. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

SEHERR
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEEKE - Committee member:

SRIER L Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
EFEE Mr. Liu Chuangi v/
RN ELE Mr. Zhang Bishu v/
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During the meeting, the members discussed and reviewed matters
relating to the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance, the training and continuous professional development of
Directors, and the Corporate Governance Report.

Risk Management Committee

The Company established a Risk Management Committee with written
terms of reference on 13 August 2015 to review and advise the risk
management and internal control of the Company and other related
matters. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen was appointed as the chairman
of the Risk Management Committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr.
Yue Rundong were appointed as the members of the Risk Management
Committee. The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee are to
consider, review and approve the risk management policies, identify the
risk of the Group, approve major decisions affecting the Group’s risk profile
or exposure, consider the effectiveness of decision making processes in
crisis and emergency situations and review the effectiveness and resources
of the internal control systems of the Group.

The Risk Management Committee held two meetings during the year
under review. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

HFE BT
ZEEEERRE
Number of
Committee meeting

attended/held
LZEGKE - Committee member:
TREBEAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/2
HEBELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 2/2
EEREE Mr. Yue Rundong 2/2
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During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2018, the members discussed and reviewed matters relating to
the Company’s internal control measures and polices and its
implementation, and the internal control report (prepared by the
independent consulting firm), before recommending them to the Board
for approval.
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Respective responsibilities of Directors and
external auditors

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows. The external auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the financial
statements prepared by the Directors and report the opinion solely to the
members of the Company as a body and for no other purpose.

Risk management and internal control

The Board of Directors is responsible for assessing and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing to accept
in reaching its strategic objectives and to ensure that the Group has
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The Board of Directors has supervised
the management’s design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems. The Board confirmed that
it is responsible for establishing risk management and internal control
systems for the Group and will continue to monitor the system and
ensure to review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its principal subsidiaries at least
once a year.

The Company’s Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee have also confirmed that they have reviewed
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and its principal subsidiaries, covering all important
monitoring aspects of the Group, including strategic, financial,
operational and compliance monitoring.

The Company has set up internal audit function. The Company has also
conducted procedures of risk management, which mainly include:

1) identify risk and form risk list;

2) Based on the possibility of various types of potential risks and
the concerns of the management of the Group, combined with
the risk of financial losses, make risk assessment on the impact
of operational efficiency, sustainable development capacity and
reputation, and prioritize them;
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Identify risk management measures for significant risks, conduct
evaluations of the design of risk management measures, and
improve the deficiencies through formulating measures;

Develop risk management manuals for risk management, identify
the responsibilities for the management, Board of Directors, Audit
Committee and Risk Management Committee in risk management,
and continuously monitor risk management;

The management has reported to the Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee on the review and assessment of risk
management, major risk factors and related response measures.

However, risk management and internal control systems are designed

to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failing to reach a business

goal, and to make reasonable, not absolute, warranties of no significant

misrepresentation or loss.

Set out below is the Company’s procedures and internal controls for

handling and distributing inside information:

The Company acknowledges its obligations under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The first principle
is that the information should be immediately published when
the Company is aware of and/or when the related decision is
made, unless such inside information falls under the Safe Harbour
Provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

In dealing with the matters, adhere to the Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information promulgated by the Securities
and Futures Commission in June 2012 and the “Recent Economic
Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of Listed Issuers”
issued by the SEHK in 2008; and

Unauthorized use of confidential or inside information has been
expressly prohibited in the internal system.
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The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems during the year under review and considered
them to be effective and adequate. The Board will continuously
improve and monitor the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems.

External auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total remuneration for
the audit services provided by the external auditors amounted to
HK$2,800,000 (approximately RMB2,400,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the total remuneration for
the permissible non-audit services provided by the external auditors
amounted to approximately HK$600,000 (approximately RMB514,000)
which is for the review of the interim financial report of the Group for the
six months period ended 30 June 2018.

The re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
has been recommended by the Audit Committee and endorsed by the
Board and is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM.

Shareholders’ rights

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene extraordinary
general meetings ("EGM")

Pursuant to the Articles, one or more registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company (the
"EGM Requisitionists”) carrying right of voting at the general meetings
can deposit a written requisition to convene an EGM to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the registered office, which is presently
situated at Vistra (Cayman) Limited, P.O. Box 31119, Grand Pavillion,
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands, or its office in Hong Kong, which is presently situated at Unit
02, 15/F, Capital Centre, 151
EGM Requisitionists must state in their requisition the businesses of the

Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The

EGM to be transacted and such requisition must be signed by all the
EGM Requisitionists.
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Promptly after confirmation that the EGM Requisitionists’ requisition is
in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene
the EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders
in accordance with all the relevant statutory requirements. According
to the Articles, the EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of the requisition. If within twenty-one days of the deposit of
the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the
EGM Requisitionists may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by them as a result of failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists by the Company.

Procedures for the Shareholders to put forward proposals
at a general meeting

To put forward proposals at AGM or EGM, the Shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact
information to the Board or the Company Secretary at Unit 02, 15/F,
Capital Center, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified and upon confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Company Secretary will request the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

At least 14 clear days' notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM

At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company in EGM or an ordinary or
special resolution of the Company in AGM

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the
Company's website www.dongyuechem.com.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

Unit 02, 15/F

Capital Centre,

151 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Fax: 2180-7524

Email: carrie_dy@hotmail.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at any general
meetings of the Company.

Investor relations
Communication channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
Shareholders, the Company has established various channels to
facilitate and enhance communication:

the AGM provides a forum for the Shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board; and

updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company's website to enable the Shareholders and the investor
community to have timely access to information about the Group.

The Chairman and the Directors (including the chairmen and/or the

members of the various Board Committees) are available at AGM to
answer questions raised by the Shareholders.
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KANBERNHNEE Change in the constitutional documents of
the Company

ROBEFENEEAREBE AATERXM  During the year under review and up to the date of this report, there

f ST {a] B &) o has been no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.
REESE On behalf of the Board

E Zhang Jianhong

RER Chairman

RE ARFEFE - 20193278 The People’s Republic of China, 27 March 2019
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About the Report
Time Frame

From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018, partial contents are
beyond the above time frame.

Publication Cycle

The environmental, social and governance report of Dongyue
Group Limited is an annual report published on an annual basis.

Scope of report

The report covers the headquarters of Dongyue Group Limited
and its subsidiaries including:

Shangdong Dongyue Chemical Co., Limited, Shandong Dongyue
Polymers Co., Limited, Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials
Co., Ltd., Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd,,
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd, Inner
Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Inner
Mongolia Dongyue Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Chifeng HuaSheng
Mining Co., Ltd., Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd., Dongying
Dongyue Precision Chemicals Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Wenhe
Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd,, Shandong Dongyue Union Property
Co., Ltd., Huangtai Dongyue International Trade Co., Ltd., Hong
Kong Trulene International Trade Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue
Future Hydrogen Energy Materials Co., Ltd., Shandong Boda
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate
Development Co,, Ltd., Zibo Herun Shuiwu company Limited.

Basis of preparation

The report has been prepared in reference to Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

Explanations on Short Names

For ease of presentation, “Dongyue Group Limited” is expressed as
“Dongyue Group”, “the Group”, “the Company” and “we”, “our” or
“us” in the report.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2018 67



BRI

CHERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

68

BEBEHA

R E TSI A EF BB R KRR EUR -
HAP BB MEFRAE LA - BIAFRS
% - FEFHOMBEEAARESENL - 55
BRARRSD ©

BEEMA R

ARBERPRXAR - EFRTHFMUNAT ¢

BARZ G
http://sc.hkex.com.hk

REEBEER QAWML

http://www.dongyuechem.com/

REEBERIE —2-N\FFH

Explanations on Data

Historical data cited in the report is the final statistical data. In case
of any discrepancy between financial data and annual report, the
latter shall prevail. Unless otherwise stated, Renminbi is used in
the report as functional currency.

Access to report
The report is prepared in Chinese and English, which can be

downloaded electronically from:

The website of HKSE
http://sc.hkex.com.hk

The website of Dongyue Group Limited
http://www.dongyuechem.com/
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2 Stakeholders Engagement
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Dongyue Group attaches great importance to the communication
with stakeholders by using various channels to disseminate
the Group's social responsibility philosophy and practices, and
understand the requirements of stakeholders, and taking measures

to meet the reasonable expectations and pursuits of stakeholders.

HEEER

Expectations and requirements
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Ways of communication and response

BB EHE

Government and regulators

R=R

Shareholders
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Implementing the national policies, laws
and regulations

Promoting local economic development

Driving local employment

Production safety
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BRES

Returns on investment
Compliant operation
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Submitting the documents
Offering advice and suggestions
Special subject report
Inspection & supervision
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SEER
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Company announcement
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Special subject report
Field investigation
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Ways of communication and response
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Customers and partners
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Environment
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Community and the public

REEBEARQT =

HOERL

MERE

BEERERY

HEITEER

Fulfilling the contractual obligations in
accordance with the law

Integrity operation

Quality products and services

Promoting industry development
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Compliant emission

Energy conservation and emission
reduction

Protecting the ecology
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Rights and interests protection
Occupational health

Salaries and benefits

Career development

HELRRE

%ﬁzﬁ?&%%

EERFER

Improving the community environment

Participating in public welfare
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Open and transparent information
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Business communication
Customer feedback
Exchange & discussion
Negotiation & cooperation
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Work report

Filing and submission
Investigation & inspection
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Workers' congress
Collective consultation

Democratic communication platform
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Company website
Company announcement
Interview & exchange
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3 Determination of Major Issues

In order to enhance the pertinence and responsiveness of
the report, the Company identified the subject of sustainable
development and determined the significance in accordance with
the requirements of Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (ESG Guide), to ensure
that the information disclosed in the report covers the key issues
which are related with the Company’s development and the
stakeholders are concerned about.

CHERELAREHRERE

Selection process of environmental, social and governance issues

BERR
Sources of issues
~ AREEERS
— Proposed by management of the Company
—RHMNBER DI
— Proposed by internal and external experts based on analysis
—EEREEOWN
— Analysis of media information
— B RSN R ER A ST
— Research on benchmarking at home and abroad
— R ERERER
— Criteria and Guidance on Social Responsibility

Selection criteria

— BB RA AR

— Contribution to sustainable development
—N=EES R
— Common concern of stakeholders
— e EEREREREN RS
— Emphasized in social responsibility— related guidance
—NMERRERERTE
- Meeting the strategic development needs of the Company

BEMHAESR

Determination of materiality
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R&D innovation
EERE
TR RER Production safety
Promoting industry development SiEE
B THEm{RE Compliance operations
Protection of employees'rights SRR FR
ETKE Occupational health

Promoting employee development ﬁ;ﬁﬁ'ﬁé’g{fﬁﬁ
Economical use of resources
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Resources

g

L
Q
o

HrEmERE
Supplier management
FHFBERRRIZ
Intellectual property management
HE AR RREE
Environmental management

B AE R BE

Energy conservation and carbon

emission reduction

mEE

Product quality

SRR T EERE

m

Importance for stakeholders

$17)

Social contribution

HAREEERE High
Importance to the Company
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4 Responsible Operation

Over the past years, Dongyue Group persistently adhered to
the principle of legal and compliance operations, continued
to enhance product and service quality, actively performed its
responsibilities towards upstream and downstream stakeholders in
the industry chain of suppliers and customers etc. and integrated
responsible operation into the Company’s development.

4.1 ESG Management

Upholding the concept of sustainable development and
ensuring efficient ESG management, the Company developed
a ESG management system guided by the Board, organized
by task groups and implemented by relevant functional
departments. The ESG management system also identified the
specific division of work and responsibilities at the ESG levels.

NRESESEUMGEXEABENFTRIARK  BEME
gﬁé’i BESEHNEE HEEHEEEREETEER
The Board of the Company reviewed and decided on
major social responsibility matters, including formulating
relevant strategies and guidelines and performing special
review on the annual social responsibility report.

REEREEMEBRIEMN IHENE EFHARE
ESGEE T/ SREGEHFERE HEREA/HRE 4
SEIENERKE - AABRBIERS -

The Company established a special task group in the
investor relations department for coordinating ESG
management related tasks on a daily basis, including the
preparation of the annual ESG report, collection of social
responsibility performance indicators and organization of
training and promotion.

RAZBEBPAIRS FARNRERIBESCGHENRTOE
B EMHXEREREE  AREERESRES - UR
HEWESCHBEBNARE -

Respective functional departments and subsidiaries
of the Company were responsible for the centralized
management of ESG issues, and regular reports of
relevant management initiatives, performance indicators
and best practices and organizing all types of ESG
activities.
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4.2 Integrity and Compliance

Integrity and compliance are key issues with respect to
corporate governance, and serve as the cornerstone for the
Company’s sustainable development. In strict compliance
with the Opinions on Issues concerning the Application
of Law in the Handling of Criminal Cases of Commercial
Briberies, Interpretation on Several Issues concerning the
Application of Law in the Handling of Criminal Cases of
Embezzlement and Bribery and other laws and regulations,
the Company continued to improve its governance
mechanism against corruption and strengthened its
institutional improvement on an ongoing basis. The
Company developed the Dongyue Group Risk Management
Manual to improve its risk management system, and to
identify and control the Company’s risk. The Company also
developed the Dongyue Group Regulations on Anti-fraud
Management to regulate employee professional behavior
and prevent fraud.

In 2018, the Company issued the Notice on Integrity and
Safety for Party Members and Cadres of the Group during
the Chinese New Year which stipulated that eight rules must
be strictly followed by all cadres of the Group and required
special task department to strengthen discipline and business
unit management during the holiday. Meanwhile, the
Company entered into the Letter of Responsibility regarding
Honest Business Cooperation with cooperative units, and
entered into the Letter of Responsibility regarding Integrity
and Discipline of Party Members and Cadres and Members
in the Special Tasks Department with party members and
cadres and members in the special tasks department in an
attempt to raise the integrity awareness of the cooperative
units and its employees. In addition, the Company also issued
Rules regarding Weddings and Funerals of Party Members
and Cadres of Dongyue Group which required all cadres to
be commit themselves to integrity and discipline and report
to the Company when arranging such events.
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The Company established reporting boxes and reporting
hotlines to encourage the reporting of fraud, illegal and
corruptive conducts. Establishment of systems, integrity
education, reporting supervisions and other approaches also
facilitated the healthy development of the Company. During
the reporting period, the Group has not seen any corruption
cases.

Ensuring product quality

The Company established clear procedures and processing
specifications for quality control and established rules
such as the Quality System Management Manual, Quality
Management System and Measures for the Implementation
of Quality Management Assessment based on the Product
Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China so as to make
strict control of the production and operation process in all
respects such as raw material purchasing, manufacturing
and quality inspection. In 2018, in order to strengthen
quality control on equipment and implement the system
of responsibility, the Company drafted and revised the
Quality Management System on Procurement of the Group'’s
Equipment.

The Company has strictly executed the product inspection
process, carried out sampling analysis of products following
national standards and the finished product inspection
procedures, and disposed the unaccepted products in
accordance with the Nonconforming Product Control &
Management Procedures to ensure the provision of high-
quality products to customers. In 2018, there has not been
any products recall of the Group.

In addition, the Company valued communication with
customers and was committed to offering quality service
to customers. The Group has, through a variety of channels,
maintained the long-term and stable contact details
with customers, such as phone call, mail communication,
customer visit, customer annual meeting etc. Meanwhile,
the Company attached great importance to the feedbacks
from customers, conducted timely investigation, reason
analysis, measure formulation and feedbacks regarding to
the 39 customer complaints received in the year according
to the Customer Complaint Management Measures, and kept

tracking and improving such measures.
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4.4 Assuring supply

In line with the Dongyue Group Materials Purchasing
Process, the Company strengthened the management of all
aspects of procurement, and ensured the smooth production
through effective control of the supply of materials. In
2018, under the new normal of environmental supervision
and inspection, the Company positively optimized the
management on transport vehicles to cope with emission
treatment, effectively reducing environmental and social risks
associated with supply chains.

At the same time, the Company optimized the relevant
process system through a detailed evaluation criteria for
suppliers on the basis of the Supplier Management System,
SO as to assist suppliers to improve their performance and
achieve win-win cooperation with suppliers. As at the end
of the reporting period, the Group has 807 suppliers, 440 of
which are in Shandong Province, and other major suppliers in
23 provinces and cities including Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Shanghai,
Beijing and Hebei. The number of qualified suppliers reached
807, 520 of which are producers, represents a significant
increase as compared to 2017.

e it E 5
Geographical Distribution of Suppliers
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23R
43%
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5 Led by Innovation

Dongyue Group upholds the national strategy of “Made in
China 2025" as its core guidelines while continuously optimizing
its technological innovation system, actively promoting the
development and innovation of fluorosilicone technologies and
products, and vigorously converting innovative ideas into new
products. Meanwhile, the Company actively carries out technical
cooperation and exchanges and integrates the internal and
external resources to enhance its industrial influence and lead the
development of fluorosilicone technologies. In 2018, the Company
invested a total of RMB177,360,000 in its R&D activities.

5.1 Technological Innovation Prioritized

Technological innovation has always been the driving force
that keeps Dongyue Group moving forward. The Company
continues to carry out various product and technology
innovation activities, improve the level of the fluorochemical
industry and organic silicone industry, and promote
downstream processing and manufacturing of fluorine
materials.

The Company improves its technological R&D management
expertise in accordance with the "Administrative Measures
for Investments in the Construction, Refurbishment and
Expansion Projects of Dongyue Group”, and guided
its affiliates and subsidiaries through the certification
process of their management systems for intellectual
property management specifications and standards under
the “Intellectual Property Management Standards for
Business Enterprises (20490-2013)" to further promote the
standardization of its intellectual property management.
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5.2

5.2

For application, evaluation and awarding of patents,
Dongyue Group has formulated four set of administrative
guidelines, namely “Patent Management System of Dongyue
Group”, “Application Process for Invention and Innovation”,
“Patent Appraisal & Approval System” and “Incentive Scheme
for Technological Innovation in Dongyue Group” to make
clear details in respect of the review of patents during
the application process and after authorization, incentives
for technological innovation, etc., thus strengthening
the Company’s patents, inventions and innovations
management. In 2018, the Group received patent subsidies
totaling RMB2.25 million, applied for 26 invention patents (two
of them were designated as applications in US), and was
granted with 31 authorizations, among which the Method of
Soap-free Emulsion Polymerization of Polyvinylidene Fluoride
Used as Electrode Binder for Lithium Batteries invented by
Huaxia Shenzhou won the Excellence Prize of China Patent
Award, and the “Hydrolysis Method of Organic Chlorosilane”
invented by Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co.,
Ltd. won the first prize of Patent Award in Zibo City and the
first prize of Patent Award of Shandong Province. As of the
end of the reporting period, the Group has applied for a total
of 508 patents and held 362 valid patents.

Marketization of Innovative Achievements

Dongyue Group remains market-oriented, and advances its
scientific research and development process by combining
overall planning and key breakthroughs. While advanced the
stable production of innovative products such as chlorine
alkali ion membrane, fuel cell membrane and functional
release membrane, the Company further optimized
production technology and improved production efficiency
by improving the stability of its production process, online
monitoring of the process and operational efficiency.
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Chlorine Alkali lon Membrane:

Through the building of the numerical simulation
methods for various physical fields, the Company
constructed the composite ion membrane commonly
used in the current chlorine alkali industry, bringing the
simulation study on the ion membrane closer to the
actual production process.

During the year, the Company actively carried out
its nation-wide layout of domestically produced
membranes and promoted the construction of the
demonstration sites, playing a prominent market-
leading role, with which it snatched 23 new customers
of chlorine alkali ion membrane with about 170,000
tons of supporting chlorine alkali equipment.

Fuel Cell Membrane:

The Company studied membrane formation process
with different thicknesses and conducted related
performance tests, laying a solid foundation for the
development of ultra-thin membranes;

The Company developed new additives which can
effectively reduce the permeability and increase the
modulus of the membrane, opening up a new direction
for further improving the performance of ultra-thin
membranes;

It accomplished a trial production capacity of 2000
m? with non-stop operation for one week, with a
membrane thickness deviation of +2um, paving the way
for mass production of hydrogen fuel cell membranes.

Functional Release Membrane:

The Company used the manufacturer’s equipment
to prepare the test sample with the temperature
and corrosion resistance performance well up to the
requirements, creating conditions for offering back
membranes with different grades of peeling strength in
the future.
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5.3 Combination of Production, Study and

Research

The cultivation and introduction of technical talents has
always been the top priority in the Group's scientific research
and development venture. Dongyue Group makes clear
the incentive mechanism for scientific and technological
innovation and stimulates the initiatives and enthusiasm
of scientific and technological personnel to carry out
innovation research through the development of a series of
incentive mechanisms e.g. the “Administrative Measures for
Scientific Research Incentives” and the "Methods for Research
Achievements Incentives and Selection of Outstanding
Scientific Research Talents in the Research Institute”.
Meanwhile, the Company attaches remarkable importance to
the construction of a R&D team of technical talents, and has
established Dongyue Research Institute with 84 researchers,
including 6 doctoral postgraduates and 21 master
postgraduates. In addition, each subsidiary of the Group has
its own R&D team with a total of 212 researchers, including 4
doctoral postgraduates and 100 master postgraduates.

The Company cooperates with numerous research institutes
with the aim of gathering the internal and external talent
resources and advancing its R&D activities towards a high
level. In 2018, Dongyue Research Institute established a
joint laboratory with the “Key Laboratory of the Ministry of
Education of Silicone Chemistry and Materials Technology”
of Hangzhou Normal University to accelerate the R&D
process of downstream and deep processing projects of
high-performance silicone rubber, silicone resin and special
silicone rubber materials. It also co-constructed a "R&D
Center for Organic Silicone Materials with Special Functions”
with Beijing University of Chemical Technology to reduce our
over-reliance on imports of high-end materials, advancing
the development of organic silicone materials with special
functions, and improving the technical added value of
organic silicone products.
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The Company continued to undertake a number of national
and provincial key research and development programs,
and promote, together with the research institutes, the
development and innovation of high-end technologies in
the fluorosilicone industry. In 2018, the Company mainly
undertook and participated in three national key R&D
programs, namely the Development of High-Performance
Composite Proton Exchange Membrane and Research of
Technologies for its Mass Production, the Industrialization
Technology and Application of Fuel Cell Engine and
Commercial Vehicles and the Key Technologies for
Preparation of High-Performance Polyvinyl Chloride.

Promoting Industrial Progress

Dongyue Group is not only striving for its own development,
but also to drive the coordinated development of the whole
industry and unblock the channels for the transformation
of technology into economic benefits through building
a platform for cooperation and communication with the
research institutes, industry associations, and authoritative
experts. As the vice chairman of the Fluorosilicone
Association, a director of the China Petroleum and Chemical
Industry Federation, chairman of the Fluoroplastics
Processing Association, and the deputy secretary-general
of the Membrane Industry Association, the Company
actively organizes and presides over the academic exchange
meetings of the fluorosilicone industry. The Company
also actively participates in the formulation and revision
of national, provincial and ministerial standards. In 2018, it
participated in the drafting of two national standards, i.e.
“Polytetrafluoroethylene Flat Microfiltration Membrane for
Sterilization Purpose” and “General Technical Conditions
for Perfluorinated lon Exchange Membrane for Use in the
Chlorine Alkali Industry” as well as 2 local standards, such as
"Implementation Guidelines for the Hierarchical Management
and Control System for Safety Production Risk of Enterprises
in the Fluorochemical Industry” and 3 group standards, such
as decamethylcyclopentasiloxane.
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Security

Under the guidelines of “Safety is Dongyue’s No.1 Value”, the
Group strictly abides by the national laws and regulations such as
the “Safe Production Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
carefully implements the national standards in relation to safe
production. The Company started from its risk control mechanism
and safety culture, and strived to establish and consolidate
its internal HSE standards. In 2018, the Group formulated new
regulations such as the "Administrative Measures for Assessment
of the Top Ten Highly-risky Behaviors in Dongyue Group” and the
“Must-obey Safety Regulations” to strengthen safety control during
operation and keep its production within the safety red line. In
2018, the Company did not incur any major or more serious safety
production accidents.

6.1 Safety Management System

Continuous and effective safety management is inseparable
from the protection of a complete safety system. The
Company made optimization of its safety system its core task
in 2018, and strived to establish a long lasting management
system with a complete structure, clear responsibilities, and
accurate implementation through standardized management,
well-regulated actions, and accurate performance
assessment.

Construction of a Dual System

In 2018, the Company vigorously promoted the construction
of a "Dual System” of risk grading and hidden danger
screening. The Company set up a team of leaders for its
risk grading management and control system led by the
general manager, with the vice director of production and
chief technical engineer as the deputy team leaders, and the
heads of the plants and departments as the members, with
clarified responsibilities of each member, and detailed work
plans and processes to ensure safety. The Company assisted
its subsidiaries in constructing the “Dual System” with special
counseling, aiming to promote a scientific and effective
safety management model.
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In addition, the Company, as one of the compilers for the
“Guide Book for Implementation of the Dual System” in
the fluorochemical industry and a provincial benchmark,
participated in the acceptance of the “Dual System” and
law enforcement work across the province, and actively
attended the exchange meeting to share its experience and
help its industry peers to advance their construction of the
“Dual System", sharing security awareness with them and
promoting industry advancement.

Standardized Management

On the basis of safety standardization, the Company learnt
from the international leaders in building a unified HSE
management system within the Group and classified and
managed the elements and established eight management
teams. Meanwhile, the Company uses the “Dynamic Tracking
Table of the HSE Management System of Dongyue Group”
to guide the administrator of each element to optimize
each management standard and form, and check on the
implementation of each regulation through JCC, with
regular assessment and strengthened supervision, which has
effectively improved the execution of safety management.

TR T&#es
Enterprise culture Process safety

EREE EHESEELR

Accident emergency
and exercise

ZSN]
Contractor

protecting management
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The Group’s HSE Management Team

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2018 83




&
&
8

¢

b

A

N N S
N'Es  HEREARE
L4

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B ERK

N EEHSEE 12 88 Z &l E 23 KPR
2 RERRHE  SEFEES B
BEFL  BEEEAEELZE2S - MU
EBEX2EN - BT IEKRR 22018
F o EESEFEINNKEE2EER
TEETEME) BEIHEXE  #
BEJRA  E—PRELXSEERMT
HEZER -

ZEEREE

RERZFMN - ZBK - ZAKET
FEeEE - BBHEAMmIN « BAREE
W% RIRERRBREIRKE - A
AR AN EREREYER
B WRBILRELERHEE R
EENIEER  HAEZ2EBBHSE
HE o ARERR - AEILERKIIE
IREBERBEE - BREIED9991% °

6.2

BT ERE

2018 F RAIFIE TCREEEFEI(=
R EICHHERFE)F - R
HBTERERRE  MAEZ2EE R
CREAERHEY

TEEERES C RAEIFRR
(

SECEBERAER - HERE
EELER  RREEEREN K

CRIARENAELE o

84 REEBERIE —2-N\FFH

6.2

Accurate Assessment

The Company has established 23 KPI indicators based on
its HSE management system, including hidden danger
screening and highly risky operations, in order to measure
safety performance and evaluate results through digital
and quantitative forms of control and safety. In 2018, the
Group revised and reissued the Administrative Measures
for the Implementation of Safety Production Responsibility.
The Group adhered to the principle of “The one in charge
is the one assuming responsibility” to further improve the
assessment system of safety production responsibility.

Security Risk Management

The Company conducts its risk management and control at
different aspects, levels and perspectives, aiming to reduce
the risks to the lowest level by both curing the symptoms
and finding the root causes from inside to outside. The
Company strengthened its internal and external security
management and hidden danger screening, conducted
hidden danger screening over all employees in accordance
with the Advices concerning the Construction of the “Dual
System” from the Administration of Work Safety of Shandong
Province. During the reporting period, a total of 13,000
hidden danger screening campaigns was carried out across
the Company, with a rectification rate of 99.91%.

Strengthening Internal Control of Processes
In 2018, the Company formulated the “Warning Management

noow

System”, “Three-level Inspection System", and “Chained
Management System” to standardize the process operation
procedures, strengthen safety management, ensure smooth
operation of the devices, and ensure the process inspection
is carried out properly with the help of the assessment
mechanism. In addition, the Company carried out the
information and automation upgrade, enhanced the level of

informatization, self-control, and the safety of the equipment.
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Risk Analysis & Prevention

In line with the construction of the “Dual System", all
the relevant units of the Company have been carefully
implementing the requirements of risk management and
control. In order to enhance its employees’ risk awareness,
the Group carried out the related training with 100%
attendance, having all its employees involved in risk analysis,
and updating the risk management status in due time, with
nearly 130 risks analyzed and controlled. Furthermore, the
Company monitored and inspected the implementation of
highly-risky operating procedures for each of its subsidiaries
in each month, collecting the number of highly-risky
operations in each subsidiary, and established a cloud map of
highly-risky operations to enhance its employees’ awareness
of safety and reduce the risks of highly-risky operations.

Emergency Responding and Dirills

The Company and its affiliates conduct fire safety inspection
monthly and organize various emergency drills. In 2018,
the Company carried out 436 safety drills and 126 fire drills,
with a total of 13,294 and 5,600 employees respectively,
participating in the drills. Through the repeated drills,
the safety awareness of our employees has been further
enhanced, and the safety inspection methods of the
managers have been expanded, which has effectively
improved their capability to escape and conduct self-rescue
in case of emergency.
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6.3

Contractor Management

In 2018 the Company revised and reissued the
“Contractor Management System", aiming to improve its
HSE management of the contractors. According to the
regulations, its contractors must meet the entry criteria, sign
a safety responsibility agreement and strictly abide by the
provisions on occupational health, safety and environmental
protection. The Company regularly supervises and assesses
the contractor's performance, including maintenance of
the contractor’s safety education records, the log book of
camp inspection, and the daily report on the inspection of
contractor’'s on-site construction safety to strengthen the
control of the contractor. In addition, the Company aroused
the contractor’s initiative concerning safety management
through safety education and training in addition to
assessment and incentives.

Safety and Health Protection

The Company has strictly followed the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases ({H % AR M B8 Z w05 8%)
to provide occupational health protection for its employees.
In particular, the Company conducted occupational physical
examination regularly, established occupational health
record and checked the daily hazards protection. In 2018, the
employees’ occupational health examination rate was 100%,
with zero incidence of occupational diseases.

The Company has been emphasizing the occupational safety
protection of employees and has equipped with professional
safety management personnel within the Group, among
which, all of the special operation staff must be license-
holders. Meanwhile, Regulations for the Management of
Special Equipment have been formulated by the Group
to ensure the safety production of special equipment
during operating activities. The Group concerned about
the employees’ health on operation, provided heatstroke
protection for employees working in high temperature
during the summer, purchased and distributed heatstroke
prevention drugs timely, and regularly carried out heatstroke
prevention knowledge training.
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6.4 Safety Culture Construction

The Company believes that the safety culture needs to be
accumulated constantly, and the corporate safety culture
construction requires all employees’ participation. In 2018,
the Company continually improved its training system and
consolidated its safety culture foundation through various
activities with rich content and diverse forms.

The Company improved and optimized its “Internal Trainer
Management and Incentive System” ({ Rl B & 12 K #UES
HIEZ)) , encouraged the internal trainers to develop design
tutorials by themselves, and established a specific safety
culture of the Group; internal trainers would be remunerated
for their training lecture, so as to promote the continuous
improvement and efficient operation of the Company’s
internal training system. At the same time, the Company
procured each subsidiary company to revise the “Internal
Trainer Management Assessment System" ({ A3l B & 12 &t
HIE)) . In current year, the Group has completed the third
and fourth stage training for its internal trainers, with a total
of 96 internal trainers trained.

In order to enhance safety awareness and create safety
values, the Company implemented safety-themed activities
and engaged employees to participate. In 2018, the Group
carried out technical competition and shift standardization
competition, which initially formed a good atmosphere of
skill and learning competitions within the Group; carried out
the "100 Days Incident-free for Safety and Environmental
T2 RRABBEEENR)

competition and rewarded each company which met the

Protection in Summer” (E

standards; organized the safety culture theme debate contest
to make employees feel the safety culture, realizing the
change from passive safety awareness to active one.

In 2018, the Company actively conducted safety training to
promote employees’ safety knowledge, grasp safety skills
and prevent safety accidents, ensuring the Company’s safety
and sustainable development. The safety training rate of the
Company's employees reached 100% in 2018.
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Green Developments

The Group strictly complied with the “Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC" and other laws and regulations to prevent and
reduce the adverse impacts of production and operation activities
on the environment, and cooperated with the environmental
protection departments at all levels. As a chemical enterprise,
the Company actively promoted the development of new
environmental products, and one of its primary products is green
environmental refrigerant. In 2018, the Company insisted on high
standards and strict requirements, and continuously promoted
various environmental protection projects, including energy
consumption reduction, sewage treatment, exhaust gas emission
reduction, etc,, staying a leading position in respect of a serious of
environmental protection index of the industry.

Meanwhile, Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the
Group, leveraged the advantages of abundant seawater resources
and salt field resources for bittern and salt crystallization after
extraction of bromine from the seawater, which demonstrated the
company's achievements in comprehensive utilization of seawater
resources. During the filing period, the Group carried out safety
assessment and environmental assessment in strict accordance
with relevant requirements with an aim to ensure the compliance
with the requirements on environmental protection and selected
location for project construction. The operations of the above
activities had no major impact on the environment and natural
resources.

7.1 Implementation of Energy Conservation and
Consumption Reduction

The Company actively promoted technical improvements
of daily operation at each area and reduced energy
consumption in production. In 2018, the Company prepared
a new “Energy Conservation Management System for Special
Equipment” ({HFTERFEEIREEIZHE ) ), and implemented
various energy conservation and consumption reduction
programs: increased steam reutilization through equipment
replacement, made the power consumption of the workshop
reduced from 1,696kwh/t in 2017 to 1,540kwh/t; reduced
steam and heat consumption rate by modifying the
compressed air system and the condensing turbines sets,
thereby reduced electricity consumption; optimized the
boiler combustion system, reduced the utilization amount
of ammonia water and the power consumption of the
wind turbine. In addition, the Group upheld the concept of
“green office", used the application of forms and information
technology for the changes of management system, realized
online office and online management and decreased
paper waste. Moreover, the Group managed vehicles’
fuel consumption according to the “Vehicle Management
System”, and offered full reward/punishment to drivers who
saves/exceeds oil consumption, aiming to raise employees’
awareness on energy conservation.
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In 2018, the Group has reduced the material consumption
by 0.27%. In particular, DMC, the raw material consumed
in the production process of silicone rubber, decreased by
6.91% and chloromethane, the raw material consumed in the
production process of chloroform, decreased by 2.52%.

In 2018, the total energy consumption of the Group
amounted to 655,401t standard coal, and the total energy
consumption per RMB10,000 output value amounted to 0.46t
standard coal; emissions of greenhouse gases amounted
to 3,239,450.5t, and the emissions of greenhouse gases per
RMB10,000 output value amounted to 2.28t.

The energy consumption of the Group in recent two years is
shown as follows:

EREE 201756 HEE 20185 HMEE
Use type Consumption in 2017  Consumption in 2018
SNIBE 1,399,634,177/% 1,461,252,200/%
Purchased electricity 1,399,634,177kWh 1,461,252,200 kWh
mEEE 610,129M8 642,322M8
Total coal consumption 610,129t 642,322t
BHEE 154,800,000/% 287,568,000/%
Generating capacity 154,800,000 kWh 287,568,000 kWh
ReEE(ERE) 1,279,826M8 1,472,565M8
Steam production volume (self-used volume) 1,279,826t 1,472,565t
b 1219117 72,065F
Gasoline 121,911L 72,0651
S 5,392.06F+ 5,456.89FF
Diesel 5,392.06L 5,456.89L
RIAR, 11,164.8832 752K 14,433.9537 752K
Natural gas 11,164.88 cubic meters  14,433.95 cubic meters
BLRAKER 7.2 Optimization of Water Utilization Management
NRIBERAKERE  FHERAKER The Company paid attention to water management,
ERAME - BDREKEER - BARE continuously improved the utilization factor of water resources

Fa - TEME - KBRS ZEIE
B 201 8FREEBEE S FARIKER

MERM -t THEER TR - &
ERAR @D TARE017FEHKESD
B A35% ~ 31% o

and reduced wastewater discharge. Through various projects
such as equipment upgrades, process modification, reclaimed
water reutilization, the eater utilization management of certain
subsidiary company comprising the Group has already started
to yield results in 2018, particularly, the Southern Chemical
District achieved zero discharge, and the F&S Company and
Polymers Company reduced their water discharge by 35% and
31% compared with that of 2017, respectively.
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Cogeneration Plant’s Waste Water Recovery Project:
The Company repaired the concentrated water recovery
device and put it into operation, which recovered the
water into the ultra-filtration water tank and could
recover 300,000t of water each year;

Installed 110m wastewater piping trench in the
workshop, improved the construction of recovery
pipeline, and could recover 87,600t of water each year.

Southern Chemical District Reclaimed Water
Reutilization Project:

Through technological innovation and further creation
of technique applications, Southern Chemical District
achieved zero discharge of wastewater;

The defuorination project independently developed by
the sewage treatment plant could realize standardized
discharge of fluoride ion.

Water Purification Plant’s Magnetic Coagulation
Project:

By introducing the magnetic particles to the high-
efficiency water purification process in the flocculation
and sedimentation tanks, which would effectively
integrate the insoluble pollutants in the wastewater
and form magnetic flocs with larger size and density,
to achieve the purpose of purifying the water and
eliminating total phosphorus;

By developing defluorination, which can effectively
eliminate fluoride ions in wastewater, help control
the turbidity, suspended materials, total phosphorus
and fluoride ions density in the water discharged, and
ensure that the standardized discharge of water.

The Group’s Sewage Treatment Project:

The industrial sewage pipelines of each subsidiary
and the reserved pipelines for new companies to be
established has been connected with the sewage pool
of the Group's sewage treatment plants.
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The preparation of equipping online monitoring
systems and automatic control device, increasing
magnetic flocculation, modifying internal pipeline
for wastewater treatment plants, increasing dredging
equipment and online water quality monitoring centers
for each subsidiary company is under progress. After the
completion of such project, the concentration of COD
pollutants will decrease from 50 mg/L to 40 mg/L; and
the concentration of fluoride pollutants will decrease
from 6 mg/L to 1.5 mg/L. According to the calculation,
the COD emissions can be reduced by 54t/year and the
fluoride emissions can be reduced by 24.3 t/year.

The discharge of waste water of the Group in recent
two years is shown as follows:

BE 2017FHMFIkE  2018FHH FAKE
Discharge/ Discharge/

Index consumption in 2017 consumption in 2018
27K REKHEARE 4,250,393 4,346,458
Waste water Total discharge of wastewater 4,250,393t 4,346,415t
CODBEME 93.6Mf 58.7MF

COD emissions 93.6t 58.7t

SAHNE 7.59MF 231MF

Ammonia nitrogen emissions 7.59t 231t

FEK BAKE 14,600,000 11,000,00018
Water consumption Total Water consumption 14,600,000t 11,000,000t
BTEERKE 14AMEETTEEMA 774 ETTE E A

Water consumption per 14.4t/RMB10,000 7.74t/RMB10,000

RMB10,000 of output value of operating income of operating income

=
Bl

U EEE018FHBHEETEX -
BEEIEE AR LM - 20178 K
PR EEHREESSR - ROEE
IKBERRE 54,250,3930F ©

Note:

L Due to the increase in disclosure of the Group’s 2018 data,
total discharge of wastewater in 2017 had been adjusted
accordingly to increase the comparability of relevant data.
Discharge of wastewater amounted to 4,250,393t for the
purpose of consistent presentation.
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7.3 Reduction of Pollutant Emissions

The Company strictly abided by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution { 2 A R £ M B K & )5 2056
7% ) and other relevant laws, actively complied with the
requirements of the state, strengthened pollution treatment,
improved the system, and carried out technological
transformations to effectively control the dust, exhaust gas,
and solid wastes generated from the Company’s production
and operation activities.

Exhaust Gas Management

In response to the “Air Pollution Prevention and Control
Action Plan” { KR )55 /8778 5 2] )) in China, the
Company actively carried out emission reduction works. It
was calculated that the SO, emissions have been reduced by
8,687.73t and NO, emissions have been reduced by 1,191.98t
in total in 2018. In addition, the Company carried out an
exhaust gas recovery project to reduce the condensing
temperature by increasing the refrigerant liquid level of the
exhaust condenser, and at the same time newly constructed
a chloromethane recovery device to reduce the exhaust
gas emissions, so that the recovery rate of chloromethane
reached 95-99%.

The emissions of exhaust gas of the Group in recent two
years are shown as follows:

2017 HEHE

Emissions in 2017

2018F HEME

Emissions in 2018

ZEREERE
SO, emissions
RAYHHE
NO, emissions
MEHME
Dust emissions
BRI ERY

Volatile organic compound

92 REEBERIE —2-N\FFH

175M8 157.06M8
175t 157.06t
316.1M8 542 2908
316.1t 542.20t
114.67W8 78.28M
114.67t 78.28t
76.98M8 220MA
76.98t 220t
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Solid Waste Management

In 2018, the Group and each subsidiary have formulated the
"General Solid Waste Management System" ({ —f& E2EEE %)
EIEHIE )), "General Solid Waste Accountability System"({—
M EEREYE EHIE)), "Hazardous Waste Management
System" KfEREMEEHIE)) and "Hazardous Waste
Accountability System" (/&R EEYIEEHIZE)) to regulate
the disposal process of solid waste, supervise the inspection
method and avoid raising environmental pollution incidents.
The Company sorted and treated solid wastes, and handed
over the household refuse to the company with processing
qualification, as well as disposed of solid waste in a harmless
manner, and dealt with the hazardous waste strictly
according to the “Standardized Management Index System
for Hazardous Wastes” (Gl EM R H L EERIEEE
Z)) . Through the establishment of a sound management
account, the Company further strengthened the supervision
and assessment of solid waste treatment of its subsidiary
companies.

The emissions of the general solid wastes of the Group are as
follows:

BRER 20175 2018%
Type of emissions 2017 2018
—RERMELHEE BRamaE 78,2868 94,1428
Total general wastes Gypsum 78,286t 94,142t
BRIE 183,038.7MA 172,009MF
Cinder of power plant 183,038.7t 172,009t
A EBIR 500 481
Household refuse 50t 48t
AR 13MA 1218
Office waste 13t 12t
BAOE 343,071MW8 35143218
Acetylene sludge 343,071t 351,432t
—RERMELESE / 266,211
Total general wastes / 266,211t
—REEVELTE / 0J9MEETTEZEKA
/

Intensity of general wastes

0.19t/RMB10,000
of operating income
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Transfer of hazardous wastes of the Group? is as follows:

BEYEE 20184
Types of hazardous wastes 2018
EREENELE HW06 1,699.921%
Transfer volumes of hazardous wastes HWO06 1,699.92t
HW08 138.20M
HWO08 138.20t
HW09 189.50MA
HWO09 189.50t
HW11 3765408
HW11 376.54t
HW50 229.18MA
HW50 229.18t
HW18 93.10MA
HW18 93.10t
HW45 10,666.020
HW45 10,666.02t
HW49 81.86Mf
HW49 81.86t
HW29 1578408
HW29 157.84t
EREEMERE 13,632.25M8
Transfer volumes of hazardous wastes 13,632.25t
EREEYEERE 0.0096ME & 7T & U A

"
=
it

2 R0 8FEEEREEZEYINE
BEEOLCHAE  KEERER
REEIRBF YL -

94 REEBEBERAE —ZE-N\FFH

Transfer density of hazardous wastes

Note:

0.0096t/RMB10,000
of operating income

g Due to adjustment on the disclosure types and requirements of the

hazardous wastes of the Group in 2018, year-on-year comparison
of relevant data had not been made in this annual report.



RO [HFffER | TRER  TEKEZS
RESEBAE

20185 - KEFEREE R LA SGE
HE—[FiEE& JERTE - WiSHER
EEEERENHETEE  BEITE K&
WA - MR - REE  BIEE WS ER
RAXKFEARE - BEE—HIEMNER -
SEBR2010FRAFEELA ] ZHIRE -
FTEIR2019F5 A1HET - BREERZEE
REEE  SERIREEEITERTELR
% BIKE  SEEARWmRR -

BT

E’E BRETAKEENUE - RFEIA

R BIREE  BMER®RS S WAL E

T =ERERE - #EBTHALE

o FfF - %E%lﬂﬁéﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ (%)
EERRERSFEINELE

“H E\I fJ> >*£'r il

L
k.

e

ﬁ# Pl

RE - HERERERS
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

};v)

Case: Supporting “wall demolition and green planning”
construction, building a green boulevard of the Group

In 2018, the Group carried out green initiatives that focused on
the re-development of Zhongxin Road in the park — the “wall
demolition and green planning” construction. It was regarded
as the key project in the park, aiming at building a green, scenic
boulevard characterized by “energy conservation, shade, landscape
and technology”. Upon completion of the 1st phase construction,
the Group will commence the 2nd phase of the “wall demolition
and green planning” project in 2019, which is scheduled for
completion in 1 May 2019. Through the construction of the green
ecological park, the Group is committed to transforming the park
into a city landmark with a mass of flowers, plenty of tree shade
and delightful scenery.

All-win Harmony

The Group treats the employees as the most valuable assets,
adheres to the talent concept of “Reflecting values with benefits,
and using wealth to return intelligence”, and continuously
improves the employment environment and safeguards the
legitimate rights and interests of employees. At the same time, the
Group considers itself as a part of community and actively give
back to the community in its own influence.
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8.1 Respecting Employees’ Rights and Interests

The Group has, in strict accordance with the Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations,
pursued the fair, equitable and prejudice-free employment
policy, completely eradicated any form of inequities
arising from the gender, territory, nationality, religion,
age, political affiliation and other aspects in terms of the
recruitment, remuneration, training and promotion etc,, and
resisted any use of child labor and forced labor, respected

5876 A © and guaranteed the legitimate rights and interests of all
employees. As at the end of the reporting period, the Group
had a total of 5,876 employees.

BTHEE 5l 20174 2018%F

Employees’ structure Type 2017 2018

RIERBIDH B T AZIA) BET 4,907 5213

Number of employees by gender (person)  Male employees

ZET 502 663
Female employees
REREIDHE T AZ(A) 30BRA T 867 1,647
Number of employees by age (person) Aged under 30
31-4038 5% 2,926 2,716
Aged between 31-40
41-508 7% 1,439 1,393
Aged between 41-50
SOMARRIA L 177 120
Aged over 50
@B DHE T AZCA) MEEHFFEE TR 87.00% 87.19%
Number of employees by region (person) Percentage of local
residents in Zibo
St P £E B TR 13.00% 12.81%

REEBERIE —2-N\FFH

Percentage of non-local
residents
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8.2 Promoting Staff Development

Dongyue Group adopted the clear management policies
to guarantee the openness and transparency of career
promotion. In 2018, on the basis of the “Measures for
Position Promotion of Cadres and Employees of the Group”,
it formulated the “"Administrative Measures for Appraisal of
Newly Promoted Cadres under Probation Period of Dongyue
Group” and the “Administrative Measures for Training
and Appraisal of Newly Promoted Management Cadres of
Dongyue Group” with an aim to clarify promotion measures
for cadres. During the year, the Company organized large-
scale post competition activities for its cadres in a stable
and efficient manner. A total of 654 people participated in
the post competition, leading to a change in the positions
of 19 cadres and a rotation in the positions of 38 cadres,
while a group of young cadres stood out. In addition, under
the guidance of the work ideology of “cultivating a group
of elite teams”, the Company selected the branch secretary
of workshops for the first time, and cultivated a pool of
"young, professional and well-trained” management cadres,
in preparation for the cultivation of talents for workshops in
future.

The Group provided strong trainings to support its
employees in their career development. While the Group
constantly optimized and improved the “Guidelines for
Training of New Employee of the Group”, the “Guidelines
for On-the-job Training Examination and Assessment”, the
“Regulations on Management of Employee Job-transfer
Training” and other training-related system documents, and
at the same time, it also continuously improved the training
management mechanism through the establishment of
a four-level training management system to ensure the
effectiveness of trainings.
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&=
B AR Ty
Group Train-
ing Center

YNGIE
BFIEEA
Persons
responsible
for compa-
ny-level
trainings

EER

BEIEEA
Persons
responsible
for work-
shop-level
trainings

fe 13 4%
EIEEA
Persons
responsible
for post-based
trainings

s AERBMMNIFIEE  BiTRE - BR B8 RE  RENELURE - 2EN
TR ERIET
Being fully responsible for the training and management of various units and performing the
post duties of inspection, supervision, guidance, tracking and services so as to fully conduct
the trainings at the group level

o XRBRAERMBIREST
Serve as the head of the comprehensive management department of various units

s ARERNRNEIIE  REBERBIIEEMEBNTRBER
Being responsible for the trainings at the company level and inspecting and supervising the
work performance of trainers

J

o ERIF(TET )

Serve as the head of workshops

s ARMFERAREI - 58  BEpEMARERNEUENESEERNER -
ZH o UERFABHE TEAMNFZSZE - FiITE
Being responsible for the trainings at the workshop level, guiding, supervising and inspecting
the replacement of the post-related basic knowledge and skills cards and examination of
workshops, and the learning and training of basic knowledge of newly recruited employees )

. SUIELEA A

Serve as the leader of each work shift

o HHBT = RMRIZFFINAI AR S THRAESELIE) - B RImASNERE
REeEdl - MUZERERMEFSARE ANRAESEINES - 52 - ZHK
BER - ARIE
Being responsible mainly for the three process trainings for employees, the post-related basic
knowledge and skills trainings for newly recruited employees, the professional skills trainings
for the employees who will transfer or combine their posts, the replacement of the post-related
basic knowledge and skills cards and examination, the monthly examination of basic knowledge
trainings, signing for such trainings, and registration and filing of examination results

98 REEBERIE —2-N\FFH
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In 2018, the Group formulated its training plans under the
“demand-based training” principle and organized more
than 70 group-level trainings, covering seven special
topics including safe production, informationization and
automation, technology, audit, finance, law, and supply
chain system management. They covered all the functional
departments of the Group and effectively improved the
professional skills of its employees through frequent and
professional training. In 2018, the Company organized a total
of 72 training, involving 10,000 trainees in total.

The Group continued to promote internal communications
among various professions, and each profession broke
departmental boundaries to hold several professional
meetings to solve problems together. In 2018, over 40
exchange meetings were held with 19 exchange briefings
edited.

Caring for Employees’ Life

In order to fully balance the work and life of its employees
and improve the employee happiness index, the Company
carried out a variety of employee-caring activities. In 2018,
the Company organized a series of activities such as “2018
Chinese New Year Gathering", the spring and autumn sports
games, the employee happiness photo collection activities,
the DIY mooncake theme activities, Dongyue cross-country
race titled “Vibrant Youth, Healthy Running", etc.. While
enriching the employees’ spare-time life, those activities also
enhanced the cohesiveness of employees and the sense of
belonging to the Company.

The Company was deeply concerned about the living
conditions of its employees in difficulty. It donated the
funds out of a certain percentage of the remuneration of
senior management to the special caring fund to help its
employees in difficulty. During the year, the Group organized
a total of 20 visits to its employees in difficulty, distributing
the consolation money of RMB3,000 to 5,000 and materials to
each of its employees in difficulty. The aiding funds totalled
RMB84,000.

In addition, the Group actively sought for policy supports for
its employees, and applied for the corresponding subsidiary
for national and local academic qualifications for 7 doctors
and 41 masters of the Group to enhance its employees’
enthusiasm for work and R&D. The Group also applied for
the one-off government subsidy for the 133 senior workers
passing the skill competitions and the 8 skilled welders
obtaining the welding skills accreditation, in an effort to
expedite the professionalization of its talent teams.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2018 929
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8.4 HEXIFETE 8.4 Building a Better Life Together
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NIWIBRHER > 2018 FBREFES
134248 7T °

The Company has always insisted on “building hometown,
repaying the society, serving the country, repaying the party”
and vigorously supported public welfare undertakings. As at
the end of the reporting period, the Group donated a total of
RMB1,942,400 to social welfare undertakings in the fields of
education, transport, health and disaster relief. In the one-day
charity donation event in 2018, the Company raised funds of
RMB300,000.

The Company has established four public welfare funds
to regulate the use of public welfare donations. The total
donations in 2018 amounted to RMB1.3424 million.

* REKENALARZES
Table Four Public Welfare Funds of Dongyue Group

100
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Name Year of Establishment Targeted People and Purpose

REHEES 20005F FAR SRRV A 205 B R AR R I BB MBS B R
WEL WHERERET N BRVIREEE

Dongyue Education Fund 2000 To reward the local teachers with outstanding teaching
performance and students with outstanding academic
achievements. Dongyue Studies were established for the
middle and primary schools in Huantai County

REEZES 20074 FRREERE LESRE A & ARBI2007T £ &AL

Dongyue Elder Respecting 2007
Fund
RERBES 20005

Dongyue Scholarship Fund 2000

REELES 2005%F
Dongyue Staff-caring Fund 2005

REEBERIE —2-N\FFH

To provide an allowance of RMB200 each year to elders
aged over 80 in Tangshan Town

RRNEERE - IVREBIRBEHBENERLNES
21

To reward the students of Tsinghua University and
Shandong University of Technology with outstanding
academic achievements

IR S THEITHRE

To support the Group's staff in financial difficulties
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“Dongyue Smart Studies (REEZEE)", established by
Dongyue Education Fund, invested more than RMB80,000
each year to purchase books and materials for primary and
secondary schools. It has now benefited 106 primary schools
and central primary schools in Huantai County. At the same
time, the Company encouraged its employees to support
its community development with their own knowledge and
skills. In 2018, a total of over 60 employees attended various
volunteer activities.

Case: Poverty alleviation project of Santaishan Village,
Zhangjiajie of Dongyue

Santaishan Village is a provincial-level poor village in Hunan.
Dongyue Group responded to poverty alleviation initiatives
in a proactive manner and facilitated its poverty alleviation
business through donation of RMB2 million to Yongding
District Charity Association for the construction of Santaishan
Dongyue nursing home.

In 2018, the construction of Santaishan Dongyue nursing
home was officially completed. The nursing home has a
total of 12 rooms that can accommodate 24 people at the
same time. It is well-equipped, surrounded with tranquil
environment and has become a landmark for socialist
spiritual civilization construction in Zhangjiajie to realize
that all elderly people in Santaishan are provided with
residence, living support, love and recreational facilities,
thereby promoting the development and utilization of the
local tourism resources and facilitating poverty alleviation for
villagers.
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Disclosure Indicators

9 ESGINDEX

=
Pages

W0 B

Aspect: Environment
Al R

AT1: Emission
—MRBEE

General Disclosure

A1
Al

A1.2

Al4

A1.5
A15

A16

BER TR R RARR R BUR

The types of emissions and respective emissions data

BERBAHNE (CANETE) M(BER)BE(WMASEESE
i -~ BIERMEAHE

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)

FELAREREWRE (CAEFE) R(ER)BEE(WAEGEESE
fir - SERIBHE)

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)

FEAREEEWAE (CAEFE) R(ER)BEE(WAEGEESE
i - BIERMEAHE)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility)

HIUREHE BB B0 B M PSR

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved

Bl R IR B E MEEEEMN A  BUEE £ S0E LTS
R

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved

REEBERIE —2-N\FFH

73 A5 RBEN

7.3 Reduction of
pollutant emissions

73 WA RBER

7.3 Reduction of

pollutant emissions
7.1 BRITERRE MR T

7.1 Implementation
of energy
conservation and
consumption
reduction

73 B IS REER

7.3 Reduction of
pollutant emissions

73 B IS REER

7.3 Reduction of
pollutant emissions

73 WA RBER
7.3 Reduction of
pollutant emissions

73 WA ISREER

7.3 Reduction of
pollutant emissions
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Disclosure Indicators Pages

A2 - BIREA

A2: Use of Resources

— MR EE 1 BEITERRERE FE

General Disclosure

A2.1

A2

A2.2

A2.2

A2.3

A2.3

A2.4

A24

A25

A2.5

REAEDNEER SEEER(ME - Kloh) BRESCAT
BETEREFE) RBEMABEESEN - BEREHE)

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility)

REKERTE(WNNBESEN - BIERBTE)
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)

i e IR (E R R s AT B R AT IS AR

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved

FISKEGE KR LA B ERIRERE - ARRAHBKR T8 R AT
SRR

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit
for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved

SR AR FT A B E MR R E (VANEET &

E

) M (B ) BEEBAE

Total packaging materials used for finished products (in tonnes) and,
if applicable, with reference to per unit produced

1 Implementation
of energy
conservation and

consumption

reduction
7.0 BEITEIREFEFE
7.1 Implementation

of energy
conservation and
consumption
reduction
7.2 BERKER
7.2 Optimization of
water utilization
management
1 ERTTENRELEAE
Implementation

NN

of energy
conservation and
consumption
reduction

72 BLRKER

7.2 Optimization of
water utilization
management

TEM

Not applicable
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Disclosure Indicators Pages

A3 IRIBERARABIR

A3: Environment and Natural Resources

— AR EE 7 AREER

General Disclosure 7. Green developments

A3 B EBEBERBERARAABERNEAZERDRINEREHY 7 MR EER
E/17%

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment 7. Green developments

and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them
L
Aspect: Social
fEfBE LS TR
Employment and Labor Standard
B1 : Ef&
B1: Employment
— BB

General Disclosure

B1.1 BRI - EEEE - FRARIZRE S HESEH
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and

geographical region

B1.2 BRI FERAER K REI S HEBRKLL X
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region

B2 : fERRHAZ R
B2: Health and Safety

—MRBEE

General Disclosure

B2.1 B TIERIR ML T AR R LE 2

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities

B2.2 AIEERIERHR

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury

B2.3 HPTER AR B R 2 - ARBERITRERAE
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted,

how they are implemented and monitored

104 REKEBRAE ZZ2-N\FFR

81 EEETHH

8.1 Respecting
employees’ rights
and interests

81 EEETHH

8.1 Respecting
employees’ rights
and interests

81 BEBTHEH

8.1 Respecting
employees’ rights
and interests

6. RRIRME

6. Security

6. TR IRIE

6. Security

6. RERIRME

6. Security

6.3 LRI #
6.3 Safety and health

protection
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B
Pages

B3 : R MIFHI

B3: Development and Training

— R EE

General Disclosure

B3.1

B3.1

B3.2
B3.2

B4 : BT HR
B4: Labor Standard
—R =

General Disclosure

B4.1
B4.1

B4.2
B4.2

BEIED
Operation Practices
BS : fIERETE
B5: Supply Chain
Management

— R
General Disclosure
B5.1

B5.1

B5.2

B5.2

RUERIRESERI(NSHRERE - PREEBEZ)EDNIIE
BEML

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management)

RUERINEEERIE D - FREETKIIIN TSR

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category

s BB E AR EEARRE T REHIZT
Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
child and forced labor

T B TE RIS A R A BRI U P ERER Y 22 5
Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered

RS S NHERHE

Number of suppliers by geographical region

Bl BREEARERHES - RERTEREMNNHEREE
A KRB RBEBINMITRER A

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored
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82BN BIHR
8.2 Promoting staff

development
82BN BEIHRE

8.2 Promoting staff
development

82BN EBIHR

8.2 Promoting staff
development

81 BEET#H

8.1 Respecting
employees’ rights
and interests

81 BEEEI#HE

8.1 Respecting
employees’ rights
and interests

81 BEET#H

8.1 Respecting
employees’ rights
and interests

44 RIZHFE
4.4 Assuring supply
4.4 IRIZHFE
4.4 Assuring supply

44 IRIEHE

4.4 Assuring supply

San A
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i
Pages

B6 : EME(T

B6: Product Responsibility

—RRIEE

General Disclosure

B6.1
B6.1

B6.2
B6.2

B6.3
B6.3

B6.4
B6.4

B6.5
B6.5

B7 : RE)S
B7: Anti-corruption
—MRBEE

General Disclosure

B7.1

B7.1

B7.2
B7.2

o
Community

B8 : (L@ E

EEXRDEXRERBHT AL EEFRIEAMAQBHN A DL

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons

EERNERMREHIRFEE N REEHTTE

Number of products and services related complaints received and
how they are dealt with

ot R 8 N AR IR AN EE A A RV 1B 51

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights

S SR E RIE N EROYERF
Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures

UE B EBBRERALBEE - ARAAERTRERES X
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how
they are implemented and monitored

RERAANEEITAREEERETEEENE THFARMFHE
B REFAER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the cases

TRy #AE e M ERIRIR T - U RABB T REER 0%

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,
how they are implemented and monitored

B8: Community investment

—RRIER

General Disclosure

B8.1
B8.1

B8.2
B8.2

REEBARAF =&

EXERERB(HE  BEFH

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,
labor needs, health, culture, sport)

EEIHBMBAER(NSENEFRE)

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area

—NFER

CBTIEHEFR  @#E Xt 8E)

43 MERE

4.3 Ensuring product
quality

43 B RE

4.3 Ensuring product
quality

43 mERE

4.3 Quality assurance

5.1 BAAIFT LT

5.1 Technological
innovation
prioritized

43 mERE

4.3 Ensuring product
quality

43 MERE

4.3 Ensuring product
quality

42 BIEEH
4.2 Integrity and
compliance

42 BIEER

4.2 Integrity and
compliance

42 BIEER
4.2 Integrity and
compliance

8.4 HERIFHIR
8.4 Building a better
life together

84 HEXIFAIER
8.4 Building a better
life together

84 HEIFATR
8.4 Building a better
life together
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Dongyue Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dongyue
Group Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 117 to 238, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.



Y e ol

“-_- £

B SR ETRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

EAREIEE Key Audit Matters

HRETSEEREESNEEHE - 28HE Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,

F2018FE1N2AB I EENGE S B RENEST were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial

SAEENEIR ZEEEEAEESEARELR statements for the year ended 31 December 2018. These matters were

AEHERELRTEEERRBETREN  T5Te addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

WZEEHREHEEBENER - statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BRESEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

85 BWERE R E RS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately RMB1,488 million

(2017: RMB1,629 million) and provision for impairment of
approximately RMB2.85 million (2017: RMB3.13 million).

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 30 to 90 days (2017: 30 to 90
days). Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade receivables and the sufficiency
of provision for impairment based on information including
credit profile of different customers, ageing of the trade
receivables, historical settlement records, subsequent
settlement status, expected timing and amount of
realisation of outstanding balances, and on-going trading
relationships with the relevant customers. Management also
considered forwardlooking information that may impact the
customers’ ability to repay the outstanding balances in order
to estimate the expected credit losses for the impairment
assessment.

We focused on this area due to the impairment assessment
of trade receivables under the expected credit losses model
involved the use of significant management judgements
and estimates.

How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EEMETNNEERRETSE

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2018
included:

Understanding and evaluating the key controls that the
Group has implemented to manage and monitor its credit
risk, and validating the control effectiveness on a sample
basis;

Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2018 to the underlying
financial records and post year-end settlements;

Inquiring of management for the status of each of the
material trade receivables past due as at year end and
corroborating explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers based on trade
records, checking historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence with the customers;
and

Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit
loss provisioning methodology, examining the key data
inputs on a sample basis to assess their accuracy and
completeness, and challenging the assumptions, including
both historical and forward-looking information, used to
determine the expected credit losses.
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Key audit matter

BRETEE

MR2018F12A31H EEEFEEFRWFIELBEHAR
#1488 BB L (2017F « ARME1,6208 & 70) KB ERME
HARMEISSHETT(2017F - ARK3IZAETT) °

—MRME EEERTEFPHEERNF30E90XK(2017
F 1 30890K) - BEEENUTEREE S EIKFIA
g O AR E R E R E N T R T E BIRT A - B
TREFHEARR - BSEUGIBERE - BEL&HERT
8% - BBEEBR - FRERWEEROTERRENSE
REARAEFPHRABSBERE - BEENZERAETER
FEERKREESRENNREEER - RfstRETE
HETTEEEEEE -
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How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EEMNETNNEERRETEE

EEHEBEMN2018F12A31 Bt B B EW IR ET G

TNRFEHE

TREEEEBC B BERIEHIERE - AT NE
THEAREE - WG S AR T A
HEAXER2018F 12831 H A M IS NI E 5 UL
RERFREZENRRIEN ;
REREEANFERCBHSTERNE HRUFTIENMRR
VTEBLHERZECTEENGRE  WERNESTHT
REEFPNRBEKEER ZERFPNES REERLH
R R EREMEMREER &
FETESEEBERENZNBEE T  MEREEBH
B A AT E RS LB - WERARETTES
EEEBNBR  BIEFEE RATEEER -
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Key audit matter

BRETEE

Fair value of equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income

BAVESARMEZARS ZRARENDFE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income with the
fair value amount of approximately RMB1,801 million.

The equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are within the scope of IFRS 9 and
are measured at fair value. The Group irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of the equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income in other comprehensive income. The valuation of
equity investments involved significant judgement and

estimates made.

R2018F12A31H ' EEEBEEATFEEENARE
1,801 BB L2 A EF AR MEERE 2 BAIEE -

B E AR MR E RS 2 BRAKE TR BIFR R %5
BEENLSRBEANLIZAHEFEERE T A HEM
EENEMEERET 2R AHES AR EKE
ZBEARERNHENREES - RARE[BEY KL
BB A H T e 5T
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How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EEMNETNNEERRETEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of the
equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive

income included:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the valuers;

Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
reasonableness of the input data provided by management
to the valuer; and

Evaluating the key assumptions and methodologies used

by the valuer in their valuation of the equity investment at

fair value through other comprehensive income.
EELHERBHRATVEGF AEMEEW S 2 RARER G
BEERNIEFEEE

A ER R E N R EBIE

VAT SR B B IR B [ L E R R L A0 S A SR e YE B
HEREEYE Rk

AHE A EMEHIRAFEF AR MEE R E 2 RAIRE
EITHEREROBRBRETA -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Information Other than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Yip Kai Yin with practising certificate number:
PO5131.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

27 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A E2018F 12431 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

20184 20174
B R AR®T T AREFT
2018 2017
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
& Revenue 6 14,218,937 10,137,137
$HE R A Cost of sales (9,687,291) (7,072,865)
E7 Gross profit 4,531,646 3,064,272
Hib A Other income 7 119,209 225,467
DM HER Distribution and selling expenses (358,726) (313,959)
TEFAY Administrative expenses (782,735) (656,333)
B EERE Impairment of intangible assets - (17,485)
MR RFAERX Research and development
expenses (177,360) (94,609)
B A Finance costs 8 (97,135) (112,890)
FE(REE SRR Share of results of associates = 47,310
B 50 A i A Profit before tax 3,234,899 2,141,773
iSRG Income tax expense 9 (800,200) (459,974)
FREF Profit for the year 10 2,434,699 1,681,799
THETT RN - Profit attributable to:
. VNEIE YN — Owners of the Company 2,129,098 1,601,397
— JEFE IR IR R R S - Non-controlling interests 305,601 80,402
2,434,699 1,681,799
FIEEF Earnings per share 13
—EAR(ARE) ~ Basic (RMB) 1.00 0.76
—EE(ARE) - Diluted (RMB) 1.00 0.76
Hib 2mE R Other comprehensive income:
Hig T a2aHota ltem that will not be reclassified
BmrIEE subsequently to profit or loss:
BRTESTAHM Fair value change on equity
ZEWE 2 R investments at fair value through
KENRNFEEE other comprehensive income (52,902) =
iﬁ%ﬁ:’iﬂ&i@ Profit and total comprehensive
W 4B RE income for the year 2,381,797 1,681,799
Y& T (G ERRAE Profit and total comprehensive
/ﬁnﬂ)ﬁiiﬁ income for the period
e 4a attributable to:
EIN/N TT?EE}\ — Owners of the Company 2,076,196 1,601,397
— IR R ~ Non-controlling interests 305,601 80,402
2,381,797 1,681,799
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- CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R2018F12H31H
At 31 December 2018

20184 20174
BaE AR®TT ARETT
2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
L Y Property, plant and equipment 15 3,860,200 3,804,155
BEWME  HEENREZ Prepayments for purchase of
B FIE property, plant and equipment 89,160 50,013
ENEE Prepaid lease payments 16 535,564 466,666
EEE Intangible assets 17 82,237 81,647
BAFETAEAM Equity investments at fair value
FHKREZBAKE through other comprehensive
income 19 1,801,394 -
A ERE Available-for-sale investments 19 = 1,221,292
FEIEFRIAE B Deferred tax assets 20 213,741 246,398
GES Goodwill 21 123,420 123,420
6,705,716 5,993,591
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 1,106,721 989,229
EHERG Properties for sale 23 3,033,638 1,805,943
ERES Prepaid lease payments 16 15,766 14,754
B 5 & H A eI GRIE Trade and other receivables 24 1,967,730 1,970,471
BIRSRTTER Pledged bank deposits 25 363,133 32,860
RITEBR NI Bank balances and cash 25 3,331,147 1,471,116
9,818,135 6,284,373
RBEE Current liabilities
B 5 REAEAFIE Trade and other payables 26(a) 2,701,711 2,345,168
RETREMEZES Deposits from pre-sale of properties 26(b) 1,632,556 359,918
BE Borrowings 27 873,150 1,076,021
HIEAE Tax liabilities 296,488 94,485
IRIEWA Deferred income 28 21,636 25,359
5,525,541 3,900,951
REBEEEE Net current assets 4,292,594 2,383,422
BEERTRHERS Total assets less current liabilities 10,998,310 8,377,013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R2018%F 125318
At 31 December 2018
20185 20174
BaE AR®TT ARETT
2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BEARK #E Capital and reserves
[ Share capital 29 200,397 200,397
b Reserves 8,136,209 6,509,335
ZAN/NEIE 2SN Equity attributable to the owners of
FE(L R the Company 8,336,606 6,709,732
FEFEAS AR SR AE 2R Non-controlling interests 1,055,593 602,679
RS Total equity 9,392,199 7,312,411
FREAME Non-current liabilities
PRIEW A Deferred income 28 285,782 227,721
ELEFEAE Deferred tax liabilities 20 111,029 92,081
[=h= Borrowings 27 1,209,300 744,800
1,606,111 1,064,602
10,998,310 8,377,013
F11722388 2456 KEEREEM2019F  The consolidated financial statements on pages 117 to 238 were

=

3A7EERIETIE  WH I ALTRRE

REL
Zhang Jianhong
£

Director

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

R
Zhang Zhefeng
BE

Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B2 2018F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

KOAWEARE
Attributable to owners of the Company
BOTER
\BE p N
BE UioBE ROER GHRE RARE BBBR REEW &% BBRER &5
ARBTL ARMTT ARRTR ARETR ARBTT ARMIT ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR
Wi Mip B
Statutory Non-
Share  FVTOCI Share  Merger  Capital  Surplus  Retained controlling
Capital ~ reserve  premium  reseve  reserve  reserve - eamings Total  interests Total
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMB0OO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RWBO0
(Noted)  (Noteb)  (Notec)
WIE1R18ES Balance at 1 January 2017 200397 - T2494 R0 102040 7388 3TSA95 5388008 29843 5686251
imﬁﬂ&%@%@%’é Profitand total comprehensive income for the year = = = = = SR A3 G0AR 168179
Transfer - - - - 660 00 (7500 660 14 784
3%%?%&5 Capital contrloution fom non-controling interests = 5 5 2 . . . Smo B
Al Business combination = = = - 03 5 - 103 - 03
EERER Diidends deckred - - - - - - (7 -

WIENANAER Balance at 31 December 2017 200397 - 12494 (322100 113076 812982 4390563 6709732 602679 7312411

BERERERE LR S0k 2 Adiustment on inital applicaton of FRS 9 - (19809 . . . = - (19809 - (19,809)

18E1 AIRERER Adjustment, balance of 1 January 2018 200397 (19800) 1224924 (322100 113076 812982 4390563 6689923 602,679 7,292,602

?WM‘J f for he year = - - - - - 219098 2129098 305601 2434699

EH2EES Othemomprehensive EXDENSES:
Tﬁ HEMHME%ZM& & Fairvalue change on equty ivestments a fair vale
JAHEES thiough other comprehensive income - (529m) o s s 5 - (5290) N X))
?ﬁfﬁ Transfer - - - - 1109 149,034 (149,034) 1,109 100 1,209
ERERBRERNE Acquistion offurther netest na subsicay rom
—FlELA - SkE nor-<ontolig netests - - - - (590 - -9 (62260 (121.297)

FRRRERTE Capitalcontribution fom non-controling nerests - - - - BB - - U3SE 206612 420,1%

BERRE Dividends paid - - = - - - [515168)  (515,168) - (515,168)

REENBAARERARE Dividends paid by subsidares o the Group - - - - - - - - (59168 (59168)

HERBLF Disposal o sbsidiay = = = = = - - - )

WISENANAER Balance at 31 December 2018 200397 (72711) 1224924 (322100 198731 962,016 5895459 8336606 1055593 9,392,199

S Notes:

() BHHEEKRER2006F R ZEEEA - (@)  Merger reserve arose in group reorganisation completed in 2006.

(b)  R2007F11H168 - KAREEMEFAIEBEITER (b)  On 16 November 2007, the Company repurchased all of the 275,000,000
TEIE0.135 7T 2 &8 A%275,000,0000% @ iz EREE & previously issued ordinary shares of US$0.1 each and these repurchased
H&t;ﬁi%}ziuZEHﬂZﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁEm REITRRAN— P38 - ordinary shares were cancelled with all of the authorised but unissued share
[ A - #1%35%4,000,000,0000 F IR E B0 T 2 T capital as of that date. On the same date, the authorised share capital was
‘AR H%ifiﬁ&$i¥§4oo,ooo,ooo;‘%ﬁ o PA20074F 11 increased to HK$400,000,000 by the creation of 4,000,000,000 new ordinary
A158 - (AR A MR E17275,000,0000% F AL EEO.1 76 shares of HK$0.1 each. 275,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were
T2 BAR o BERl e FEHRIBE HITHRMEE LK then issued to the shareholders existing on 15 November 2007. The excess of
BEBETABRARREE - the repurchased amount over the nominal amount of new shares issued was

credited directly to the capital reserve.
B B N B 12 AR RS B Uk B EE A ME RS RE SR o B 3R G The acquisitions of additional interest from non-controlling shareholders of
BEES IS .ﬁt@izmﬁﬁ%ﬁuﬁ/m BEER subsidiaries were recognised as transactions with non-controlling interests and
ARG S8R, S8l o the corresponding discount/premium were credited/debited directly against
capital reserve.

() @}ﬁqzﬁj\ﬁ HRAE([HE ) ATERIBE D T8 48 (0 Inaccordance with the Company Law of People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and

AR AARPHEM B AT BEHEEREESD the relevant Articles of Association, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are

+ BB TEZBRBEET0% s ©BERAETHRA required to appropriate amount equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as

E o determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory

surplus reserve.

LERBREEAREED —5 B HAMIEDR Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when its balance

ERIEME AR 0%y ©%8 - QIHBEE - DA - BE reaches an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital, further appropriation

hEATNE  ETRSEET BEERBAEE - 1 is not required. According to the Company Law of the PRC, statutory surplus

DA E N S 7B o B G K o reserve may be used to make up past losses, to increase production and
business operations or to increase capital by means of conversion.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EiZ2018%F 12831 AILF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2018
20185 20174
ARBT T ARBETT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
EREE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R0 A1 4 ) Profit before tax 3,234,899 2141773
FAEIEE Adjustments for:
BE A Finance costs 97,135 112,890
RITF A EUA Bank deposits interest income (21,376) (8,583)
EIEWRAZ IR Realisation of deferred income (34,110) (28,022)
BRE FEWZTERE Recognition of impairment on trade receivables 41,153 (22,541)
YTE K Depreciation and amortization 666,388 702,523
BEEMNES Release of prepaid lease payments 15,311 13,856
WomFE Write-down of inventories 6,821 4129
i kNI Share of results of associates = (47,310)
ﬂﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁ Dividend income from available-for-sale
& BMA investments = (135,685)
'dj’ﬁf’f@% Hes N R B EE Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 88,531 196,076
HE—HH B A RR Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (43) =
EEEERE Impairment of intangible assets = 17,485
Y - BB RRERE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 3,127 -
EEESEHIZ Operating cash flows before movements in
KERERE working capital 4,097,836 2,946,591
FE®N Increase in inventories (136,490) (282,390)
B 5 N E b fE R N Increase in trade and other receivables (72,595) (598,676)
VERERBR ZIEEMELMN Increase in properties under development for sale (1,227,694) (165,931)
B 5 N H b ZRIEIE B0, ORk Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 401,395 (819,898)
KEFEEME ZIRSIEM Increase in deposits from pre-sale of properties 1,272,638 261,391
TR AIE AN Increase in deferred income 88,448 1,119
KEMSHRS Cash generated from operations 4,423,538 1,342,206
ERPTEE RIENH Income taxes and withholding tax paid (550,156) (220,019)
RETHAEREFE NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 3,873,382 1,122,187
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BFE20184F 1231 A1HFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

20185 201746
AR¥T T AREBTIT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
RETH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EEYE - B NERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (876,595) (830,345)
(), WE T~ £t & (Payment)/Receipt for prepaid land lease (85,221) 72,860
BEELEE Purchase of intangible assets (15,166) (3,881)
IRITFREWH B Bank deposits interest received 21,376 8,583
fRRR B ARERTTIE AR (Payment for)/Proceeds from release of pledged bank
(), Fﬁ?%?i deposits (330,273) 73,843
HEWE - s Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
REPTGEUE equipment 37,849 3,839
AHEERERBUA Dividend income from available-for-sale investments = 135,685
U BB N RIIR T Refund of acquisition of associate = 59,800
WEEM B ATHIRERE Cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries = (29,290)
HE—RBWBATNES RN Cash outflow from disposal of a subsidiary (1,561) -
BAFET AE M2 EE 2 B AIZ Payment for equity investments at fair value through
B2 AIHEERE other comprehensive income/available-for-sale
investments (652,813) (68,333)
B DR UEE — AT B A ) Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary from minority
T shareholders (121,298) =
BEZEHFABS IS NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,023,702) (577,239)
METE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BEEMEHRIE Proceeds from borrowings 1,576,000 1,227,000
EBEEE Repayment of borrowings (1,314,373) (2,213,879)
BEAFE Interest paid (97,135) (112,890)
BEAIIRE Dividends paid (574,336) (290,707)
IR I R R Capital contribution from non-controlling interests 420,195 234,283
WEEBFTE / NET CASH GENERATE FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING
(FrA)REEHE ACTIVITIES 10,351 (1,156,193)
HeRERBRELER NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
&,/ (hd)EE CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,860,031 (611,245)
FORERER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT
H&EH BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,471,116 2,082,361
FREER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
LRRLHERE END OF THE YEAR
BN : represented by:
RITHEBR RS Bank balances and cash 3,331,147 1,471,116
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HE2018F12H31 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

General

Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 24 July 2006 as an exempted company with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Scotia Centre,
4th Floor, P. O. Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10
December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture,
distribution and sale of refrigerants, polymers, organic silicone
and dichloromethane, polyvinyl chloride ("PVC") and liquid alkali
and others. In addition, the Group is also engaged in property
development in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The addresses of principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” in the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2018 123



mEMBHERME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B E2018F 12431 HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. AT REIERT 2 BRI
REXEA(BHFRT B RS E

124

a1

2.1 ARz H =] RAEEFTER

RAFEE  ARBECERERHERES
AAEAEES((BERSTEAERE))
BN ZIRENRRE - R TII%A
EAREEZ FAVEREERE

BRI RS
ERIFIH

ERETB RS
ERIE 155
BRI RS
2EZ8¢
RBELT

SBITA(BER019F1 A1
H 32 8 e 5 2 B s
R B R B TR 22
FOFRETRARE T
ARIBRE):

BEAHRE BB %R
EEAFE IS BT R
INEZ 5 R FERRE °

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR

2. Application of new and revised International

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

2.1 New and revised standards adopted by the

Group

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of new

standards and interpretation issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time of
which the followings are relevant to the Group's consolidated

financial statements:

IFRS 9

IFRS 15

IFRIC 22

Financial Instruments (including the

amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation
which is mandatorily effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019);

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and

amendments to IFRS 15; and

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2018F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. Application of new and revised International

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

2.1 New and reused standards adopted by the

Group (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

A)

Application of IFRS 9 (Continued)

IFRS 9 and the amendments to IFRS 9 have replaced IAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
IFRS 9 sets out the requirements for recognising
and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities
and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial
items. In accordance with the specific transitional
provisions set out in IFRS 9, the Group has applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
requirements relating to impairment) to items that
existed as of the date of initial application (i.e. 1 January
2018) on a retrospective basis based on the facts and
circumstances and business models that existed as at
1 January 2018. However, the Group has decided not
to restate the comparative figures. Accordingly, the
comparative information continues to be presented
based on the requirements of IAS 39 and hence may
not be comparable with the current year information.
The cumulative effect of initial application of IFRS 9 has
been recognised as adjustments to the opening equity
as of 1 January 2018.
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2. Application of new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

2.1 New and reused standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

A)  Application of IFRS 9 (Continued)

(1) Classification and measurement of financial assets
In general, IFRS 9 categories financial assets into
the following three classification categories:

amortised cost;

fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI); and

fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

These classification categories are different from
those set out in IAS 39 which included held-
to-maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVTPL. The classification
of financial assets under IFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

Details about the Group’s accounting policies
for its financial assets and financial liabilities are
disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group did not designate or de-
designate any financial asset at FVTPL at 1 January
2018.
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] & % B ([ B PR B 7% 3R & % Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
Al ]) (&) (Continued)
2.1 AEBER A F ] KRBT ER 2.1 New and reused standards adopted by the
(#&) Group (Continued)
EE B S REEBFEOR ST A(H) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
A FEFEIER G IR &R E o5t (4B) A) Application of IFRS 9 (Continued) n
) ®REEMNBHRF=(E) () Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)) T Q'
TRV RIB R BB & 5T 2R The following table shows a reconciliation from ’ :
SE395R B A K B £20185F1 how the Group's financial assets existed as of 1 o
RABMemEEETHER January 2018 were classified and measured under
e HEIREEERMBRE IAS 39 to how they are classified and measured
ERFESRH HET DB RE under IFRS 9:
EMEER

BRyBREE BREHE  ERMEES

BIfR @t ER 393k BIEOHETH F39%; RAIF9HR
BT RS bl ETHEAE BETHEREE
AREFT N S ARBTT
New
0ld classification classification Carrying amount  Carrying amount
under IAS 39 under IFRS 9 under 1AS 39 under IFRS 9
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BRFEFAEMS A LESREE BRFEGA RN
a2 BAES (RRARAER) 2 ERE
Equity investments at fair value through  Available-for-sale financial FvToct 1,221,292 1201483 Notes Tand 2
other comprehensive income assets (at cost less
impairment)

Dongyuie Group Limited Annual Report 2018 127 o

ivile YRR STN TR T



mEMBHERME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BZE2018F12A31 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.

128

FE P #TR] R A 42 /] 2 B PR B 75
REXEA(BHFRT B RS E
a1 1) (&)

2.1 ARz H =] RAEEFTER
(&)

B BHREENFOREHT A (H)
A) BB T8 & BRI E 95 ()
) SRMEENDBREAEE)

GEE

1. RIRBIRR B RS A RIS
B RAFEHFREARER
EHREBIRATEMNE -
I R Z AT ERBRE S5t
AEBIFE395R B TR AR
2B AR B AT 2 84 iR
H%E  BREEBRTBERS
LERESSRBEE N TFEHNE
R IR BARR B 75 5 15 2E Rl 55 05%
F i M9 45 8 3B R - 5%
B AN E IR ER BB
2018F1R1H ) A FE &
2 MAFEEREEZRE
MEERE BEERS
#E BI| 5395 78 1220181 A1
BRHYIRB B P RER -

2. RERAFEFAEMEZEK
HEREXHBAHE A%
B B R & BB B 75 iR 5 22 A
SEO5R BT B B T B E 1 K
X RER B SR ERIE
o8k B X FE I B #3(BN20184F1
A1B) EEETHRAES
BE(BEIESEEE - ¥EH
U B 75 A B VS B 7 SR 5 2E
FEIREBKEOETEAMES
AT RERHRANRE) BIZ
AFEEF AR I -

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR

2. Application of new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

2.1 New and reused standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
A)  Application of IFRS 9 (Continued)
() Classification and measurement of financial assets

(Continued))
Notes:

1. Under IFRS 9, investments in equity securities are
required to be measured at fair value subsequently
at the end of each reporting period. Accordingly, for
investments in equity securities that were previously
measured at cost less impairment based on the cost
exemption under IAS 39 have to be measured at fair
value under IFRS 9. Based on the specific transitional
provisions set out in IFRS 9, such investments have
to be measured at fair value at the date of initial
application (i.e. 1 January 2018), with any difference
between the fair value and carrying amount under IAS
39 being recognised in the opening retained earnings
as of 1 January 2018.

2. The Group had designated certain investments in
equity securities (that are neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies) as at FVTOCI as at the date of
initial application of IFRS 9 (i.e. 1 January 2018) based
on the specific transitional provisions set out in IFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. Application of new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

2.1 New and reused standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
A)  Application of IFRS 9 (Continued)
(I Impairment
IFRS 9 has introduced the “expected credit loss

Iu

model” to replace the “incurred loss” model under
IAS 39. The “expected credit loss model” requires
an ongoing measurement of credit risk associated
with a financial asset. The Group has applied the
"expected loss model” to the following types of

financial assets:

financial assets that are subsequently
measured at amortised cost (including trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents); and

investments in debt securities that are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI;

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which
requires lifetime expected losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group's historical default experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions.
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2. Application of new and revised International

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

2.1 New and reused standards adopted by the

Group (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)
Application of IFRS 9 (Continued)
The adoption of expected credit loss model had a

A)

negligible impact on the carrying amounts of the

Group's finance assets.

(1

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

Under IFRS 9, for a financial liability designated as
at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is required to be
presented in other comprehensive income, with
the remaining amount of change in the fair value
of the liability being presented in profit or loss
(unless the treatment of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss and in which
case all gains or loss on that liability are presented
in profit or loss).

The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a significant
effect on the Group's financial liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. Application of new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

2.1 New and reused standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

B)  Application of IFRS 15
IFRS 15 has replaced IAS 11 Construction Contracts, 1AS
18 Revenue and other revenue-related interpretations.
Under IAS 11 and IAS 18, revenue arising from
construction contracts and provision of services was
recognised over time whereas revenue from sale of
goods was generally recognised at a point in time
when the risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
was passed to the customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue
is recognised when the customer obtains control of
the promised good or service in the contract. This
may be at a single point in time or over time. IFRS 15
has introduced additional qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users
of the financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from contracts with customers.
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2. Application of new and revised International

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

2.1 New and reused standards adopted by the

Group (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

B)

0

Application of IFRS 15 (Continued)

Considering the nature of the Group's principal
activities, the adoption of IFRS 15 has not had any
material impact on the consolidated financial position
and the consolidated financial results.

Application of IFRIC 22

IFRIC 22 provides guidance on determining “the date
of the transaction” for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) arising
from a transaction in which an entity receives or pays
advance consideration in a foreign currency. The
interpretation clarifies that “the date of the transaction”
is the date on initial recognition of the non-monetary
asset or liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments
or receipts in advance of recognising the related item,
the date of the transaction for each payment or receipt
should be determined in this way. The application
of IFRIC 22 has not had any material impact on the
consolidated financial position and the consolidated
financial results.



Gl

GAMBRRNE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2018F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. AT REIERT 2 BRI
BRELZEA(TEERYRREE
A1) (&)

2.2 EEMERERBEAREEE KRR

2. Application of new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised standards, interpretations
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and amendments issued but not yet effective
and not yet early adopted by the Group

The Group has not applied any of the following new and
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group that have been
issued but are not yet mandatorily effective:

IFRS 16 Leases'

Amendments to IFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets

IAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments'

F1658

BRI IsRE &R REEREHE
51055 & BB NAFRAE T E
SEHERIZE 285 ZHEMEELE
(BFTA) &>

BIRR B iR FiSHiRIZR
REZEeRE THEE M
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! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

HKFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 will supersede the current lease guidance including
IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.
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2. Application of new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised standards, interpretations

and amendments issued but not yet effective
and not yet early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

With regards to lessee accounting, the distinction of
operating leases and finance leases, as required by IAS 17,
has been replaced by a model which requires a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability to be recognised for all
leases by lessees except for short-term leases and leases of
low value assets.

Specifically, the right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments. Furthermore, the classification of cash flows
will also be affected as operating lease payments under IAS
17 are presented as operating cash flows; whereas, under
the IFRS 16 model, the lease payments will be split into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing and operating cash flows respectively.

With regards to lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17
and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, IFRS 16 requires extensive disclosures in the
financial statements.
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and amendments issued but not yet effective
and not yet early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with situations
where there is a sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the
amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss
of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business
in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method, are recognised in
the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the re-measurement of
investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has
become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method) to fair value are recognised in
the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors' interests in the new associate or joint
venture.
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2.

Application of new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(Continued)

2.2 New and revised standards, interpretations
and amendments issued but not yet effective
and not yet early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture (Continued)

The Group did not enter into these transactions in the
current year. The Directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of these amendments may not have an
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

This Interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition
and measurement requirements in IAS 12 when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments.

The Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the Interpretation will have a material impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.
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mEMBHERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE2018F12H31 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or
value in use in IAS 36.

For financial reporting purposes, some assets and liabilities
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Disclosures are required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement as to
how fair value measurements are categorised. Under IFRS 13, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date; Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2018 137



Fade)

P IS AR B RE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2018F 1231 BIFF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3.

138

FTESHBERE)
RS R ()

EHEERBENQFHEEL AR B8
EBEAAFMSAIBRREE - WEHAE—
BHAE AAKEBREEFF=1EER
HEMETHE - AREHFEREAER
SNBEEMBEREIE RE_ERF=ZER
FEFERVMETEENHAERMEEA
B Hig UHBEBESAEEEREEER
FENTTE -

ERETHRESIOTE o

mEEE

2*/*\57}?%3@&%% BREARB RBARE REH

AREHINER(BREERTEER) MK
#&?E EARNRBEBATGRMR - NABE
4

BESNBIRETHED

A S E LRI B RS
TRER &

-}kH
53d

BRENEREEIZE

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, management
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group normally engages a
third party qualified valuer to perform valuation. The finance team
of the Group works closely with the qualified external valuer to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The
finance team will then report to management how fair values are
determined.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A E2018F12H31 A IEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non- controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non- controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the carrying amounts of the
non- controlling interests and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combination

An acquisition of a business is accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
(including the Group’s ownership interest in the acquiree before
the business combination) is measured at fair value at the date of
acquisition. Contingent consideration is also measured at fair value
at the date of acquisition and at the end of subsequent periods.
Changes in fair value of contingent consideration in subsequent
periods are recognised in profit or loss except when the changes
qualify as “measurement period adjustments” as defined in HKFRS
3 Business Combinations. Contingent consideration that meets the
definition of equity is not subsequently remeasured.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are generally recognised at their fair values.

The excess of (a) the sum of (i) consideration transferred, (i) the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and (iii)
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree over (b) the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. On the other hand, if (b)
is greater than (a), the excess, after reassessment, is immediately
recognised in profit or loss as a bargain gain.

Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss

as incurred.

The resulting gain or loss arising from re-measurement of the
Group’s ownership interest in the acquiree before the business
combination is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree before the business combination that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such reclassification would
be appropriate if the interest were disposed of.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combination (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another IFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Business combination (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
IAS 39, or IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquire prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised as of that date.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash- generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.



EFESEBOR(R)
B A RNRE

BERNRAAEBEAEATXEINERE -
BEAFENESEPIRE T B R 2 EREK
RTERES - B IFFEHI R AR F R

s

ﬁio

BERRNEEANEERBBAEG SR
ERZEGEEVBHRRAR - (FRE G0
ik 2B R R 2 M BmR Ty IREAN K B
RERZRABREATEE 2R ST HEK
R - REEZS - RBERRNREN S
BRARGE PPN RER - WHRERERL
ﬁEWK%IJEEE%H%%’ATE’J?@A&ﬁ@i
ERETIAAE - EAKBERIEB L QRN
ERBHARERZBEARNER(ERE
BE ERAARERNZBE RREFE—
B RGER)E - AREBUEER
HEMNE—TER - ERNAKBCDELZX
;E‘JZ?EE E - RERERZBE DR NHK
TRHER T - TS EREINEE

R—EBERBNRERPIRE TR —HE
BENBZ ARAEREAR - ERER—
A2 RRNRER  REKABBAEE
EIEZ R B AI#BIEERABRHEF
ENEAFOERASEE - AT ARENK
mfE - AEBEEEAI#NEELBBENAF
FEBBREKANEMED - REHTH
RERE U IR ) ER R BN 1B 2 FERR

mEMBHERME
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment
is acquired.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue (net of value added tax or other sales taxes) from the
sale of goods is recognised at a particular point in time when
customers have control over the promised goods, which is
generally the time when goods are delivered to customers and
customers have accepted the goods.

Revenue from sale of completed residential properties is
recognised at a particular point in time. This is the time when
legal assignment is completed which is the time when the
customer has ability to direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the property. Deposits
and instalments received from customers prior to this revenue
recognition point are included in “contract liabilities” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost. (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance)
of the net asset.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants of which the primary condition is
that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where the current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non- monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described below),
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment
loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasehold land for own use (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of these payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effective of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been

demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)
how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed
above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, internally- generated intangible asset is reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised.

Exploration rights

Exploration rights are recognised at cost on initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, Exploration rights are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration rights include the cost of exploration rights and the
expenditures incurred in the search for natural resources as well
as the determination of the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration rights are reclassified as either intangible
or tangible assets. These assets are assessed for impairment before
reclassification.

Impairment of exploration rights

The carrying amount of the exploration rights is reviewed annually.
When one of the following events or changes in circumstances,
which is not exhaustive, indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable has occurred, impairment test is performed in
accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

the period for which the Group has the right to explore in

the specific area has expire during the period or will expire in
the near future, and is not expected to be renewed.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2018 155



Fade)

P IS AR B RE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2018F 1231 BIFF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3.

156

FTESHBERE)
BREEA)

RIRRE 2R E ()
HE-TSHRIHEFTREAAER
ZARERBEEER - TMERE -

AR E BRI B IR K T A B A B TR 8 3%
BEELATZAEBRER  BA%
B AERINBERE ZZEEED -

ENBEBRA - BERNRFERK A%

ARG BEETT  BHRETHEEZ
FREET AR RAEREET @
Y -

M —IBE E 2 REERHH e & 5
APREBENER AR o

FE

FERE®E B HRRK A E A #1R FE 8
IR EFIER - BORSRA NETFIDEFE - 7
SR FEEFENMAHEEEBRMA M T
B 7R Ko 1T 84 65 P 4478 BB

EHERB 2R

AEEEBRETIEFHERG IR IMERE
BYRFARBEE - WIRA AR A #I])F
EPREEFR KEABEIMENES R
MEFRBERAR - MERBERABIERER
K RREAEEGHBRERMEZBEERR
MABPEEE 2 BERBHEKAE - MEXHE
BREBLIRARTIERAINEFIDEEE -

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of exploration rights (Continued)
substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of natural resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned.

exploration for and evaluation of natural resources in the
specific area have not led to discovery of commercially viable
quantities of natural resources and the Group has decided to
discontinue such activities in the specific area.

sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development
in the specific area is likely to proceed, the carrying amount
of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be
recovered in full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
at the end of each reporting date. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties for sale

Completed properties and properties under development for
sale in the ordinary course of business are included in current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises both the prepaid lease payments for land and
development costs for the properties. Development costs
of properties comprise construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised according to the Group's accounting policy and directly
attributable costs incurred during the development period. Cost of
each unit in each phase of development is determined using the
weighted average method.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Properties for sale (Continued)

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion.

The Group transfers a property from inventories to investment
property when there is a change of intention to hold the property
to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than for
sale in ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Any
difference between the fair value of the property at the date of
transfer and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade receivables which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15 Since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVTOCI"):

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in OCl if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period.

If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “other gains and
losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses
("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to impairment under
IFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting dates to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after each reporting date.

Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime EGL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at each
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

(iiiy  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv) WEEBCR (iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner.

Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a de recognition event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped
on the following basis:
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

SETA(E) Financial instruments (Continued)

EREEE) Financial assets (Continued)

TR EERE(E) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v) TEHEESEMNERERE) (v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
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Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortized cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade and other receivables
and other financial assets measured at amortised cost, where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by group entities are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

De recognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group'’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the assets is estimated in order to determine the effect of the
impairment loss. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating-units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Share based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve).

At the end of reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognized in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will continue to be
held in share option reserve.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concurring the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables based on the expected credit
losses which uses a I5ted loss allowance for all trade receivables.
The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Management reassesses the
provision at each balance sheet date.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on projected product
lifecycles and economic life of property, plant and equipment.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. The aggregate carrying value of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2018 is RMB3,860,200,000
(2017: RMB3,804,155,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as the Group’s
management considers it is probable that the future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses or tax credit can be utilised. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2018 is
RMB213,741,000 (2017: RMB246,398,000).
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4.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Exploration rights

The Group's exploration rights have a finite validity period, after
which the Group will need to apply for renewal. The Group's
exploration rights were renewed in October 2017 for a period
of two years till October 2019. Having checked the applicable
laws and regulations in the PRC, the directors of the Company
anticipate that there is no material legal impediments would
prevent the Group from renewing its exploration rights provided
that the Group submits the relevant application documents in
compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations to the
relevant PRC government authority. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company believe the Group will be able to renew the
exploration rights with the relevant government authority upon
the expiry of the exploration rights in October 2019 at insignificant
cost. In addition, the directors of the Company assess the
impairment of the exploration rights by estimating the recoverable
amount of the assets. The carrying amount of exploration rights at
31 December 2018 is RMB22,515,000 (2017: RMB22,515,000) and
impairment of RMBnil was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: RMB17,485,000).

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
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Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital, share premium,
reserves and retained earnings.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

20184 20174
ARMT T ARETT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
TREE Financial assets
ERNMEWZIA(BIECHEIF  Loans and receivables (including pledged
IRITER -~ BITEBR K bank deposits, bank balances and cash) 5,425,891 3,429,326
BATEFAEMEAWE  Equity investments at fair value through
LA E other comprehensive income 1,801,394 =
A ERE Available-for-sale investments = 1,221,292
7,227,285 4,650,618
=N Financial liabilities
BHARAR Amortised cost 3,702,493 3,084,119
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables and borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The Group’s management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risks

(i) Currency risk
The functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries are
RMB with most of the transactions settled in RMB.
However, foreign currency (mainly the United States
dollar "USS$") were received when the Group earned
revenue from overseas customers and when settling
payables for purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

The Group does not have any hedging policy to
manage the risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. In order to reduce the risk of holding
foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the
foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while taking
into account its foreign currencies payment schedule in
the near future.
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5. EXAEREMBEKREEEE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

REE (&) objectives and policies (Continued)
(b) MERBREEEZERBER(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)
TG R (&) Market risks (Continued)
() E¥mEEE) (i) Currency risk (Continued)

RBEBEH  NEEOINEGE
BE¥EEREEAENREEN
-

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

EE aE
Assets Liabilities
20184 20175 20184 20174
ARETRT AREFTT AR¥TRT AR®TT
2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ET uss$ 514,874 379,160 25,362 26,737

2018F 1283180 MA R X
ELAEBEBEI0% mMAAE
BigmfigEr/ THRARE
48,950,0007C (20174 : /&, £F+
AR #35240000) 0 T ERA B
BREUETENRITESR LR
© BHREMBURFKERINE
TEHEMEENEN K Ei8
FTEL -

EEERS  FREANERTE
RERFARER - BEEE DT
BERKREBINER

At 31 December 2018, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against US$ with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB48,950,000 higher/lower (2017: RMB35,240,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of US$S denominated bank
balances and cash, trade and other receivables and US$
denominated borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2018 175



REMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2018F 1231 BIFF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2018

5. EXERBRMBERRBEEER
RBUR (&)
BEEAREREBEREEE)

176

(b)

™5k ()

(ii)

T 7 b
AEEEREATESHRITEE(EHA
ZEBENFBRME) AN
NFEFERER - R2018F12H
318 REE27% (20174F © 20%)
MEEATEEE -

REBTHEBGHERITER - £5F
EFRREZFEBEEEENRESRE
FRERR -

AEENRSREMNXERE
SHRA %lJPKE$EIAE?§¥1
BERETEENTISERM KN
EHBEEAERME - BERTT
REFRB(EERITRAERS D
KfmBERTRER S (M REET
RIZEIFE ) RKE

TXBEE DT TIRERITE
K% Jﬁ%)ﬁﬁﬁﬁwmﬂIHM%
c DM IHERBERRNY B
ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%‘%o EREHNESE
AR EBM TG HER LA
T BR10Kk 2518 £ B (20174F - 10k
25EEE) -

BAEEERORITE R ER
BmE - WHEREEFTEIO
EE2E (20174 - 101EEEZE) - MY
EEMAZRRERFTE - IR
EERE Z=2018F 128318 L F
[E BB B 18 0% B S 0B A A
R #1,1450007T(20174F « AR ¥
1,098,0007T) °

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR

5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i)  Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 27 for
details of these borrowings). At 31 December 2018,
27% (2017: 20%) of the Group's borrowings bear fixed
interest rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits, entrusted loans and
variable-rate borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market deposit
rate and the PRC official lending rate, Hang Seng
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") and London Inter-
Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR") arising from the Group's RMB
borrowings and USD borrowings respectively.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings. The analysis
is prepared on the financial balance at the end of
reporting period. 10 and 25 basis points (2017: 10 and
25 basis points) increase or decrease is used which
represents management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate.

In relation to the Group’s exposure to interest rates risk
on bank deposits, if interest rates had been 10 basis
points (2017: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2018 would increase/
decrease by RMB1,145,000 (2017: RMB1,098,000).
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Furthermore, in relation to the Group’'s exposure to
interest rates risk on variable-rate borrowings, if interest
rates had been 25 basis points (2017: 25 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2018 would decrease/increase by RMB2,861,000 (2017:
RMB2,745,000), mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expenses on floating rate borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Dongyuie Group Limited Annual Report 2018 177 2



{
: {

&

A s
M

i

<
)

e MBRERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2018F 1231 BIFF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2018

5. EXERBRMBERRBEEER
RBUR (&)
(b) BBEMSEEBERBEEGE)

EERE
AEBWEEAEFHEERR - 1877
HEkRe  BDERBROTERRESE
WHIBENEEACERMAEBCRHEE
MR EEER - R20185F K£20174F12
A318 - B RTESRITFABREGRTT
REERINSBRE WEEXNEE
Ek -  EEEEHTEEAZEHFAT
BAMBREMIBR - FEHEERH
FRELHRIFNETES - A5EED
HIEFTBUR R R BUREENE S IE
Wk - B S RWGRIBARBESREE
EERER - NEEERBRR MR ELE
RISt b T AT BB EEEE
RIS HERES - BFTH L 5 e FUE B
BEETEHANTELRER - A28
HiEEER  ESRUGBECREEG
FERBFE R BIRXE SR - TAAE
BERENHEENELARBERRLIRG
HEBATEERE - BEBEXIELA
BARMFZER P &SRR N
EZ=ERTRATEMER

Hi W HFIB(TREBENRBINEE
ERE2ZHFANBORNELER
MEFFH S ERBETTE - EER
A HtERFENEERBRE - R
A2 FEWGRIE R U Bl RE 8% B AT © EL -
H b e RIB (TR ETENRIE) WTE
EEBARFIHELOINS - BEZE2018
F12A318R2017F12 431 B W EEHR
B -

178 REKEBRAE —B—-N\FFR

5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash, pledged
bank deposits and trade receivables represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all bank balances
were deposited in reputable financial institutions and were
hence without significant credit risk. Management does
not expect any losses from non-performance by these
counterparties. Credit sales are made to selected customers
with good credit history. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that outstanding trade receivables are collected on
a timely basis. Trade receivables are subject to the expected
credit loss model. The Group applies IFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss
rates are based on the historical payment profiles of sales
and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

The credit quality of the other receivables excluding
prepayments has been assessed with reference to historical
information about the counterparties default rates and
financial position of the counterparties. The directors are of
the opinion that the credit risk of other receivables is low
due to the sound collection history of the receivables due
from them. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of the other
receivables excluding prepayments is assessed to be close
to zero and no provision was made as of 31 December 2018
and 31 December 2017.
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and
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Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings.
The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had available
undrawn borrowing facilities of RMB2,042,750,000 (2017:
RMB2,991,000,000). Details of which are set out in note 27.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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5. EXEREVMBEKREEERE 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

REE (&) objectives and policies (Continued)
(b) BEEREEEERBEK (&) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
Policies (Continued)
FEESEME(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
REE 2 R FIRE R (E) Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

R2018%

AEBHE  1ANEH

MET IR 1fBAR 1B3ER 3fARRIE 15258 id-£:t HEfE
ARETT  ARETn ARETR ARETn  ARETR  AR%ET:n

Carrying

Weighted Total amount at
average Less than 13 3 months Tyearto undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 5years  cashflows 2018

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Ma018F128318 31 December 2018

ESRANENTE Trade and other payabls 1,193,140 685,711 331,778 77697 2294326 2294326
ffE Borrowings

) - fixed rates 4.34% = = 314,043 261,142 575,185 556,450
-%8 - variable rates 5.33% 6,929 78,629 559,812 1,008,305 1,653,675 1,526,000
1,200,069 764,340 1,211,633 1,347,144 4,523,186 4,376,776
VNP
AHRRE  nANER
IR 1A 1B3ER EREE 1EESF RELE HAfE
AEBTR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average Less than 13 3 months Tyearto  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to T year 5 years cash flows 2017
RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMBI000 RMBI000

0175128318 31 December 2017
BAREMERZE Trade and other payables = 700218 931,715 341,19 15,258 1988,387 1988387

&8 Borrowings

-T8 - fived rates 501% 849 127,264 162,200 80415 370728 357,000
-8 - variable rates 6.92% 5013 64,121 785,104 696,112 1550350 1463821
706,080 1,123,100 1,288,500 791,785 3909465 3,809,208
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Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
(c) Fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Revenue and segment information

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods and
properties.

The Group's operations are organised based on the different types
of products and property development. Information reported to
the board of directors of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of products
and property development. This is the basis upon which the
Group is organised.

The Group's operating and reportable segments are as follows:
Refrigerants;
Polymers;
Organic silicone;
Dichloromethane, Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC) and liquid alkali;

Property development - development of residential
properties at Shandong Province, the PRC.

Other operations — manufacturing and sales of side-products
of refrigerants segment, polymers segment, organic silicone
segment and dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali

segment.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2018 181



e MBRERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2018F 1231 BIFF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. MKk oHER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
DU ERFEE Segment revenues and results
REFBRZRERLEEEDIBOWE RELEND The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
MR o reportable and operating segment.
20185 2018
ZERR  puC

8 RATHN 1 ReE  NERY EABAR  EpER B2E 4
ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR  ARWTR ARRTR  ARBTR ARRTR ARRTR ARWR

Dichloromethane, Reportable
Organic PVCand Property  segments’ Other
Refrigerants  Polymers Silicone liquidalkali ~ development total  operations  Eliminations Total

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000

e External sales 3260154 3879793 3380373 1,723,746 239639 12483705 1,735.232
HRmEE Inter-seqment sales 3020864 213,268

14,218,937
193,578 - 3410 960,011 (4,387,721) =

BYE-2BRE  Totel revenue - seqment revenue 6,281,018 4,093,061  3,380373 1917324 239,639 15911415 2695243 (4387,721) 14,218,937

Nk SEGMENT RESULTS 805,467 915,014 984,040 466,059 65,524 3,236,104 105,745 - 3,341,849
RAELEHET  Unallocated corporate expenses (9,815)
BERL Finance costs (97,135)
kel Profit before tax 3,234,899

182 RE£EERQAT —ZE—-N\FEH



Wz K 2 B E R ()

%ﬁﬁz

mEMBRERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2018F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
TENMEREE(E) Segment revenues and results (Continued)
20175 2017
8%k
geH  RATHH Bt Rl MERE 2EAPEE  ApEK i e
ARETT  ARBTR  ARMTT  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR
Dichloromethane, Reportable
Organic PVCand Property  segments Other
Refrigerants Polymers Slicone liquid alkali  development total  operations  Eliminations Total
RMBO00 RMB000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB100
Fapl=ts External sales 2502275 2927843 2428056 1604099 25510 9,747,983 389,154 = 10,137,137
HHRMEE Inter-segment sales 1,387,964 = = 4608 - 1305n 9764 (21223%) =
BINE-DHRE  Total revenue - segment revenue 380239 208 2428256 1,608,707 85510 11040555 1118918 (1236) 10137137
PR SEGMENT RESULTS 588,442 605,033 4338% 354554 30648 2014533 BI5 - 2251748
AARGERR Unallocated corporate expenses (443%9)
BEMA Finance costs (1128%)
EIEBEDAZE  Shareof results of associates 47310
BRATAR Proft bfore tax 21478

2/ LE D B S R BOR R 3 EUT
MAKRE SR BERER - DRFEGEIREL E
DEARDEEMBA - PRITHEERA - EF
¥e o BEBEARFERBEXRAZIBNR
T BENBRERE - WLHRBEERKEAZ
BIAMEERDBEERRRFEFTEIRR - i
REBEENAEN D BEMLIFRAZE
REANZHMAEERD B R ERIR
B MUEEINZEFER -

DEEHHE IRRITTHE &

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies as
described in note 3. Segment results represent the results of each
segment without allocation of unallocated other income, central
administration costs, directors’ salaries, share of result of associates
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. No segment information on assets
and liabilities is presented as such information is not reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. WEkoEER(EF) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
EREREE Entity-wide disclosures
EBRRERDBEZ2EAB R RENIRKRER Information about revenue from refrigerants segment by
B Uk =5 B products from external customers
20185 20174
AR¥ T ARETFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
—®m—a P HCFC-22) Monochlorodifluoromethane (HCFC-22) 864,491 696,063
P& Z KT (R134a) Tetrafluoroethane (R134a) 326,057 169,015
RALIT(RI25) Pentafluoroethane (R125) 129,121 83,596
R439A R439A 14,767 2,089
R410a R410a 353,113 569,788
R413A R413A = 33,382
R142b R142b 249,409 123,424
R152a R152a 175,065 164,597
R22 R22 451,147 302,045
R32 R32 252,018 180,088
R507A R507A 116,740 -
R407C R407C 113,534 -
HAh Others 214,692 178,188
3,260,154 2,502,275
AERERSEISHFME SR E IR Information about revenue from polymers segment by
EEMHKEER products from external customers
20184 20174
AR%T T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
B PO LI (PTFE) Polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) 2,055,189 1,551,160
JNEA I (HFP) Hexafluoropropylene (HFP) 397,881 256,997
NEIRT bt Perfluorocyclobutane 102,076 76,114
BB LR (FEP) Fluorinated ethylene propylene (FEP) 471,449 34,099
Bm & LM% (PVDF) Polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) 415,177 360,039
FIZRB(FKM) Fluorine rubber (FKM) 193,454 152,550
1R 2 1% (VDF) Vinylidene fluoride (VDF) 88,031 49,968
Hh Others 156,536 446,916
3,879,793 2,927,843
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2018F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

Information about revenue from organic silicone segment by

Bk EER products from external customers
20184 20174
ARBTR ARET T
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
DMC(ZREFARERE DMC (Dimethylcyclosiloxane) 117,009 290,488
1078E15 8 107 Silicone Rubber 1,534,455 927,718
£B Raw Vulcanizate 484,710 405,291
RIRE Gross Rubber 230,753 92,138
REA KR Gaseous Silica 164,903 120,248
DMCIK R DMC Hydrolysate 49,369 140,494
=HESRR Trimethylchlorosilane 244,429 65,970
RES-AER Methyldichlorosilane 41,183 4,296
B EEEDMC DMC Lineament 127,409 181,568
D4(\FREIRMEEAST) D4 (Octamethyl Cyclotetrasiloxane) 2,187 18,080
AR Dimethy silicone oil 187,440 =
HA Others 196,526 181,965
3,380,373 2,428,256

FHRRERIBZ-SF K - PVCRERS

Information about revenue from Dichloromethane, PVC and

BRENIREEHWREER liquid alkali by products segment from external customers
2018% 20174
AR®BT T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
PVC PVC 692,042 615,980
—E R Dichloromethane 281,294 214,516
o Liqui alkali 750,410 773,603
1,723,746 1,604,099
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BZE2018F12A31 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. MKk oHER (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
ERERENE(E) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
FRRERIECHMRE I IREIRE Information about revenue from other operations segment by
BrykamE s products from external customers
2018% 20174
AR¥ TR ARETT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AHF (R E L E) AHF (Anhydrous Fluoride) 21,431 41,793
R [k Ammonium Bifluoride 69,511 59,234
QEE Hydrofluoric Acid 65,321 43,612
BRE Bromine 75,467 70,745
2AE Fluorgypsum 10,036 =
fizkd Aluminium ingot 516,988 =
(257 Zinc ingot 43,048 =
B3 Copper cathode 430,025 =
ERFIR Nickel cathode 337,515 =
Hity Others 165,890 173,770
1,735,232 389,154
EBRXTERFER Information about major customers
HZE2018F M2017F12A31 B IEFMEFES There was no revenue from a single customer that contributed
FHmEEE R IR AREBRBINE over 10% of the total sales of the Group during each of the two
FEAY10% A | o years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE2018F12H31 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

Geographical information

The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical

N location of customers is detailed below:
20184 20174
ARET T AREFTT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
H PRC 11,834,428 8,212,343

M (BRFAEISN) Asia (except PRC)

=P - Japan 444,774 354,951
— A - South Korea 318,734 361,571
—HE - India 57,116 27,176
—FThniE - Singapore 69,620 23,936
— 2R — Thailand 37,972 37,576
— PR e A 2 R E — United Arab Emirates 118,799 104,323
—EBEHNE — Pakistan 26,428 21,359
— BRI E - Malaysia 40,974 33,266
— BB - Kuwait 24,663 -
— PR R - Saudi Arabia 3,244 -
—EERERAS —~ Indonesia 23,453 -
—LAE5 — Israel 2,220 .
—JEEE — Philippines 15,922 6,574
— i — Viet Nam 29,365 20,724
—THH — Turkey 49,514 65,698
—HER — Other countries 17,964 61,456
INEF Subtotal 1,280,762 1,118,610
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. WEkoEER(EF) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
WEER(E) Geographical information (Continued)
20184 20174
AR¥T T ARETIT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
EM America
—%H — United States of America 455,916 365,765
—BEm - Brazil 113,177 103,264
—&2H - Chile 2,370 -
—HMER - Other countries 40,320 27,866
NE Subtotal 611,783 496,895
BN Europe
—BKF — Italy 211,678 131,929
—HE - England 4,925 13,820
— B — Russia 39,169 41,900
— 12 — Germany 36,142 29,192
—EH - France 8,635 8,110
— PRI SF - Spain 4,294 -
— Eb B ~ Belgium 42,262 -
— K - Poland 34,403 -
—HMBER — Other countries 4,152 21,015
INET Subtotal 385,660 245,966
JEM Africa
S - South Africa 34,131 23,867
- K - Egypt 21,192 6,659
—EB g8 - Nigeria 27,681 18,524
—HMER — Other countries 9,323 8,164
INET Subtotal 92,327 57,214
HER & Other countries/regions 13,977 6,109
14,218,937 10,137,137
FIEARE 2 FRBEEDMRFE All of the non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
HippEER Other segment information
ZRFR - pVC 25Rae
BN BOTHM BRE R UEEE AREE EtER 2]
AEETR  ARETn  ARETR AEETT  ARBTR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Dichloromethane Reportable
Organic PVCand Property  and operating Other
Refrigerants Polymers Silicone  liquidalkali ~ development ~segmenttotal operations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20185 2018
0% BRRRENE  Depreciation of property plant and
equipment 248,672 163,316 108,874 96,245 3,350 620,457 31,355 651,812
ERAERH Amartisation of intangible assets 1,966 10,261 17 1,697 131 14172 404 14,576
DEFMHERE  Recognition of impairment on trade
receivables 24,166 1,092 LAl 3,292 11,805 40,776 3n 1,153
FERRERR Reseach and development expense 9,141 131,231 29314 4375 - 174,061 3,299 177,360
HHFE Wite-down of inventories 649 - 5,945 164 - 6,758 6 6,821
HENE - BRRRE  Loss (gain) on disposals of property,

BB (ka) plant and equipment 39,556 2629 2915 17,033 (179) 85,954 2578 88,532
FRENES Release of prepaid lease payments 3510 5210 3397 1345 - 13462 1,849 15311
VESE I Impairment on property, plant and

B equipment 3 - - 2 g 3 3125 3128

8 P E
IRH RATIH BRE iz VESES HHEE EfbEh aE
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETT  AREfR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Dichloromethane Reportable
Organic PVCand Property  and operating Other
Refrigerants Polymers Silicone liguidakali  development  seqment total operations Total
RMB000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB000
w178 2017
0% BERREME  Depreciation of property plant and
equipment 231,944 165460 13123 123466 5457 657,550 32985 690,535
BYEERY Amortisation of ntangiole assets 0 10258 125 538 30 11922 ) 11988
(BE)BAEFEUFE  (Reisal recogniton of impaiment on

e trade receivables (18122) (137) 90 (3.914) = (21193) (1,348) (22,541)
FERRERR Research and development expense 5774 79462 7988 73 = 93959 650 94609
HHFE Wite-down of inventories 21508 = = 1525 = 4053 T 4129
HENE - BRRRE  Loss (gain) on disposals of property,

BEUE) plant and equipment 29971 35,145 112,105 18856 (95) 195982 9 196076
BREAAS Release of prepaid lease payments 3005 5199 3129 1308 - 12761 1095 13856
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BZE2018F12A31 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

7. HMlkA 7. Other income
20184 20174
ARET T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
BT B (P 7E@)) Government grants (note a) 57,541 70,042
RITFEHF S WA Bank deposits interest income 21,376 8,583
REAMHBERE 2 REIWA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments = 135,685
EHF B WA Other interest income 723 2,080
Rl Exchange gain 20,309 -
EYERRE Compensation received 7,667 -
Hh Others 11,593 9,077
119,209 225,467
s - Notes:
(@) BNAEEFrEREASERRHEENHER (@  The government grants are mainly the subsidies for expenditures on
FAZEFI ST MO EL o research and development expenses incurred by the Group.
8. ME WA 8. Finance costs
20184 20174
AR%T T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AME Interest on:
ARAFAZHEECRITEE Bank borrowings wholly repayable within
five years 94,358 111,648
ARAFANEEZHMEE Other borrowings repayable within five years 2,777 1,242
97,135 112,890
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9. Income tax expense

mEMBRERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EFE2018F12A31 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018% 20174
AR%TR AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB'000
RRECEMSH(TEMSEH ) PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT™)
—ERFE - Current year 714,858 201,034
—BEFERERE — Over provision in prior years (1,776) (1,134)
— bR ER ([ L IEER ) — Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") (12,799) 12,091
700,283 211,991
EIERIIE 2 H (i 7520) Deferred tax charge (note 20)
—HERB AR 2IKEF — Withholding tax for distributable profits
TRHIB of PRC subsidiaries 65,082 48,042
—H - Others 34,835 199,941
99,917 247,983
s fif X sa%a Total income tax expense 800,200 459,974
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e MBRERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2018F 1231 BIFF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2018

9. FIBHMAX (&) 9. Income tax expense (Continued)
REEMIBRTHEGEABER RAMEEEA The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
HEROBFHELE MAEEEDT ¢ tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

2018% 20174
AR¥EET T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
FR 750 BT 7 Profit before tax 3,234,899 2,141,773
A ZEE BB R ER Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate
BIEST H (M EEa) (Note a) (747,815) (497,685)
BEERETERNEH Income tax on concessionary rate (34,328) (29,263)
PR R AR TR IB R 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose 451 45,749
N HB A OB IEE 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose (1,934) (14,724)
AERHESENTIBETE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (679) (12,492)
FIA SR AR MR TIBBER Tax effect of utilization of tax losses
MIERE previously not recognised 11,578 85,629
BEFE (BREEE) BETE  (over)/Under provision in respect of prior
years (1,776) 2,095
FENE AT D IREFKELERTE Deferred tax on distribution earnings of PRC
(FizEDb ) subsidiaries (Note b) (65,082) (48,042)
T3 IRE R (Fi ) LAT (Note c) 12,799 (12,090)
THIRERNTIATE Tax effect of LAT (3,200) 3,022
A Others 29,786 17,827
AREEFHIERL Tax expense for the year (800,200) (459,974)
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25%BAEEMERREEARRIENBR
AILERRECTERAR(TERELT]) - X
RESHIFMHRERAR(RESSFD - W
RREERENHMAERAR(TREAHE])
WRREREMHERQF(RERLE ) R
RREMABEXBRAR(HAERE ] KM
BAPTS BB E - IIREEBAFMHBRAT
(TEEMA DOMERBER%  HREE
RFEHEMEEER -

R 9% B B D K B R B A 48 R e A B S B 12008
F1RXM - PEIEIEE2008F 1 A1 ARATES
SEAF RS - BREGNGIRE B EMI
B EREYEIR27IEARINIIRE ¥
FHNE I FEFTISTEE B AR DS 01 KA IR T 4
MIFERBE - MBARKRD IREF IELTR
BEE,/8EARME650820007 (20174 © A
R#48,042,0007T) EFT AFNIEE ©
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REB R - BV E TS FRBA R
S BRI E AERRCR K FT P S B
X e

BT IR A B AP RE20 ©

REMBHRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A E2018F12H31 A IEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Income tax expense (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25% represents the relevant
income tax rate of Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue
Chemicals"), Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd. ("‘Dongyue Polymers”),
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd (“Dongyue
Organosilicon”), Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.
("Dongyue Fluo-Silicon”) and Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd
("Union Property”) which are the major subsidiaries of the Company. The
income tax rate of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd.
("Huaxia Shenzhou") is 15% as it obtained the qualification as a high and
new technology enterprise.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State
Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui [2008] No.1, dividend distributed out
of the profits generated since 1 January 2008 held by the PRC entity shall
be subject to EIT pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law
Concerning Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and
Article 91 of the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income
Tax Law for Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises.
Deferred tax asset/liability of RMB65,082,000 (2017: RMB48,042,000) on
the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries has been charged to profit or
loss for the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Z2018F 1231 BIFF/E
For the year ended 31 December 2018

10. F RN K 2 H W 48 58

FREMN R 2 EK AR TR T HISIA

10. Profit and total comprehensive income for

the year

arrived at after charging the following items:

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year has been

2018%F 20174
AR¥T ARETT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
EHEBRA Short-term employee benefits 813,520 556,339
RKEF Post-employment benefits 97,253 78,537
Hh 8 TR Other staff welfare 60,633 38,952
@8 TR A Total staff costs 971,406 673,828
EHRBRX 2 FEKAR Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 9,236,077 5,423,309
M - HEREBHBITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 651,812 690,535
BREESHEGIABERA) Amortisation of intangible assets (included
in cost of sales) 14,576 11,988
Z SR BN & Auditor’s remuneration 2,910 2,988
FEH (W), B8 sEE Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses (20,309) 31,460
R (BR)E SEWFHIERME  Recognition/(Reversal) of impairment on
trade receivables 41,153 (22,541)
DR AR 2 MK A  Research and development costs recognized
as an expense 177,360 94,609
WORFE (FEASEEKA) Write-down of inventories (included in cost
of sales) 6,821 4,129
ERIENES Release of prepaid lease payments 15,311 13,856
HEYE  BRRZHEER Loss on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 88,532 196,076
M - HEE R ERE Impairment of property, plant and
equipment 3,127 -
mILEEREA Impairment of intangible assets - 17,485

BEREMNOEIBIEL A AR K17,4240007T

(20174 : AR¥14,143,0007T) °

M WEBTRABRREEEHE -
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RMB14,143,000).

The actual discretionary bonus paid was RMB17,424,000 (2017:

Notes: Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE2018F12H31 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

11.Directors’ and chief executive’s

FMEERTETRABCNRENZB

emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and the chief

T executive were as follows:
2018%F 2018
REsEE
BfgTeA DN
g e (BiE)  RETEER X% EftEd At
ARSI ARMTR ARBTRT ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%T:x
Equity-settled
Discretionary Pension  share-based
bonus scheme payment Other
Fees Salary (Note) contributions expense benefits Total
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
BTEE Executive Directors
RELLE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 11,602 - - - 17,746
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan 144 - = = = - 144
RELE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - - - 144
REELE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 144 1,200 5,822 - - - 7,166
RUELE Mr. Zhang Bishu 144 - - - - - 144
fEmit Mr. Liu Chuang - - - = = = =
BUFYTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRELE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 378 - - - - - 378
EEREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 195 - - - - - 195
ABEBLE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 195 - - - - - 195
1,488 7,200 17,424 - - - 26,112
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B E2018F 12431 HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

NEERETRTHRASHMN(E)

11. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)
20174 2017
RigEE
Rigfea SARIA
e e (F5E)  RIKEHEIER XX EfEN it
ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARETR
Equity-settled
Discretionary Pension share-based
bonus scheme payment Other
Fees Salary (Note)  contributions expense benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BiTEE Executive Directors
REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 6,000 7691 = = = 13,835
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan 144 = = = 5 = 144
Gt Mr. Liu Chuangi 7 = 108 = = = 180
ERBLER017F  Mr. Cui Tongzheng (resigned
SA2AEHE) on 2 May 2017) 4 800 1,021 5 = = 1,874
BRELAE(R01I7F  Mr.Feng Jianjun (resigned
SA2AEHE) on 2 May 2017) 4 = = = = = 4
RELE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 = 5 = 5 = 144
FEESLE (R017F  Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (appointed
SRIBEZF) on 2 May 2017) % 1,200 5323 - - - 6619
RUEEAE (K017 Mr. Zhang Bishu (appointed
SRIBEZF) on 2 May 2017) % - - - - - %
BUFYTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 364 2300 - - - - 2,664
EEREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 188 250 = = = = 438
BEBLA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 188 250 5 = 5 = 438
1532 10,800 14143 5 - - 26,480

196 REEEBRLR —T-NFFERH



NEERFETHRAEHHE)

20174 (48)

SRIBRSCETRARAITHAREL - EXFTH
BHH eSS FRTRARRERREOH
B o

FRAEBTEANEEZRERESHFAL
TS AREENBEAREBEREA AL
EEMRSERAEE  BEXTEITHRAS
M EEWEEE2018F12831H LA
FENIAME -

FA - BELKIEESREMEZRXEER
BEENSHERERAME - RAKEN - 5K
sEM - BT R FRQ017F - &)
BERERRESREME TE=TXE=
HREWZ REQ74 - &) - HIEAES
HIZGEERHERRATEAZER -
EERFEMRFH(2017F : &) -
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mEMBRERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A E2018F12H31 A IEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

11. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)
2017 (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Jianhong is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the directors waived
any emoluments for the two years ended 31 December 2018.

During the year, no emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of Directors’ services were paid
or made, directly or indirectly, to the Directors; nor are any payable
(2017: nil). No consideration was provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available Directors’ services (2017: nil). There are
no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of Directors, their
controlled bodies corporate and connected entities (2017: nil).

Note: Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance
of the directors.
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12.

198

1% & %7 A

AEEBREESHALTES  MB(Q2017F:
ZR)BARRARESR  EFHEHINN EX
Mz o A= (20174 : M) ALTH

12. Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2017: three) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in note 11 above. The emoluments of

Fan T the remaining three (2017: two) individuals were as follows:
2018% 20174
AR¥T T ARETT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
e Salary 27,115 16,476
RIRET B Pension scheme contributions - 14
27,115 16,490

BREFHINFIATAAR :

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

EE AR
No. of employees
2018% 20174
2018 2017

5,000,001 7T 25,500,000/ 7T
7,000,001 7L £ 7,500,000 7T
10,500,001 7L 11,000,000 7T
11,500,001/ 7T £ 12,000,000 7T
15,500,00178 JL £ 16,000,00078 7T

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000
HKS$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000
HK$15,500,001 to HK$16,000,000

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR
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13.Earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2018% 20176
TR’ T
2018 2017
‘000 ‘000
HERERREERRM S/ Earnings for the year attributable to owners
REEARD B AEEEF of the Company for the purposes of basic
(AR) and diluted earnings per share (RMB) 2,129,098 1,601,397
HEBRERREERNM S Weighted average number of ordinary
TR N S 2 shares for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share 2,111,689 2,111,689

BRAR R B ARITEERENTEE SR
MEHTE - HETEERZE20185F R2017412
A31 8 1IEF 2 85 IS & R R 0 (R R
FREREEREITE

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 does not assume the exercise of all
of the Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise prices
of those options are higher than the average market price of the
shares.
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14. R B 14. Dividends
2018% 20174
AR%T T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
FADIRNEARE : 2018%F : Dividends paid during the year: 2018: 2017
20177 REARE - §AR03ETT final dividend: HK$0.3 (2017: 2016 final
(20174F : 2016F REARR 8. ¢ dividend: HK$0.1) per share
BRR0ETT) 515,168 273,928
20184 KR HAPR & ¢ A F2018%F 128318 1+ 2018 final dividend: A final dividend of HKS$0.35 per share
FEEFEEEIRNME E2018F128 amounting to HK$739,091,309 in respect of the year ended 31
3T IEFEE 2 KERE B & RR0.357 T 42 51 December 2018 equivalent to RMB628,227,000 has been proposed
739,091,30958 7T © HHE I A K #628,227,000 by the directors during the year ended 31 December 2018. (2017
T e (20174F K HA R B ¢ & E20184%F 128 final dividend: A final dividend of HK$0.3 per share amounting to
SIHLEFE  EERRIRAEH Z=2017812 HK$633,507,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017,
A3 EEZ AR EBRR3B TET equivalent to RMB515,168,000 has been declared and paid during
633,507,000/& 7T * & X A KR ¥515,168,000 the year ended 31 December 2018).
TT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

15. Property, plant and equipment

BT HERRE RE BRREKE  RRIE @
ARBTL AREFRT ARETT ARBTT AREFT ARETT
Plant and Motor Furniture Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles and fittings  in progress Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BA& CosT
201751818 At 1 January 2017 1626248 6,546,660 47328 497,528 147736 8865500
nE Additions 303,286 204,161 17,704 80430 213432 819,013
BRNERBLARRE Addition through acquisition
of subsidiary - - 2077 2,051 - 4,128
B Transfer 38,895 188,299 = 14602 (241,796) =
HERRH Eliminated on disposals (29,284) (723,474) (8593) (18,908) = (780,259)
B20178128318 At 31 December 2017 1939,145 6215646 58516 575,703 119372 8908382
RE Additions 45,299 323434 4331 174,372 310,648 858,084
B Transfer 55437 116,849 = 9,023 (181,309) =
HERE Eliminated on disposals (53,122) (501,207) (6,420) (17,105) (4,126) (581,980)
B2018F 128318 At 31 December 2018 1986759 6,154,722 56427 741993 244585 9184486
RIHERAE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
R2017€1A1H At 1 January 2017 573817 4025502 41139 350,784 - 4991242
TEERX Charge for the year 91,004 539,063 4893 55,575 = 690,535
HERE 8 Eliminated on disposals (10,874) (541,562) (7272) (17,842) < (577,550)
20174128318 At 31 December 2017 653947 4023003 38,760 388,517 - 5104207
TEERY Charge for the year 95916 428444 4,894 122,558 = 651,812
AE Impairment = = = = 3128 3128
R 3 Eliminated on disposals (31,278) (385,029) (8,003) (10,571) = (434881)
12018% 124318 At 31 December 2018 718585 4066418 35,651 500,504 3128 5324286
FHE CARRYING VALUES
20185124318 At 31 December 2018 1268174 2088304 20,776 241,489 21457 3860200
20174128318 At 31 December 2017 1285198 2,192,643 19,756 187,186 119372 3804155
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15. 9% ~ s R (&)

M20185F12A318 - A& B ME TETF
MANEEERE HEEEBEAARY
179,180,0007C(20174F 128318« A R #
280,968,0007T) °

WE - R RRERBESREN TIEFA
ERFHRRRERNBRIGEEFENE :

BF 205 S FHEA (LAB R & A %)
23 N R 5-104F
RE 5%

BMLREE  5F

AEECEKME®EE A A R #4,8290007T
(201748 © AR#5337,00070) IEETF » AR
EERTEEREMEEEER -

BFURFE L ERREFHREERS

16. ENHEE

AEBOENHEES ANRE B HETEN ST
T

15. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had not obtained the building
ownership certificates for certain buildings with carrying values of
RMB179,180,000 (31 December 2017: RMB280,968,000).

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings Shorter of 20 years or the terms of lease
Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture and fittings 5 years

The Group has pledged buildings with carrying amount of
RMB4,829,000 (2017: RMB5,337,000), to secure bank borrowings
and other borrowings of the Group.

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and held under
medium-term lease.

16. Prepaid lease payments

The Group’s prepaid lease payments are analysed for reporting
purpose as follows:

2018% 20174
ARET T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ABMEBWENDTIT Analysed for reporting purpose as:
—BIERER 5 — Current portion 15,766 14,754
— 3ERNHEAER - Non-current portion 535,564 466,666
551,330 481,420

ZEBRER T EAH20E50F M i
FATE -

202 REEEERAT —E-NEER

The amounts represent the medium-term land use rights situated
in the PRC for a period of 20 to 50 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
16. RSHEHE (F) 16. Prepaid lease payments (Continued)
AREED AR ZE A RES5913,0007T 89 The Group has pledged prepaid lease payments with the
FENEE  AAEEMBETEEREMEER aggregate carrying amount of RMB5,913,000 to secure bank
EHEIR (20174 © AR¥2,701,0007T) © borrowings and other borrowings (2017: RMB2,701,000) of the
Group.
7. B ERE 17.Intangible assets
EEHEAM B HRuERE st '\
AREFT ARBTTT AR%ET AREFT ;‘
Proprietary Exploration P_Jk ; J
Technologies Software rights Total 7 ’Q
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 N
h |
AR CoSsT
20171 A1H And 1 January 2017 128,512 1,723 80,000 210,235
NE Additions - 3,881 - 3,881
U B B B A A) Acquisition of subsidiary = 14 = 14
20178128318 At 31 December 2017 128,512 5618 80,000 214,130
INE Additions - 15,166 - 15,166
S R R 8 Eliminated on disposals (336) = = (336)
72018F12H31H At 31 December 2018 128,176 20,784 80,000 228,960
85 ORE AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
R2017F1A1H At 1 January 2017 62,271 739 40,000 103,010
KEEFREZ Charge for the year 10,826 1,162 11,988
RIE Impairment = = 17,485 17,485
201712318 At 31 December 2017 73,097 1,901 57,485 132,483
REEREZ Charge for the year 12,559 2,017 = 14,576
S R 8 Eliminated on disposals (336) = = (336)
018%F12831H At 31 December 2018 85,320 3,918 57,485 146,723
BRTEE CARRYING VALUES
MR2018%F12H31H At 31 December 2018 42,856 16,866 22,515 82,237
017912 A31H At 31 December 2017 55,415 SVl 22,515 81,647
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17. BILEE (&)
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REEMBETLEEDRNE=ZTHEE

BHE R R EME R B A e R A F
A WIREKED BIRSFER10F M3F
BT o

R0NF AREBULBEARE AR
80,0000007cME=FKEFBE AT GH BA
& R E 8 5 ) PR EAE - AR B E FTRRES
WEAEREE(BOARNEER B XE
WEZEME) - WERSHEFEAEELERN
NEEHNKANGREENSEERAERME
F§ o

REFBRERELREENGRMEE  REH
BFINEETAESMERZE  AEEAATE
RIFBEEAYRE - R20179F108 - KEBEK
N RBEEEMFLEE2019F108 - AR
BEFRREZMEERSHFREDER ) -
KARESRAE  REZE2017F12A318 1t
FEEERAMAEARY17,4850007T °

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR

17.Intangible assets (Continued)

All of the Group’s intangible assets were acquired from third
parties.

Proprietary technologies and computer software licences have
definite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
5to 10 years and 3 to 5 years respectively.

During 2012, the Group acquired exploration rights of two mines
from third parties in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region in the
PRC for a total consideration of RMB80 million. The directors of the
Company expected that the mines are abundant with fluorspar
resources, which is a major raw material for the refrigerant
business of the Group. The acquisition of the mines will enable
the Group to secure a reliable supply of high quality fluorspar
resources at a reasonable cost.

According to the regulations on exploration and mining rights
in the PRC, the Group can extend the exploration rights as long
as the survey is in process and the application fee is submitted.
In October 2017, the Group extended the exploration rights
for a period of two years till October 2019. Due to decrease in
mining areas of the two mines upon renewal of the exploration
rights, the directors of the Company considered that impairment
of RMB17,485,000 was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2017.
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18. REtE A R M= 18. Interests in associates
2018% 20174
ARBTR AREBTT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
R BIE LB E R RIMIEER A Cost of investments in associates unlisted in
the PRC 995 981
FEIE W B R RE T Share of post-acquisition profits, net of
R E AR B dividends received - 19,688
DR IER 2 AT EREE Fair value gain on step acquisition - 37,919
DR ER U R B BUH MR Derecognition on step acquisition - (57,593)
i gH Written off (995) (995)
2018 K2017F12 8310 » AEEBZ AN The details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2018 and
FIHEENT 2017 are as follows:
1 24! EHEerS  RIER IRERBYE  FRROERN  ARERENZRER AREMEREELS FEEH
Form of business Country of Principal place  Class of Registered capital held  Proportion of voting rights Principal
Name of entity structure establishment  of operation share held by the Group held by the Group activity
2018% W17% 2018% WI7E
2018 2017 2018 2017
FEFABERHERSE ARLA el mEl HMER ER TER AER TER RHER%
BRAT (Fizka)
Zhangjiajie Xinye Real  Limited fiability ~ PRC PRC Registered N/A N/A N/A N/A  Real Estate
Estate Development company capital (Notea)  Development
Co, Ltd.
REXARENHHER ARAA P hE ihExR 49% 4%% 4% 1% BEREER
ARAR (Fztb)  RERRL
BIRH
Chifeng North Dongyue ~ Limited liability ~ PRC PRC Registered 49% 49% 49% 49%  Production
New Material company capital (Noteb)  and sales of
Development Co, Ltd. fluorogypsum
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18. REFE DRIz (4])

206

Wi

(@)

i)

M2016F1A8H * ARFIKMNBRARILRRESE
BHEEBRAREBLIE=F(HEAEH)F]
N MARBITTZREBRBERRASER
HERBEERAR([ERRR]) 44%0ARHE - 5k
RRAEPEENREEHEREER - NEES
B IRR F4408) R AE KGR E ARSI AR — M
BN AR - BERRAWBREFIRT
BREEBBSEALLBIME - Bt - 2016FARNE
B R RUEE RS ThiR44% M 2B E -

R2017F8 AR » AEEE—HWERRA
S6%MME - RRAKAAEBHNBEEZENE

27

HR2011F2R188  AREIMKMIBARIARHE
ESBFNATHARARME—ZBIFE=HF]T
W RMIEFRE - NEBEHHILIRE
TEEAFE AAHARERBZARMEEE
BANETZARAGESEPHAME - bR
EEREE20165F12831 B IFFERIFEER -

f & DRI AR AN LA M

RAR ©

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR

18. Interests in associates (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 8 January 2016, Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with an
independent third parties, as vendors, to acquire 44% equity interest in
Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (RER REZEXEFHE
FEAMR A F]) ("Zhangjiajie”) at a consideration of RMB1. Zhangjiajie is
engaged in real estate development business in Hunan. The Group held
44% equity interest in Zhangjiajie and accounted for the investment as
interest in an associate. The share of post-acquisition profits of Zhangjiajie
depends on the proportion of actual capital contribution by investors. As
a result, the Group's share of post-acquisition profits of Zhangjiajie was
calculated on a 44% basis in 2016.

On 21 August 2017, the Group further acquired 56% equity interest in
Zhangjiajie and Zhangjiajie became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group.

On 18 February 2011, Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chemicals
Co. Ltd,, a subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to establish North Dongyue. The Group is able
to exercise significant influence over North Dongyue because it has the
power to appoint two out of five directors of that company under the
Articles of the Association of that company. North Dongyue has ceased
its business during the year ended 31 December 2016.

All of the associates are accounted for using the equity method in

these consolidated financial statements.
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19. Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income/Available-

for-sale investments

20184 20174
ARET T ARETIT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
FETRAES - BHAT Unlisted equity securities, at fair value
B35
—SERIEER ) EERER — Zibo ZhangDian Huitong Microfinance
ARl([RIEER]) (Misxa) Co., Ltd. (“ZhangDian Huitong”)
(Note a) 9,760 26,703
—LR¥EBECLERERES - Shandong Peninsula Ocean Blue
BRRAA([SPOBE]) (KizEb) Economic Investment Co., Ltd.
("SPOBE") (Note b) 16,394 74,589
—HERERERGBERAA - China MinSheng Investment Co., Ltd.
(TP ER&Z D (HsEc) (“CMIC") (Note ©) 1,567,000 1,000,000
—REEEEBEERAT (MizEd) - Taihe Asset Management Co. Ltd.
(Note d) 108,240 120,000
—HEREEXEELETIEAR - Zibo Fluorosilicone industrial Park
ARITFIP]) (FfzEe) Operation Management Co,, Ltd. ("FIP")
(Note e) 100,000 =
1,801,394 1,221,292

FEEMBARETIERAI RARNELRRES

MENRERAFEFTE -

The unlisted equity investments are measured at fair value based
on the present value of expected cash flows in the foreseeable

future.
BaE Notes:
@ FREEBAETEKINIAETE FEAS (@) Zhangdian Huitong is a private entity and was established in the PRC.

BILREREEEEY - AEERREERR
BISHHBAEZ AAREERA  Z_E
20185128318 B A FE A A R #9,760,000

JT °

Zhangdian Huitong is principally engaged in the money lending business
in Shandong Province, the PRC. The Group holds 15% of the equity
interest in Zhangdian Huitong, the directors of the Company considered
the fair value of the investment was RMB9,760,000 as at 31 December
2018.
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19. RAVEFAREMZEKRE 2
BRAKRE AHEERE(E)

19. Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income/Available-

for-sale investments (Continued)

BaE « ()

(b) SPOBEA—MIMRFAESRSFMELIMAAZE - (b)

SPOBEE ZH 1R E &S - MEIZE2011F12A31
BIEFEE  ARTESPOBER] L RE W% R
#%20,000,0008%SPOBERZ 153 + #8X fE /20,000,000
E7T (HER AR 1262560007 ) © #
£20,000,0008% A% {5 + #8 & FASPOBE18.18%# %
o REZE2018F12A3IBILLEFE AR A
ESPOBE BN & K & & #9 A R #27,187,0007T
(20175F12A318 : AR¥51,667,0007T) @ &R
NRAEERABZIRER2018F12A31HHRAF
BEAAR%16,394,0007T °

O WHREAZEIEHZER EBERULENR (©
Eh¥ TENERERENEETE - H
E018FNANHLEFE  AEEFHFAFR
B4R REAARBISSEL  HAER
R2018FN2A3ER R RIEFMFREL INE
28%° ARBEFRA - ZIREMN2018F12AH
3TAMAFEAAREE567,000,0007T °

d) FAR BRTEKINLATR TE] (d)

E(HEAPRB)EAEEEBURTRAILREE
NERMPETREEMEE FEL - AEH
HEMAEBHERIEN  HEMELAA
R #10,000,0000007C * EFAEBMK L E A
R #600,000,0007C * 6 F AR EMERBE
6% ° B £2018F 128310 A& B D X+
A R #120,0000007C c R AR EERE ' %
RER018FNANAMAFENABARE
108,240,0007T °

(e) FIPA—MIR2018F 128108 R B HIFLA (e)
B -FPEENEEXEEIRMEETE -
FPEAEBER —EBUE=ZFKIL BHE
2018F12A31ALFE - AEBEITARE
100,000,0007C * 1GFIP4A & 50 AR K 246.15% ° H
RASEVEEWREENESSSRERE
R ZIRRE  WES2HEBREBRE T
MBI EESREMNBEREAR  HAEET
WEAHBPREEFEARE - ARAEER
A ZREBER018ENRANBNAFEAAR
#100,000,0007T °

208 REEEERLR —B-NFFH

Notes: (Continued)

SPOBE is a private entity that was incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
SPOBE is principally engaged in investment activities. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with SPOBE to subscribe for 20,000,000 shares in SPOBE at
a total contribution of US$20,000,000 (equivalent to RMB126,256,000)
and held 20,000,000 shares which represented 18.18% equity interest in
SPOBE. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company received
capital fund of approximately RMB27,187,000 from SPOBE (31 December
2017: RMB51,667,000), and the directors of the Company considered the
fair value of the investment was RMB16,394,000 as at 31 December 2018.

CMIC, a private enterprise initiated by the All-China Federation of
Industry and Commerce and approved by the State Council of the PRC,
is principally engaged in equity investment and assets management.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, as the Group held 1,400,000,000
shares in CMIC at a consideration of RMB1,580,000,000, the equity interest
in CMIC held by the Group increased to 2.8% as at 31 December 2018.
The directors of the Company considered the fair value of the investment
was approximately RMB1,567,000,000 as at 31 December 2018.

Taihe is a private entity and was established in the PRC. Taihe was
principally engaged in interalia, asset management and bulk transfer of
non-performing assets of financial enterprises in Shandong Province, the
PRC. The Group and other partners established Taihe and the registered
capital amount of Taihe was RMB10,000 million, of which the Group will
contribute RMB600 million, representing 6%of the total registered capital
of Taihe. Up to 31 December 2018, the Group has paid RMB120 million.
The directors of the Company considered the fair value of the investment
was approximately RMB108,240,000 as at 31 December 2018.

FIP is a private equity and was established in the PRC on 10 December
2018. FIP was principally engaged in garden construction and property
management. The Group and an independent third party established
FIP. The Group paid RMB100 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 and contribute 46.15% of the total registered share capital of FIP.
As the Group did not have any representative on the board of directors
or equivalent governing body of the investment, did not participate
in policy-making processes, and did not interchange any managerial
personnel with the investment, it does not consider as having significant
influence on the investment. The directors of the Company considered
the fair value of the investment was RMB100,000,000 as at 31 December
2018.
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20. EFER EH 20. Deferred taxation
AR ETER R IBLE SO T ¢ The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purpose:

2018% 20174
AR®BT T AREFIT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEIEFRIAE B Deferred tax assets 213,741 246,398
EEFRIEAE Deferred tax liabilities (111,029) (92,081)
102,712 154,317
FRNEHANTEELEHRBEE(BE)RE The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
BEIMT : recognised and movements thereon for the year:
hEeEk
VERE
PEHERAT EEEA  RAEEN  REEM Fhak
THAKEN  FERE  BHER  HAEE  REER  ERMEE  BEER HOTERE 4 it
Tax credit on
acquisition
Government  of qualified Fair value
Distributable Accrual for grants on property adjustment
Profits of RC  Depreciation ~ employee  prepaidlease  plant,and  Capitalised on business
Subsidiaries  allowance benefits ~ payments  equipment interest ~ Taxlosses  combination Others Total

ARETL  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR ARRTR ARETR ARETR ARRTR
MBO0 RO RBOO  RWBOD RV  RBOM  RWBOD  RVBOD MBI RMBO

RunEifIA At January 2017 (56051) 154 3765 45887 17500 (130 153 . 3% N9
RSB Dividend withholdng ta paid B456 5 5 S 5 5 5 S 5 B456
REEBAMBEIA (Charge) Credit recogrised

i proft orloss {1804 B4 16578 B = 1,106 91954 = By (4%
- EHBLA Acquistion of 2 subsidiary . = . . . . . (24130) S (4130
FONIEIPER]E At31 December 2017 (10837 15085 %443 BoL] 1750 (109 B487 ®13) 700 154317
BiReENR Dividend withholding ta paid 999 = = = = = = = = 1999
REEBAMBIA (Charge) Credit recogrised

in proft orloss (65082 (143 34430 (3% = ) (3487 = 765% (101599)
RasE12AE At31 December 2018 (85729 (39059 8663 20 17500 (54) : (4130 103602 1071
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20.

21.

210

IEAERE (4])

20185124318 - NEE A BIEHEHAR K
i B R B) A IR B 18 R A R 649,963,000
TL(20174F © AR #¥424,842,0007T) * EFE
PFRBAREZITQNIF: AR
374,876,0007C ) M B E B RBEEHIBEE E -
HRTHREEHESEEBNERBEFR
GRIAARBABIBEEEN - UL ER
BT AR B) AR IEEE A R #49963,0007T
(2017F + A R %49,966,0007T ) 7P HE 3R IR 1T
MIBEE - AERRBBBERESBARE
49,963,0007T * #5 120224F fE M (20174 : A
R #374,876,0007T & A K #49,966,0007T 1% 53
BIF20194F K2 20205 fE ) °

20. Deferred taxation (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB49,963,000 (2017: RMB424,842,000) available for offset against
future profits of which a deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of RMB nil (2017: RMB374,876,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in the remaining
unused tax losses of RMB49,963,000 (2017: RMB49,966,000) as it
is uncertain whether taxable profit of the corresponding group
entities will be available against which the unused tax losses
can be utilised. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of RMB49,963,000 will expire 2022 (2017: RMB374,876,000 and
RMB49,966,000 that will expire in 2019 and 2020 respectively).

Gk 21. Goodwill
2018 20174
ARBT T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
M1A1R At 1 January 123,420 85,894
W HE B BB A R Acquisition of subsidiaries - 37,526
12H31H At 31 December 123,420 123,420
AETRERS - ARB375260007C(2017 For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill of RMB37,526,000

F: ARM37,521,0007T) + AR®E84,540,000
TL(20174F © A R %84,540,0007T ) & A R ¥
1,354,0007C(20174F © A R #1,354,0007T ) 2
BEESRSRTF=AREELEVGRE
EAEN)  BEFRNEAR : i@%ﬁaﬂ
BOBNRRASEEHEREARA
(HE%EEH)&m%ﬁﬁ}%méﬁaﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂT
([EX]) - 2 FMEDEBES @ R E
RESHNEEREFEEARAR([REE
%) o REZE2018FE12A31BIEEE - A&
B B8 T R IR g BB (E (2017
F:E)o

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR

(2017: RMB37,521,000), RMB84,540,000 (2017: RMB84,540,000) and
RMB1,354,000 (2017: RMB1,354,000) have been allocated to three
cash generating units (CGUs) representing four PRC subsidiaries,
Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co, Ltd. (“Zhangjiajie”)
and Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. ("“Boda”)
in the property development segment, Huaxia Shenzhou in the
polymers segment and Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd (“Dongyue
Salt”) in the refrigerants segment. During the year ended 31
December 2018, management of the Group determines that there
is no impairment of goodwill (2017: nil).
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RRARBAMAIKESEHREFERER
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HREBBIKREREEE -

BHFHBAE

EBWAMAIKESERBEREETE
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F 1 166%)15H - AFHUENRESRER
FA3%M BTG R R HEHT o I RETIENAE
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REERE - FAEBEAENEMEERS
DHE(PEBEHEERENEEAN)RE
MEMETAR - ZEMGFTHEREESAMN
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

21. Goodwill (Continued)

Property development segment

The recoverable amounts of Zhangjiajie and Boda have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and a discount
rate of 11.3% (2017: 16.6%). Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows which include
budgeted sales and gross margins. Such estimation is based on
past performance of Zhangjiajie and Boda and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of related
subsidiaries to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount

Polymers segment

The recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou has been determined
based on value in use calculation. This calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 16% (2017:
16.6%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash flows which include budgeted sales and
gross margins. Such estimation is based on past performance
of Huaxia Shenzhou and management’s expectations for the
market development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of Huaxia Shenzhou to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou.
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22. 7€ 22.Inventories
20184 20174
AR¥T T ARETIT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
R R B FER Raw materials and consumables 397,986 392,785
TR Work in progress 85,947 75,462
IR mm Finished goods 622,788 520,982
g
1,106,721 989,229
B EHERR T Y% 23. Properties for sale
20184 20174
AR¥T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
EHERBR 2R T Completed property for sale 348,052 567,927
p property
ELERBRZEZYE Property under development for sale 2,685,586 1,238,016
Yy
3,033,638 1,805,943
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REZE2012F12A38IEFE  AEBER
BAEBMNPEILREES GRS
FMEREHERRZEEYE  BEHERAE
ETEIEEREMAEEPIME - ZERIER
20126 L - BEEAESAHE - ME—
HEREZ2014F12A3ALEFERT - 5
“HEREBZE2015F12A31BEFERT -
E-HRENEEREZE2016F12H318 1L
FEET o A T —HATEFH 2020 T L ©

BZE2018F 12 A31AILFE - ARERBEAR
REILREERGN—R T - AELER
BoAEME - BEERETEEEFREAE
ERPHLE - FZERTEER2018F T - 18
B &1 AR EERERERI BT R 20206 %L ¢

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
management decided to develop residential properties on two
parcels of lands which are situated in Huantai Shandong, the PRC
for sale and the relevant development plan had been approved
by relevant authority in the PRC. The construction work was
commenced in 2012. The whole project is divided into five phases
and phase 1 was completed during the year end 31 December
2014 and phase 2 was completed during the year ended 31
December 2015. Phase 3 and Phase 4 were completed during the
year ended 31 December 2016. The remaining one phase was
expected to be completed in 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired a
parcel of land which is situated in Huantai Shandong, the PRC to
develop residential properties for sale. The relevant development
plan had been approved by relevant authority in the PRC. The
construction work was commenced in 2018. The project was named
Dongyue Guoji Xiyuan, and was expected to be completed in 2020.



3. EHERB 2 (&)

REZE2017F 12838 1LEE - REBUKE
WmEK B AR - BILRBAREHEMEFR
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EHERBR 2 EFEE - BEBRERT
B EPHABREEPIHE - ZERT
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E2017F12A3ALEFERT - MHRT
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ZIDEHBIMREE IR - FZERTRE
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BT - HERBEARSHE —PR
NEE - BB{EIE B FEE R 2021F 7L -

IR B R A =N — R L e A
EHERZ T - BABEMEET
ZIDERBAMAIBPIBLE - ZEBRIRE
BT - JHE 2TEABMET - EEEF
B8R 20236 % T -

mEMBHERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE2018F12H31 AILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

23. Properties for sale (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the group acquired

two subsidiaries, Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co.

Limited. (“Boda”) and Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development

Co. Limited. (“Zhangjiajie”), which had the following construction

works of properties for sale.

Boda

1.

Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated
in Zhangdian Shandong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work was commenced in 2012.
The project was named Sheng Jing Lan Ting and the whole
project is divided into two phases, phase 1 was completed as
at the year ended 31 December 2017 and the remaining one
phase was expected to be completed on 2023.

Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated
in Dezhou Shangdong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work was commenced in 2008.
The project was named Shengya Yishui Yuan and the whole
project was completed as at the year ended 31 December
2017.

Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated
in Dezhou Shangdong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work was under projection. The
project was named Shengjing Yuyuan-Zhongyang Gongguan
and the whole project was expected to be completed in
2021.

Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated
in Dezhou Shandong, the PRC for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by relevant authority
in the PRC. The construction work was under projection. The
project was named Hanlinyuan and the whole project was
expected to be completed in 2023.
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23.

214

FLERARZMEGE)
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HERBRZEEDE  BRERAEAECE
HREIABRE B PTHLE o S BRER TIEE M20124F
T - HERBABRMEERN  BEEEES A
WA - BE—HIE P EREREZE20175F128
JNEEFERT  mME—HE_RERE=
HATE T8 9 BIRA2020%F 20235 5 T ©

2018 12A310 - (ELERBECERYE
FEREED A R #1,699,437,0007T (20174
AR #420,369,0007T ) TE HA 45 72 3R 25 B SR #E
ST EARERT -

AR E Y B L E RS 2 W E (201745

AR #159,548,0007T ) © MEIEAEE Z IR
TEE -
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23. Properties for sale (Continued)

Zhangjiajie

Residential properties on a parcel of land which are situated in
Zhangjiajie Hunan, the PRC for sale and the relevant development
plan had been approved by relevant authority in the PRC. The
construction work was commenced in 2012. The project was
named Xiaoxiang Huafu and the whole project is divided into two
phases, part 1 of phase 1 was completed as at the year ended
31 December 2017, the part 2 of phase 1 was expected to be
completed 2020 and phase 2 was expected to be completed in
2023.

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of properties under
development for sale of approximately RMB1,699,437,000 (2017:
RMB420,369,000) are expected to be completed within twelve
months from the end of reporting period.

The Group has not pledged properties for sale (2017:
RMB159,548,000) to secure bank borrowings of the Group
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ES REMEWIE 24.Trade and other receivables
20184 20174
ARET T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 W RIE Trade receivables 1,487,709 1,628,794
o REREME Less: allowance for doubtful debts (2,853) (3,128)
1,484,856 1,625,666
R BRI FRIE Prepayments for raw materials 222,709 43,106
FE WIS (E R Value added tax receivables 76,142 27,381
FEUS AR S Dividend receivable - 35,685
e RAEMEWGRIA Deposits and other receivables 184,023 238,633
1,967,730 1,970,471

M2018F 12 A31H A E 5 W FRIA B FEE UL
=P A RH1,249,734,0007T( 20176 @ AREE

1,350,000,0007T) ©

Included in the trade receivables, there are bills receivables
amounting to RMB1,249,734,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:

RMB1,350,000,000).
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2. EZ R HEMBEWRIE(E) 24.Trade and other receivables (Continued)
REERTRERFPCESEBGIEEENRT Customers are generally granted with credit period of less than
THEBE0R - EIRZEE — MR H90R k180H 90 days for trade receivables. Bills receivables are generally due
BH - SREHIARANEBERNE FEWGRIE in 90 days or 180 days. The following is an aging analysis of
(B REREEE ) IR Z A A (TR B S R trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
BHHIEE ) ZBREE DT 25000 based on the invoice date, also approximate the date of revenue

recognition, which are recognised by the Group at the end of the
reporting period.

20184 20174

AR¥T ARETIT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

90H X Within 90 days 1,297,163 1,095,087
91HZE180H 91-180 days 174,479 509,743
180B A Above 180 days 13,214 20,836
1,484,856 1,625,666
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EABEETAHEF  AEEGREHEP
WEBKIHBEREFPNEEERNEER
PHREAMEE - TPHERBERENERTR
FEEZMIR © 95% (20174 : 99%) 7 %1 HA
MAREBEZE SRV ERBEEAENR
HEATR - AEBRTEFPEHNEE - 5
ARBEREZBERE -

AEECESRERRBEEGBIEARE
9,628,00070(20174F = A IR #2,138,0007T ) °
ZEBRRERAE B MASE I EE
BEBEELEE  AEBW AL EEH
G ERERIEAER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

24.Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts research
on the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the
potential customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. 95% (2017: 99%) of the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have the high ranking record
attributable under the research on the creditworthiness. The
Group offers various settlement terms which vary depending on
the size of contract, credibility and reputation of the customers.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance, there are
RMB9,628,000 (2017: RMB2,138,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral or credit
enhancements over these balances.

2018%F 20174

ARBTR AR¥ETT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

91HZE180H 91-180 days 8,094 1,150

181HLAE Over 181 days 1,534 988

9,628 2,138

BREEEETEBREE L EARERRAEZ Allowance of the above amount has not been made by the Group

ELERBEOT k(L - NEB ALY il ZETIE as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality

B - NAREERAXETBEZELER and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The directors of
4F o the Company consider they are in good credit quality.
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24.

218

BESRHEMEWRIE(E) 24.Trade and other receivables (Continued)
RIREEEF Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
20184 20174
AR¥ T ARETIT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
FHEER Balance at beginning of the year 3,128 25,669
FAEED Reversed during the year (275) (22,541)
FIaEER Balance at end of the year 2,853 3,128
DA BB BWR AT RN E R E 5 EWHRIE The above allowance represents impairment for trade receivables
HIJRE © which are considered not recoverable.
DB EBE TN S N EEESIE The Group’s account receivables that are denominated in
RSB RYERRE I T - currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant group

entities are set out below:

ESH ARH
T T
Uss$ RMB
‘000 ‘000
20185124318 As at 31 December 2018 21,362 146,567
20175124318 As at 31 December 2017 26,959 176,155
FEUNE S AT RIEAEEE 2R RIREK Amount due from associates were unsecured, interest-free and

g - repayable on demand.

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR
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Be

ERENEE - CFRAEMRETEEWMELZ
ReEEBNECRBRTTERD I AEA
R 82,700,000t - ARBEZ TR ARK
280,433,0007T (20174 : AR %16,500,0007T
AR¥E5,204,0007C K AR HE11,156,0007T) ©

EEMBRITERNBITEBRILZEH TR
B BEFRITTERLIBITABRR2018F
128318 K INEFHERFIE 5 5 5035%
(20174 : 1.81%) }2.0.49%(20174F : 0.48%) °

AR o L A T B S DA A S M B
B BRI T -
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25.Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and

Cash

Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB82,700,000, RMBnil
and RMB280,433,000 (2017: RMB16,500,000, RMB5,204,000
and RMB11,156,000) have been pledged to secure the bills
payable, letter of credit and deposits from presale of properties,
respectively.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry variable interest
rates. The weighted average effective interest rates on pledged
bank deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2018 were
0.35% (2017: 1.81%) and 0.49% (2017: 0.48%) respectively.

The Group's bank balances that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

2018 12A31H
20179128318

As at 31 December 2018
As at 31 December 2017

72018512 831H
20175128318

As at 31 December 2018
As at 31 December 2017

ES ARH
T T
uss RMB
'000 '000
48,581 333,421
31,068 203,005
BT ARY
T T
HK$ RMB
'000 '000
19,652 17,219
35,385 29,579
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26 EZREMENREARKRERE
|/ E AT €%
(a) BSRHEMENKE

220

26.Trade and other payables and deposits

received from pre-sale of properties

(a) Trade and other payables

20184 20174
AR%TR AREBTT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
B S ENFIE Trade payables 1,620,043 1,263,298
BWEFFIE Receipt in advance from customers 133,019 161,515
FE TR T3 BN (B i) Payroll payable (Note i) 405,741 249,871
VI - WIS R R ER RN IR Payable for property, plant and
(B equipment (Note ii) 161,564 267,703
Hih e F1E Other tax payables 90,556 137,265
MY EBABMMEMIESE  Other deposits in relation to property
development project - 58,000
ERERG 2 ERYEMEREL  Construction cost payables for
[p&N properties under development
for sale 112,742 -
Eo e K rE AT 5 E (B R Other payables and accruals (note iii) 178,046 207,516
=t Total 2,701,711 2,345,168
P& - Notes:

@

(i)

MR2018F 128318 - BB IHFMEE
—EBATENBAREELRESE
5 A R #72,261,00070(20175 : AR
60,503,0007T ) © & f& & 585 AN 5 B R BT
BRRAIEEBNZEHRESEMT K
B R AL IRERET - WIREHFEIN
HREERFE - HREH VBB R —
FEFEHIE  THBIREMEREE
FRHEEO TR o

WEE M - HMER KR EHEMNFEBR
BB MEBLRREKE=BARN
W FNEFTAFIEERTIE

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR

(ii)

As at 31 December 2018, included in the payroll payable is a
provision for social insurance fund for employees of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to RMB72,261,000 (2017: RMB60,503,000).
The amount of the provision represents the Group's entire
obligation for social insurance fund for employees of PRC
subsidiaries and is determined based on the relevant national
regulations on social insurance and calculated based on the basic
counting unit multiplied by the social insurance rate. The basic
counting unit for social insurance shall be the average wages of
an employee in the preceding year and shall not be less than the
minimum limit promulgated by the local social insurance bureau
each year.

The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
will be settled three months after the completion of installation
of the plant and machinery which is recorded in the addition of
construction in progress during the year.
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(a) BEZREAMEMSKEGE)

B 5 e N IR BIEE A K 237,055,000
020179 « A R #42,313,00070 ) 2 &
NEE - ENERHAEERNZERER
TERIERER -

HEARLNFHEER/OA - XE
BOHIREE M RRERBRE - AE
RITE RN FEREESRRAEE -

REBEZEZAH - BHRMNFANKERD
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26.Trade and other payables and deposits
received from pre-sale of properties
(Continued)

(@) Trade and other payables (Continued)

Included in the trade payables, there are bills payables
amounting to RMB237,055,000 (2017: RMB42,313,000). Bills
payable are secured by the Group’s pledged bank deposits.

The average credit period granted by suppliers is 90 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.

The following is an analysis of trade payables by age,
presented based on invoice date:

20185 201746

ARBT T AREFT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

30A Within 30 days 822,980 700,218
31HZE90H 31-90 days 595,215 414,142
91HZE180H 91-180 days 141,672 124,607
181 HZE365H 181-365 days 41,282 9,073
1224 1-2 years 11,728 7,402
FAE2 More than 2 years 7,166 7,856
1,620,043 1,263,298

AEBARBSEER ZIEEEB A
ZEBHENE S R EAMENFIRHT
W

The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated
in currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

E AR
T T
uss RMB
‘000 ‘000
72018 12H31H As at 31 December 2018 1,403 9,632
R2017F12H31H As at 31 December 2017 4,092 26,737
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26.E5REMENFTERRKHBE 26.Trade and other payables and deposits
FEYWEZ2EWRES(E) received from pre-sale of properties

(Continued)
(b) REFEEMEZEBWIRE (b) Deposits received from pre-sale of properties
2018 20178
AR%T T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
KEBEYE O Wine (M) Deposits received from pre-sale of
properties (Note) 1,632,556 359,918
Mk e EATHEBEEEENTBKER Note: The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers
HIF o arising from the pre-sale of properties in the PRC.
27.f8E& 27.Borrowings
2018%F 20178
AR%T T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
EPIRITIEE Unsecured bank borrowings 2,042,450 1,738,000
BEMBRITEE Secured bank borrowings 40,000 82,821
2,082,450 1,820,821
AR A THARR AEE R BREE Carrying amount repayable:
1R Within one year 873,150 1,076,021
N EIERN RS More than one year, but not exceeding two
years 769,300 674,800
ZR2F B BB T More than two years, but not more than five
years 440,000 70,000
2,082,450 1,820,821
W AIRRBBE TMERDE  Less: amount due within one year shown
FIE under current liabilities 873,150 1,076,021
TF B EIBIRIR Amount due after one year 1,209,300 744,800
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72018512 A318 + AR #¥40,000,0007T(2017
F: ARM828210007T ) M EKIMIRITHEE
BASEREAEAAR48290007t(2017
F: AR®53370000) ETF - lRERER
A R #5913,0007C(20174F = A B #2,701,000
TORMBENASURARBZITQ017F + A
R #159,548,0007T ) HI{E H & ik 2 M % 1E
RER o ZEBFEMRITEEILRF 5470%
(20174F : 4.35%Z%6.37%)zT 2.
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27.Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, secured bank borrowings of
RMB40,000,000 (2017: RMB82,821,000) are secured by the Group's
buildings with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB4,829,000
(2017: RMB5,337,000), prepaid lease payments with the aggregate
carrying amount of RMB5,913,000 (2017: RMB2,701,000), and
properties for sale of RMBnil (2017: RMB159,548,000). The secured
bank borrowings carry interest at 4.70% (2017: 4.35% to 6.37%) per
annum.

The exposures of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the
contractual maturity dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:

2018%F 20174
ARET T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ELEBE: Fixed-rate borrowings:
TR Within one year 306,800 280,200
ENESERNEHEpES In more than one year but not more than
two years 249,650 76,800
EINVESERNHEREES In more than two years but not more than
five years - =
556,450 357,000
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27.

224

B8 (&)

gEAN - REERFEREEWNT

MA2018F128318 FIZE

AR#1,526,000,000 1ZAEEGFKF X MNowZE
7T 15% (RNFEBEAD
F& 4,350 %6.37%)

720174128318 Fi%

AR#1,463,821,000 1ZEGFKF EN0owZ=E
JT 15% (ZN4F 38 A 1
FI=K : 435%%6.37%)

PR ERBEEEHFIERE) o BEER
Rk oo B AR BTG - fioh EARRAT
RGOS EFIE RS - AREEE R 5
BNEETBBEIRE -

NMEEEREAEHEE -

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR

27.Borrowings (Continued)

In addition, the Group has following variable-rate borrowings:

As at
31 December 2018 Interest rate

RMB1,526,000,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(current year applied rate:
4.35% to 6.37%)

As at
31 December 2017 Interest rate

RMB1,463,821,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
(current year applied rate:
4.35% to 6.37%)

The variable interest rates change in accordance with the standard
lending rate. The standard lending rate is promulgated by the
People’s Bank of China. The interest of borrowing at standard
lending rate will be reset when there is a change in the borrowing
rate promulgated by the People’s Bank of China.

Interest is repriced every 3 to 12 months.
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27.Borrowings (Continued)

contracted interest rates) are as follows:

20184
2018

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to

20174
2017

Effective interest rate:

4.35% to 5.67%
4.35%%5.67%

4.35% to 6.37%
4.35%%6.37%

Fixed-rate borrowings

Variable-rate borrowings

4.35% to 5.67%
435%%5.67%
4.35% to 6.46%
4.35%%6.46%

REZE2018F12831HILFE - AEBESE
$5 A ARE220,000,0007T (20174 « AREE
220,000,0007T ) B ¥ f5 4 37 58 BR 4R
A AREE3160000007T(2017F : AR
#698,000,0007T ) BB IR R BRIRITE RN -

RBEMR  AEBAATRIEREEHRE

IS £

RMB698,000,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group obtained
new unsecured short-term bank loans in the amount of
1TER K RMB220,000,000 (2017: RMB220,000,000) and unsecured long-
term bank loans in the amount of RMB1,316,000,000 (2017:

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

=g undrawn borrowing facilities:
2018%F 20174
ARBTR ARBFIT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
RVERETR Expiring within one year 2,042,750 2,726,000
BB FEm Expiring beyond one year - 265,000
2,042,750 2,991,000
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28.

226

EZEWA 28. Deferred income

B AR WHUT SR - #as Rkt
AEBELNFEFRERIERBE
BRI RFES o

Deferred income represents government grants received in

respect of property, plant and equipment and research and

development expenses incurred by the Group in and the prepaid

lease payments for existing office and plant and research and

development expenses.

FRERIER AR E ST Movements of deferred income during the year are as follows:
20184 20174
AR¥T ARETIT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
®1A1R At 1 January 253,080 279,982
INE Additions 88,448 1,120
EEEER Release to profit or loss (34,110) (28,022)
®12A31H8 At 31 December 307,418 253,080
BWREFVERDHTINT : Analysed for reporting purposes as:
20184 20174
AR¥T ARETIT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
BIHEAEL 7> Current portion 21,636 25,359
JERNEAZE Non-current portion 285,782 227,721
307,418 253,080

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR
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Bz 2 29. Share capital
iidvipgE| ;&N
T AREFT
Number of Share
shares capital
‘000 RMB'000
SR EE. BT E B Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
JEIE ¢ Authorised:
20171 A18 ~ 20174128318 At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and
&2018%12A31H 31 December 2018 4,000,000 382,200
BEITRER Issued and fully paid:
20171 A18 ~ 20174128318 At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and
K2018%12A31H 31 December 2018 2,111,689 200,397

20174 F20184EfE - i E AR TIMB AT
BE LERBERAQIMIMFLMHES -

AR AD 32 ¥ BV RRIE

RABEHRAFREE R EIRERT B &8
STEI(TETE ) TR ER2007F 11 A16H BB
FRZRMERYN  EZEMAREES
LMEEBERES - BB AR ESER
MEEREE(BREARRRENEB AR
EERER)RDEREUREEARRRS

2018 20178128318 » B AFEBEE
AIEENERT S TR ER D R R B AR E
TBE 4 35 N AT I AR A7 o

30.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year 2017 and
2018.

Share-based payments

The Company's Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme (the “Schemes”) were adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 16 November 2007 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees. Under
the Schemes, the board of directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, none of share in respect of which

options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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31. &$E 31. Commitments
REBMAEEHAWENT : The Group had outstanding commitments as follows:
20184 20174
AR¥T T ARETFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
B EE Capital Commitments
BN  HERFBERNEAR Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition
S BETHBERELZABET  of property, plant and equipment
FRNEE contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 43,071 -

BREELERGEZWEMNEARYT  Capital expenditure in respect of properties
H o BRESESMERERABEME  for sale but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 130,000 219,000
BERATFESAEMEMEUE  Capital expenditure in respect of equity
ZIRARE AR ERER investments at fair value through other
BEALH - BRIHERELE comprehensive income/available-for-sale

B RS TR IR N R investments contracted but not provided
in the consolidated financial statements 480,000 480,000
653,071 699,000
HfhRiE Other Commitments
BREEHERG 2 ERYEMNET  Construction commitment contracted in
A DEIQERELEABIER  respect of properties under development
KN for sale contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements 428,016 230,618
1,081,087 929,618
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32.FHERE 32.Lease commitments

AEBERAEBEA The Group as lessee
2018% 20174
AR¥T ARETT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000

FREMNEEHEEREME R : Minimum lease payments paid under
operating leases during the year:
LES Premises 1,600 2,717
ME+H Leasehold land - 4437
1,600 7,154
REEEBR - AEBIRB AT HELCEHEE At the end of the reporting date, the Group had commitments for
AEREKEESMNR - ABBMERNT future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

2018% 20174
AR¥T ARETFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
1F R Within one year 6,256 7,431
F2ERESF(BREERMF) In the second and fifth inclusive 25,024 26,004
5 E Over five years 35,827 42,084
67,107 75,519
KEHENRTEREAEEGE T L ER Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the
S o AL FHAE0E - Group for certain lands. Leases are negotiated for an average term

of 20 years.
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3B.EAEALIRS

FA - BREAMBHRERAEIIEIN -
BETIIIBEALRS

ZAE 3

(a) BEEMH

33. Related party transactions

Other than set out in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following related party transactions during
the year:

(a) Purchase of raw materials

20184 20174

AR¥T ARETIT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

JEFE PG AR R 2R Non-controlling interest 6,125 3,651

(b) FEEEASHMH

FR EFREMIZEEAEBNNE

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

UM management during the year was as follows:
2018% 20174
AR®T T ARETTT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEEERET Short-term employee benefits 48,652 42,950
RUKREF Post-employment benefits - 18
48,652 42,968

() FHRAQRF-BEAETERR

B — R B2 RRRITEREAE

(c) Bank deposit placed to a subsidiary of an
indirect substantial shareholder of the

AR EWA Company and related interest income
2018% 20174
AR¥T AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
RI2ANHEMNRITER S Bank deposit amount at 31 December 464,184 175,004
FARFBWA Interest income during the year 1,180 4

230 REEEERAE —E-N\FEH



%ﬁﬁz

mEMBRERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE2018F 1231 HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

BPHEAEALIRS (E) 33. Related party transactions (Continued)
(d) #HEEm (d) sales of good
20185 20174F
AR¥T T ARBFIT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEIEAR AR SR b e Non-controlling interest 118 -
(e) BEAEATWIBAREE—REHE (e) Capital injection for acquisition of further
RAZE—FREZTE equity in a subsidiary of the Group from
connected parties
20184 20174
ARBTR AREFT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEBHEME AR ARTASE  Capital injection in Dong Yue
& ky: RAKREBAERAT(R Organosilion Material Co., Ltd from:
ABEE]D Cheung Shek Investment Limited
GED) ("Cheung Shek Investment") (note a) 180,519 =
/NP EEIB AR (ARAE) Zibo Xiaoxi Enterprise Management
([VSE/NER ) (Hi3ED) Limited Partnership ("Zibo Xiaoxi")
(note b) 234,675 -
BitsE Notes:
(@) E??ﬁﬁmﬁiﬁﬁj—%%ﬂf?%% (@ Cheung Shek Investment is directly controlled by an
EE executive director of the Company.

(b) B/ NERBAARAREBMENITES
A HIFEBBE30% °

(b) Zibo Xiaoxi was owned more than 30% together by two of
the executive directors of the Company.
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33.

34.

232

BEALRS(HE)

() BE—EREALWE-—BHELQ
RlZE—SRE

33. Related party transactions (Continued)

(f) Acquisition of further equity interest in a
subsidiary from a related party

2018% 20174
AR%TR ARETT
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
RS R EEE AR A TA40% Cash consideration paid to purchase
ERWENBESNRE 40% equity interest in Dongying
Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd.
EMEXIREAR AR (MIFE)  Macro-link Asset Investment Co, Ltd.
(note) 86,463 =

GEX
FRBERLEERA T AT EBENERA
AMBRA - MHERAAAANREEER
Ho

RKEFETE

AEBEFENES P EEEMT BT
EMBZOR RN MK E - ARBEZAR
AR FIEE B DL R FH MR A E) - F
REBRBINES - ASENE-—SERY

A ERTEIERIEEHK -

REEBARAE —2-N\FFR

note:
Macro-link Asset Investment Co., Ltd. is an associate of Macro-Link Holding
Limited, which is an indirect substantial shareholder of the Company.

34. Retirement benefits plans

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local governments in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these
schemes is to make the specified contributions.
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35. KA A B A AIFE 35. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company
ERATIRE/ ] \ )
il PEE ggax kBN BAG/ERERRA FOAFEHRRRRLS MAARRREEMN  IERE
Country of
incorporation Paid up issued/
or registration/ registered Proportion ownership interest Propartion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share held share capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
43 B
Directly Indirectly
B w7F - NBE  avF  WBE  7F ;
n % % % b % b r ™
we N7 W w7 W8 A7 & -
00 % b % % % % LY
i
FERAT g iHax NEB641 3607 JEREERNELR L
Dongyue Polymers PRC Registered capital RMBG41,360 100,00 10000 - - 100.00 10000 Manufacture and sale of '
polytetrafluoroethylene
REII 78 ifiax ARB3000T - -0 1000 000 10000 000 BERMERRECE
Dongyue Chemicals PRC Registered capital RMB340,000 Manufacture and sale of
refrigerant
REEX il iftén AREs00007 - - 1000 em 10000 EEREEE
Dongyue Salt PRC Regstered capial RMBB0,000 Production and sales of sat
RERERAITERAT il g% ARG - B0 10000 9 1000wl AEREERE
Dongying Dongyue Precision PRC Regstered capial RMB12,667 Production and sales of
Chemicals Co, Ltd bromine
REAE G ifias ARBOOT 699 o 138 38 B BN HEREETRELN
Dongyue Fluo-Silcon PRC Regstered capial RMB400,000 Manufacture and sales of
methane chloride
Hongfong Tal ntemational Tedng 75 iR 0ET 10000 10000 - S 10000 0 HELTER
(o,Ltd.
HongKong Tail Intemational H Registered capital HKD100 Sae of chemical products
Trading Co, Ltd.
REARE il g% ARBGO0OT IO 400 - B0 T 00 BEREEARREH
Dongyue Organasilcon PRC Regstered capial RMBES0,000 Manufacture and sale of
organosiicon materal
RELRECEANIARAR  1E ifias ARBT0007T - - 50 500 5100 S0 BERFEEAALE
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluarine PRC Regstered capital RMB70,000 Manufacture and sale of
Chemicals Co, Ltd. anhydrous luoride
FEEARERRLT i AL AR 0007 - -0 800 wm 800w BEREEER
(hifeng HuaSheng Mining PRC Regstered capial RMBY,000 Manufacture and sale of
(o, Ltd fuorite
REnRERMHARAT G g% ARBS000T - - 10000 0000 10000 1000 EEREELR
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Fluorine ~ PRC Registered captal RMB30,000 Manufacture and sale of
Chemicals Co, Ltd. fluortte
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35. RARIMB A FEE (&) 35. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company
(Continued)
iEAER v
WRATER ggax kBN BAG/ERERRA FOAEHRRRRLS KAEREREEND  TEER
Country of
incorporation Paid up issued/
or registration/ registered Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share held share capital held by the Company held by the Company ~ Principal activities
E& B
Directly Indirectly
wieE 0vE - NwE N7E - NME NE
n % % % % % b
2018 017 218 017 218 017
000 % % % % % %
URRENARIHERAT b8 ifias AR5 707 - S S0 5100 S0 HERAERER
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe PRC Registered capital RMBT15,700 Manufacture and sale of
Fluorine Chemicals Co, Ltd. slicone rubber
UFREBAERARLA)  E ifiax ARBs00007 - S LB 0 B0 M hERE
Shandong Dongyue Union PRC Regstered capial RMBB0,000 Property development
Property Co, Ltd. (3
UFBARYEREERAT) P8 g% AEBS0007T - < 10000 0000 10000 0000 EEE
Shandong Boda Real Estate DevelopmentPRC Registered capital RMB30000 Property development
(o, Ltd (0
FARERRHERLARLA 1E ifidx ARERO0T - - 1000 o 0000 100 HEEE
Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate PRC Registered capital RMBB0,000 Property development
Development Co, Ltd. )
ERREAREAERAT 98 iftax RSO0 - - 10000 000 10000 d00  HE[TER
Huangtai Dongyue Intemational Trade - PRC Registered capial RMBS, 000 Sale of chemical products
(o, Ltd.
2ER% i iftas ARB10007T - -0 10000 000 | 10000 100 BEREEASSATE
Jal
Huaia Shenzhou PRC Registered capital AMB10,000 Manufacture and sale of
fluoropolymer
URREAKERMBARDA) E iMEx AREI000007 - - 4o 00 400 00 EERSEGKIH
Shandong Dongyue Future PRC Registered capial RMB100,000 Production and sales of
Hydrogen Energy Materials hydragen energy materials
(o.Ltd. (b
METEKBERERLAY  bE &% ARE 00007 . - 10000 10000 - BEBRERZG
Zibo Herun Shuiwy Company PRC Registered capital RMB25,000,000 Sewage treatment and s
Limited! (b) fecycling
REL B ARMEETEREEES - None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
FrEFREBARYE AERRNDE - of the year. All the PRC subsidiaries are domestic enterprises.
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@@ WRREHAEEERARNREZ2017F12A8
31ALEFEEINGEHERBRIEE -

b)  WREERKREEMEARRQAMN2017F12A
19K ©

ST EKEARETARNR2018F11 A7AK
ﬁo

© WREBAEHERZEAERAGNCHANERR
2017F6 A28 BINME « N AREE/MEEZ AW
BR7A -

RRASBEEHWERZERAFEHAEER
20178 A1 BIEE - KAREENBZEEZEAN
BAF -

36. HE— BB QAR

M20185F10H168 - AEBEBIE=F
RV B E W - IRRE AR 12,000,000
THELRREARESERAA(RE
AR HI60%#E R RERAR —KARB A
A HEER2018F10A16 B EM ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

35. Particulars of subsidiaries of the company
(Continued)

Notes:
(@)  Shandong Dongyue Union Property Co., Ltd. has increased capital
contribution from non-controlling shareholder during the year ended 31

December 2017.

(b)  Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy Materials Co., Ltd. has been

set up on 19 December 2017. ;P
Zibo Herun Shuwu Company Limited has been set up on 7 November ‘i
2018. g

(©) Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. has been acquired by
the Group as indirectly wholly owned subsidiary on 28 June 2017.

Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. has been acquired by
the Group as indirectly wholly owned subsidiary on 21 August 2017.

36. Disposal of a subsidiary

On 16 October 2018, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with independent third parties, to dispose
60% shareholding of Shandong Dongyue Mass Trade Co., Ltd.
("Dongyue Mass”) together with a subsidiary of Dongyue Mass, at
a consideration of RMB12,000,000, the disposal was completed on
16 October 2018.
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36. hE&E— KB 2R (&)

236

HE NI SHEEFE

36. Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued)

Net assets disposed of:

ARETIT
RMB'000
EERTBE E Deferred tax assets 1,682
T8 Inventory 12,177
B 5 R E M ERFRIAR Trade and other receivables 43,266
Bk Tax recoverable 1,884
ReRkERFSIER Cash and cash equivalents 4,561
2 5 R H M ERFRIE Trade and other payables (43,642)
BEFE Net assets 19,928
FEFE IR AR R A 2 Non-controlling interest (7,971)
KREHEBABEEERE Total assets attributable to owners of the Company 11,957
HE — R A R e Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 43
RE Consideration 12,000
ATH AR Satisfied by:
Re Cash 3,000
Hoh fE U IR Other receivable 9,000
12,000
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36. HLE—REMEB AT (&) 36. Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued)
NTAEERBEE—RHNBARMNREE MER An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
HEEAMRAFEDN respect of the disposal of a subsidiary as follows:

AREFT

RMB'000

HERE Cash consideration 3,000

HEReRERBEELAE Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 4.561)
ERHE—MBEARMNRERERI  Netoutflow cash and cash equivalents in respect of the

SHEERHFE disposal of a subsidiary (1,561)

37. 2~ B B A& AR S TR AR 37.Summarised statement of financial

position of the Company

2018% 20174

AR¥T T ARETT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

I B AR RIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,521,381 1,524,547

BAFEGF AR E Y S Equity investments at fair value through

A E other comprehensive income 33,119 —

AHEERE Available-for-sale investments - 74.589

RITHEB LIRS Bank balances and cash 41,180 85,707

e & E Other current assets 215 134425

HipmehaE Other current liabilities (3,558) (9,583)

1,592,337 1,809,685

A& A Share capital 200,397 200,397

R (Pf5T) Reserves (Note) 1,391,940 1,609,288

1,592,337 1,809,685
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37. 2 R B R AR R SRR (48) 37.Summarised statement of financial
position of the Company (Continued)

s - Note:
ﬁ{ﬁg@ : Movement in the reserves:
B EE BERGHE REBEF wat
AREEFTT AREEFTT AREEFIT AREETTT
Share Capital Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
201791 A1 B &% Balance at 1 January 2017 1,224,924 200,344 54,149 1,479,417
FRERN K2 EW S BEE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - 403,799 403,799
BERE Dividends paid = = (273,928) (273,928)
2017912 A31 B &84 Balance at 31 December 2017 1,224,924 200,344 184,020 1,609,288
FRERN N2 EW S BEE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - 297,820 297,820
BERE Dividends paid - - (515,168) (515,168)
2018412831 B &4 Balance at 31 December 2018 1,224,924 200,344 (33,328) 1,391,940
38. tEGRE M TREK 38.Approval of the consolidated financial
statements
EEEMN2019F3 7278 # £ M IR R T B 47 The consolidated financial statements were approved and
S BwmE authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2019.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EENEE Assets and liabilities
RW12A31H
As at 31 December
20145 20155 2016%F 20175 2018%F
ARETE AREFTR ARETRT AR®ETT  AR¥ETn
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
BEAE Total Assets 12,003,560 11,500,728 10,865,117 12,277,964 16,523,851
aEaE Total Liabilities (6,105,756) (6,428,353) (5,178,866) (4,965553)  (7,131,652)
5,897,804 5,072,375 5,686,251 7312411 9,392,199
NGIE 2PN Y 4 Equity attributable to Owners

of the Company 5,640,807 4801,539 5,388,008 6,709,732 8,336,606
FERRRES Non-controlling interests 256,997 270,836 298243 602,679 1,055,593
5,897,804 5,072,375 5,686,251 7312411 9,392,199
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Five-Year Financial Summary

B ELE Financial results
BZE1ANBLEE
Year ended 31 December
20144 2015% 20165 20174 20185
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT  AR¥Tx
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 7,599,696 7,032,486 7,969,773 10,137,137 14,218,937
HEMA Cost of sales (6,383,611) (5863,519) (6,328,718) (7.072,865)  (9,687,291)
E il Gross profit (1,216,085) 1,168,967 1,641,055 3,064,272 4,531,646
HigA Other income 290,501 343,949 186,667 225467 119,209
DERHERY Distribution and selling expenses (251,209) (251,284) (283,058) (313,959) (358,726)
TR Administrative expenses (289,791) (261,116) (387,610) (656,333) (782,735)
AHRHERERE Impairment of available-for-sale
investments - - (42,324) - -
EVEERE Impairment of intangible assets - (40,000) = (17,485) -
MEEE Assets written off = (1,478.200) = = =
RERAERS Research and development expenses (73,398) (69,797) (73,947) (94,609) (177,360)
AR A Finance costs (201,441) (208,663) (166,229) (112,890) (97,135)
[ YN E ¥ Share of results of associates 283 (573) (12,440) 47310 =
BB AR Profit before tax 691,030 (796,717) 862,114 2141773 3,234,899
TS Income tax expense (194,034) 115,780 (246,648) (459,974) (800,200)
KEERFR2EKEME  Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 496,996 (680,937) 615,466 1,681,799 2,434,699
THEFEEZFR2E NS Profit and total comprehensive
(BAX)4%E: income (expense) attributable to:
AREEEA Owners of the Company 483276 (690,479) 588,154 1,601,397 2,129,098
el Non-controlling interests 13,720 9,542 27312 80,402 305,601
496,996 (680,937) 615,466 1,681,799 2,434,699
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Corporate Information

Registered office

Vistra (Cayman) Limited
P.O.Box 31119

Grand Pavillion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

Dongyue International Fluoro

Silicone Material Industry Park

Zibo City ‘, .
Shandong Province the PRC

Head office and principal place of business in the PRC é

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Flat 02, 15th Floor, Capital Centre
151 Gloucester Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

Website address

www.dongyuechem.com

Directors
Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. FU Kwan

Mr. LIU Chuangi

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. ZHANG Bishu

Mr. ZHANG lJian
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Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
Mr. YUE Rundong

Company secretary

Ms. Chung Tak Lai

Authorized representatives

Mr. FU Kwan
Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai

Audit committee

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong
Mr. YUE Rundong

Remuneration committee

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. ZHANG Jianhong

Nomination committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. LIU Chuangi
Mr. ZHANG Bishu
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SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House

3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands
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Corporate Information

Risk Management Committee

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Xiaoyung
Mr. Yue Rundong

Principal share registrar and transfer office

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House

3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal bankers

China Construction Bank Corporation
Huantai Branch

134 Jianshe Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

7 Zhangbei Road

Zibo Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

48 Heng Huan Road
Zibo City, Huantai
Shandong Province, PRC
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Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

101 Zhongxin Road

Suo Zhen

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Zibo Branch

103 Liu Quan Road

Gaoxin District

Zibo Shandong Province PRC

Investor relations consultant

Investor Connect Advisory
Room 807, Office Plus
93-103 Wing Lok Street
Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

External legal advisor

Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong
Baker & McKenzie Hong Kong

Stock code
189
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Dongyue International Fluoro Silicone Material Industry Park

EE Tel: (0086) 533 8510072
{EE Fax: (0086) 533 8513000
#HE Website: http://www.dongyuechem.com
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